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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Talent Property Group
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011.

OPERATING RESULTS

The Company completed the acquisition of the real estate
business at the end of 2010. The consolidated revenue for 2011
amounted to approximately HK$696 million (2010: HK$409
million) with a loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK$987 million (2010: profit of HK$531 million).

In 2010, the Company recorded exceptional gains of HK$556
million brought by its acquisition of the real estate business, which
was no longer available in 2011. The accounting treatment of
non-cash finance costs and fair value changes on convertible
notes as well as the recognition of costs of sales of real estate
projects in accordance with relevant accounting principles had
brought negative effect to the financial statements of 2011. As we
all know, the control policies and tightening of liquidity during the
year by the Chinese government have severely affected the
domestic real estate industry, and limited the sales and gross
profit growth of the Group. Facing the challenges in the industry
and the uncertainties in 2012, the Group had prudently made a
provision for impairment for the existing real estate projects.
Additionally, loss after tax continued in the businesses of
electronic products and commodities investments, and the
commencement of charge of depreciation and amortization due
to the opening of our hotels further increased the loss for the year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK FOR THE REAL ESTATE
BUSINESS

In 2011, the GDP of China grew approximately 9%, ranking first
amongst Europe, the United States and the BRIC countries.
Rapid growth of Chinese economy and increasing individual
income of citizens boosted the demand for real estate. To restrict
the excessive expansion of the real estate industry, the Chinese
government continued to maintain the stringent control in 2011.
As a result, investment demands were substantially suppressed,
and the general public held back their inelastic demands on real
estate.

Guangzhou City is a first-tier city. Supported by its strong
economic fundamentals and per capita consumer spending, the
housing price adjustment was minimal despite the transaction
volume of houses dropped sharply from 2010. The Group’s
properties, including commercial units, villas and car parking
spaces, are all located in the CBD of Guangzhou City. Its vibrant
and convenient transportation support the rental and housing
prices. In 2010, the average growth rate of housing prices in
Hainan Province ranked the first across the country, as benefited
from the government plan to develop Hainan Province into an
international resort island. However, with its external-oriented
structure and under the stringent control measures, the real estate
industry in Hainan Province recorded a significant year-on-year
decrease in the transaction volume and prices in 2011. This
caused a negative effect to our two projects under construction in
Haikou. Due to the foregoing, we have made various provisions
for impairment for the properties of the Group based on their
respective market conditions.

Looking ahead for 2012, the market will be conservative, as
macro policies imposed by the government on the real estate
industry will further restrain the demand for investment and self-
ownership. Nevertheless, as the Required Reserve Ratio is
lowering and the continue growth of the national economy and
citizens’ wealth, the real estate industry is expected to grow
healthily after the housing prices have returned to a more
reasonable level. The Group continues to develop high quality
products, which are targeted the high-end property market that is
less affected by the control policies. Land available for
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

development in the center of Guangzhou City is becoming limited.
The improving transportation network and high housing prices in
the city center provide great opportunities to our high-end
residential project under construction, which is located in the
scenic area of South Lake in Baiyun and within 15 minutes drive
from the CBD of Guangzhou Tianhe. On the other hand, despite
the substantial increase in supply in Hainan Province, | am
confident that we will outperform our competitors with our
dedication to product quality. We are managed to explore the
Hainan market, strictly control our costs and accelerate the
construction progress, so as to ensure an on-time delivery of the
Yuhaiwan project and accelerate the payment collection.

Furthermore, the Company’s unique experience and network in
the urban renewal business, have been proven by the fact that
the Company got the Linhe project, which has a gross floor area
of 400,000 square meter next to the Guangzhou Railway East
Station. In 2011, the Company saw good progress in several
“Three-Old” redevelopment projects. A breakthrough is expected
in 2012, when the opportunities for the rebuilding projects
materialize. The Company will spare more effort to obtain the
approval from the Municipal Office of “Three-Old” Redevelopment
for the projects under negotiation, so as to sign the Buildings
Demolition Compensation Agreement with the villagers.

It is expected that in 2012, the residential market in first- and
second-tier cities of China will still be subjected to the control
policies and challenges from the government. However, as China
starts to launch reform of China’s Household Registration System,
there are enormous opportunities for the second- and third-tier
cities, which are not affected by the control policies. The
Company is actively seeking for investment opportunities.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK FOR HOTEL BUSINESS
Despite the keen market competition, Hilton Guangzhou Tianhe,
which commenced operation in August 2011, recorded operating
gross profit before finance costs, income tax, depreciation and
amortization within four months.

In 2012, several 5-star international brand hotels will be opened in
Guangzhou City, which will increase the supply of hotel rooms.
However, the operating gross profit is expected to record a
considerable year-on-year growth, driven by the growing
consumer market of Guangzhou City and the effort of the
management of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK FOR ELECTRONIC
PRODUCTS BUSINESS

The manufacturing industry in the Pearl River Delta of China
continued to be affected by the increase in material and labour
costs and the appreciation of Renminbi in 2011. The Group
maintained a stable business by developing new products with
higher prices and stringent cost control. In 2012, the economies
in Japan and Europe are expected to remain stagnant. The Group
will continue to focus on marketing and cost control, in order to
overcome the difficulties encountered in such operating
environment.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of our board of directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank our Shareholders, customers, banks and
business partners for their trust and support and all our employees
for their hard work and dedication. The Company and our board
of directors will continue to enhance the integrated
competitiveness of the Group and prudently seek opportunities
for development, so as to ensure a steady growth of the results of
the Group and create value for our Shareholders and the
community.

Ng Pui Keung
Chairman and Executive Director
PRC Hong Kong

30 March 2012
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Business and Financial Review

ER KB E R

On 10 December 2010 (the “Completion Date”), the Group
completed the acquisition of Talent Central Limited which, through
its subsidiaries, holds interests in various real estate projects in
the PRC (the “Acquisition”). Since then, the Group’s principal
activities consist of real estate development, property investment,
hotel operation, design and manufacture and sales of electronic
products in the PRC, trading of equity investments and
commodities.

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

The revenue and gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 amounted to HK$696.4 million and HK$78.6
million, respectively. These represent increases of 70.1% and
25.6%, respectively, as compared with last year. Such increases
were mainly contributed to the Acquisition of real estate
businesses in 2010.

Property development and investment

During the year, revenue amounted to HK$296.8 million (2010:
HK$61.9 million) and HK$28.2 million (2010: HK$2.1 million) were
generated from the sales of properties and gross rental income
from our investment properties and car parking spaces in
Guangzhou City, respectively. Approximately 670 units of car
parking spaces and residential units of gross floor area (“GFA”)
1,570 sg.m. were sold.

In 2010, results of the real estate businesses were consolidated
since the Completion Date to the year-end date of 2010.
Whereas, full year results of the real estate businesses were
consolidated in 2011.
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Business and Financial Review

ER KB E R

Property development and investment(Continued)

Gross profit of HK$20.6 million (2010: HK$2.0 million) and gross
profit margin of 6.3% (2010: 3.1%) were recorded in 2011. The
strong upward momentum of property price in 2010 was halted
by various austerity measures launched by PRC Government.
Hence, the properties were sold at a moderate price in 2011.
However, the costs of properties sold during the year represent
their fair values on the Completion Date plus subsequent
development costs. As a result, a slim gross profit margin was
recorded.

Hotel operation

Our luxury five star hotel, Hilton Guangzhou Tianhe
(& M ¥ X % B %8 8 J5) (the “Hotel”) commenced operation in
August 2011. Gross revenue from room rentals, food and
beverage and other ancillary services of amounted to HK$46.7
million.

Despite the market competition was intense and the Hotel was
just commenced business for few months, we achieved an
occupancy rate of over 40% by the year-end and recorded a
gross operating profit of HK$2.9 million during this operating
period.

Business of electronic products, equity and
commodities investments

In 2011, we recorded a revenue of HK$318.9 million (2010:
HK$345.4 million) and HK$5.7 million (2010: Nil) for the sales of
electronic products and trading of precious metal, respectively.
Gross profit margin of 17.2% (2010: 17.5%) was recorded for the
sales of electronic products. The operating environment remains
challenging. The Group tackled the reduction in sales volume by
selling products with higher prices and better margin. As a result,
the gross profit margin was kept steady.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution cost was increased by 397.1% to HK$33.8 million in
2011 (2010: HK$6.8 million). The increase was primarily
attributable to the marketing expenses for the pre-sale of
residential units of the Haikou projects and various selling
expenses for the sales of properties in Guangzhou City.
Distribution cost incurred for electronic business remains stable.

ADMINISTRATIVE & OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

Administrative and other operating expenses increased by
222.5% to HK$272.8 million in 2011 (2010: HK$84.6 million).
After the Acquisition, administrative and other operating expenses
of property development, property investments and corporate
management amounted HK$117.0 million were fully consolidated
in current year. Expenses attributable to the hotel business,
including pre-opening expenses, amortization of land value,
depreciation of the building and equipment, were totaling
HK$87.4 million. Whereas, HK$68.4 million was attributable to
businesses of electronic products, equity and commodities
investments.
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Business and Financial Review

ER KB E R

IMPAIRMENT LOSS AND FAIR VALUE CHANGES
ON PROPERTIES PORTFOLIO

During the year, the PRC government imposed a series of
austerity measures to curb soaring housing prices, including
higher down payment requirements, raising mortgage interest
rates, direct restrictions on home purchases, the establishment of
price control targets, third-home purchase bans and a trial real
estate tax in certain biggest cities in the state. In addition, the
raising of RMB Required Reserve Ratio (“RMB RRR”) for deposit
taking to historical high, the fear of global economic double dip
recession and the spread of Europe’s financial crisis casted
further shadow on the property market in China. Investment
demand, inelastic demand and market sentiment had been
seriously undermined. House prices in some cities had started to
cool and nationwide sales volume was contracted obviously.

The government’s plan to make Hainan province an international
tourism destination and a two-year lending binge commenced in
2008, had driven huge capital into the property sector and helped
making the island posted the biggest property price hike in the
country in 2010. As a result of the persisted nationwide austerity
measures in 2011, the market returned to normal and a marked
correction took place. A provision of HK$414.7 million has been
made against the properties under development in Hainan Haikou.

Guangzhou City, being one of the first-tier cities subject to
onerous property control measures, seen slight adjustments in
house prices but substantial reduction on transaction number of
properties sales. Upon conservative consideration and by
reference to assessment made by professional independent
qualified valuer, provision of HK$185.0 million and HK$59.7 million
have been made against our completed properties held for sales
and investment properties, respectively.

Many 5-star luxury hotels were opened in Guangzhou City during
the year and few more will be opened in 2012 and onwards. To
cater for such keen competition, we completed the interior
renovation and amenities with higher standard than its original
plan. Under such competitive environment and cautious sentiment
in commercial property market, a provision of HK$269.8 million
has been made against the building, plant and equipments of the
Hotel after valuation conducted by professional independent
qualified valuer.

10

MEESZREBERLATFEESS

FR - PEBFHET— R ZGEEEENEE
=TT BRERSESNRENR  EBINERAE
BHERGIEE - BIFIEBRES AR ZUEBESE
—EEFERERRNETAMT AT EHER - it
oh BAANREEEFREBEEER L EK
FmBEREHEENRERTRARBME
REKELEEN  SHEMETLBEEESR
B-REFTR BUEBRKETHBEEEARIY

g ETFRATZEERELY 2EMENEE
T o

BT ES8mE SR ARKRIRER - MR
ZN\FRAAPMFEZEEH BEREELESK
AEHER THEMEEEL - —ZFHE
ZEAREKT c BRPEAE =T ——FERH#
TEMERRE  MBREESIA BRI ENFHE -
AREECOHEEEEOM 2 RRBYWEED
414,700,000 78 70,2 Bt -

EBMNmREF —EZERMER TR E s —
BT ZTEECEMAE  BEMEHEZR
HEABBTEK - ZIEHBEEZE  WREEEH
M7 ABREERELD 2 - RME D BIBE
EHEZEERWEREEY X R
185,000,000 78 7T & 59,700,000 78 7T 2 #iff -

TR BMNTHRAEKT P RAELZERE —F
—ZFERZEBEDNEEEEEEEERYE - ARY
BRRF - RFIUBRREE KRR ERE
EREN - BEHFANREMEAYETS
BEMRS  REEBY 2 A ERGEMETTE
HE BBAEZEF BELREZEBELRT
269,800,000 70 2 B & -

Talent Property Group Limited 7 X1t E £ EBR A F



Business and Financial Review

ER KB E R

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

To capture the peak of commercial properties market and to strengthen
the working capital of the Group, we sold all the commercial units of
Jingang Garden (% % # [&]) and some commercial units of Tianlun
Garden (Xf®7EE) at a consideration of HK$250.5 million. A profit
of HK$11.2 million was recorded after taking into direct business
tax.

FAIR VALUE CHANGES ON DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

According to applicable accounting standards, fair value of the
derivative component of the convertible notes of the Group has to
be re-measured. A fair value loss of HK$26.6 million has been
charged to the consolidated income statements.

SHARE OF LOSS OF AN ASSOCIATE

The amount represented the Group’s share of general and
administrative expenses of the associate company engaged in the
Linhe Rebuilding Project (A EE#EIEE ). As at year end date,
the commercial buildings and residential buildings of the
resettlement zone were in structural construction, while, the
saleable zone was in foundation and basement construction work.

FINANCE COST

In 2011, finance cost was HK$234.1 million (2010: HK$14.6
million). The amount included imputed finance cost of HK$142.8
million and HK$16.8 million arising from convertible notes and
promissory notes, respectively, issued for the Acquisition. Interest
expenses amounted HK$32.7 million and HK$41.8 million were
arising from borrowing to fund the associate company and
general corporate borrowing, respectively. Since such borrowings
were not earmarked for project development, thus such they have
not been capitalized.

TAXATION

Income tax credit increased from HK$0.4 million in 2010 to
HK$193.4 million in 2011. It was mainly attributable to the reversal
of deferred tax made in previous year as a result of provision for
diminution in value of various properties of the Group.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss attributable to owners of the Group in 2011 was HK$987.1
million (2010: Profit of HK$531.1 million). It is the cumulative effect
of the aforementioned factors and the absence of a gain on
bargain purchase amounted to HK$556.6 million in relation to the
Acquisition as recorded in 2010 in current year.
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PROSPECT

Looking ahead to 2012, the global financial, economic and
political environments are expected to remain challenging. In PRC
property market, though short-term correction is inevitable, the
fundamental demand for residential housing will remain strong.
The development of the PRC property market will be benefit by
the growth of China’s economy, rising per capita income,
accelerating urbanization and increase demand for better living
environment.

In short term, the Group’s financial performance will be affected
by accounting treatment of convertible notes and promissory
notes as well as the value of properties acquired at fair value on
Acquisition. However, such influences will not alter the favourable
development of existing projects, extensive experience and quality
of the management team as well as the Group’s ability to grasp
opportunities arising from city redevelopment in Guangzhou.

Construction of Yuhaiwan will be completed and will be delivered
to home buyers in second half of 2012. Hence, bookable revenue
will be increased. Additional effort and marketing strategies will be
adopted in selling remaining units of Yuhaiwan. While pre-sale of
Swan Bay project will be commenced in 2012. Despite a
remarkable adjustment was noted in 2011, with the continuous
growth of PRC economy, improvement of infrastructure facilities
and the prominent positioning of Hainan, the large residential
supply will be gradually digested.

The Group is dedicated in producing home with excellent quality
and taste. The construction of our Phase Il of South Lake Village
project is underway and pre-sale is scheduled at late 2012. Our
South Lake Village project is situated at the South Lake Scenic
Area at Baiyun district of Guangzhou. In order to conserve natural
landscape in the area, further land grant for prospective property
development had been ceased by the local government. We
believe the value of this great treasure can be realized in the near
future.

In 2012, a few more 5-star international brand hotels will be
opened within Guangzhou City. The Group will work closely with
the management team of Hilton in order to tackle the vigorous
competition and generate better results from the Hotel.

Regarding business of electronic products, it is foreseeable that
the Group still has to face a tough business environment. The
Group will keep exploring new markets and imposing tight cost
control.
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PROSPECT Continued)

Although reduction of RMB RRR by another 0.5% in February
2012 helped alleviate the banks’ liquidity stress and enhanced
credit capacity, the group managed to sell existing properties in
order to reserve more resources for projects with higher return. At
the date of this report, we had sold substantial portion of
commercial units of Dongming Xuan.

PORTFOLIO OF PROPERTIES
As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s properties and projects on
hand are shown in the table below:

Al ()
BAARKEETEBESER -T——F - Jii—
STH05%  BERESTHNADESENR
BHEEEH  BAEETNSLERENE A
BB EHNEEERESER - RAREAHE
AEE D E HRIBE AT BN -

MELE
R-TE——F+-_A=+—H AE£ENHREY
¥RBEEHINTX

Investment properties REYE
Lease term Gross floor Percentage
of land area (sq.m.) interest
Project and address Purpose TiiEE HEEEE EEEST
HE Rt A% HAPR (F75XK) %
Commercial units of Dongming Xuan, Commercial  Medium 18,885 100%
Nos. 199, 203-231 Zhongshan 4th Road, [HES ]
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC (“Dongming Xuan”)
HPEERAEMT
LSS AL PO EE 199 5%
203-231 5 SRR EF ([ RIBET|) 2 pg A AL
Commercial units of Tianlun Garden, Commercial  Medium 15,050 100%
Nos. 17-29 Jianshe Si Ma Lu, [SES T Ef
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC (“Tianlun Garden”)
B R A N T TS IR R AR IO S B 1729 5%
KaeE ([ RREE]) 2R EA
Commercial units of Shangyu Garden, Commercial  Medium 2,198 100%
No. 45 Tianhe Road, Yuexiu District, EES A
Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC (“Shangyu Garden”)
Hh B PR A N T LTS 1R OROA BR 46 5%
EEER(LBTER]) 2HREM
House No. 52, Casa Marina |l Residential  Medium 151* 100%
No. 1 Lo Ping Road, Tai Po F= b Bf
New Territories, Hong Kong
AR
RNIEBRFEE 155

&2 525k E

Being saleable area excluding the bay window and ancillary areas.
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Completed properties held for sale FEHER T

Percentage

interest

Gross floor %

area* (sq.m.) s

Project and address WIZEEE BoL

1HE Rt (FEFK) %
(Note)
(BF3E)

Residential units of 10,826 100%
South Lake Village Phase I, Tonghe Road,

Baiyun District, Guangzhou City,

Guangdong Province, the PRC

e

hEIERAREMT

HE & R

A 1L 28 — B

ZEEENM

Residential units of Shangyu Garden 3,776 100%
e
FEERZETEN

Residential units of 120 100%
Jingang Garden, No. 38

Lixiang Road, Huangpu District,

Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, (“Jingang Garden”)
the PRC

A

i

BRE RN

=IHR 5 B35

eAER([BEE])

ZEEEA

Car parking spaces of Dongming Xuan, Tianlun Garden, N/A 100%
Shangyu Garden and Jingang Garden TEA

A

RIGE - RfatE - P EEERSBER 2 EM

* It represents the area ready for sale as at 31 December 2011. * ARZE——F+_A=1+—BAHLEZEE -
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Properties under development BRPYE

Planned Percentage
GFA interest

Site area (sq.m.) %
(sq.m.) HE %  Stage of Expected
Project and address WEEE LEREEE B2t  completion completion date
HHE Rt (EHXK) (EHK) % TRER B TIEH
South Lake Village Phase |l 118,102 98,418 100%  Early stage of 2014
Tonghe Road, Baiyun District, construction —T-F
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, B
the PRC
LA =)
HEIEREEMNTEERRME
Yuhaiwan Haisheng Road, 48,324 124,457~ 63.2%  Topping out 2012
Xiuying District, Haikou City, B31E —TCF
Hainan Province, the PRC
25E
HEBEABOMARRGHEE
Linhe Rebuilding Project 57,793 400,000 30%  Early stage of 2013
Tianhe District, construction =
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, B
the PRC
WA ERIER
HEEREEMNTRTE
Swan Bay Garden South of 199,539 239,447 25%  Early stage of 2013
Qiongzhou Bridge, Qiongshan District, construction —E-=F
Haikou City, Hainan Province, B
the PRC
XI5
HEBEAEAT
B LR AE AR
* It represents GFA for residential, commercial & communal usage and * EET HERAHBABRRMEFEILSMS @ 5EEE
basement car park. s e
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Hotel BIE
Lease term Percentage
of land Number of interest
Project and address Star-rating T HEE rooms MEHZFBEIL
1H B Rt B2 HABR EEHE %
Hilton Guangzhou Tianhe According to five-star Medium 504 100%
Linhe Xiheng Road, Tianhe District, rating standard FRHA

Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, BRHERIZE
the PRC

BN TR FREEE

Fp B BR AR M TR RO (R AR AN PR A

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2011 were
approximately HK$8,182.3 million (31 December 2010:
approximately HK$8,859.2 million) which were financed by the
total equity and total liabilities (including convertible notes and
promissory notes) of approximately HK$1,644.2 million (31
December 2010: approximately HK$2,468.5 million) and
approximately HK$6,538.1 million (31 December 2010:
approximately HK$6,390.7 million) respectively.

The directors consider the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its operations and financial resources for financing
future investment opportunities in suitable business ventures.

The Group borrowings were all denominated in Renminbi. Bank
balances and cash were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, United States Dollars and Renminbi. As at 31 December
2011, there were no outstanding forward contracts in foreign
currency committed by the Group that might involve it in
significant foreign exchange risks and exposures.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 10 December 2010, convertible notes and promissory notes
in principal amount of HK$3,100 million and HK$160 million
respectively were issued as part of the consideration for the
Acquisition. The Group’s gearing ratio then computed as total
debts over total assets was approximately 79.9% as at 31
December 2011 (31 December 2010: 72.1%). As at 31 December
2011, bank borrowings amounted to RMB991.3 million (2010:
RMB681.9 million) carried interest rate varied in accordance with
the base rate of People’s Bank of China. Whereas other
borrowings amounted to RMB306.2 million (2010: RMB475.4
million) and RMB160.9 million carried fixed interest rate (2010:
carried interest rate varied in accordance with the base rate of
People’s Bank of China) and interest free respectively.
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EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The revenue of the Group is mainly denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, United States Dollars and Renminbi, and the cost of
production and purchase are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, United States Dollars and Renminbi. Therefore, the Group
is not exposed to any other material foreign currency exchange
risk. An average rate and a closing rate of HK$1.20408: RMB1
and HK$1.229: RMB1, respectively, were applied on
consolidation of the financial statements.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$4,967.4 million (31
December 2010: HK$4,919.4 million), represented by properties
under development of approximately HK$2,457.2 million (31
December 2010: HK$2,208.8 million), investment properties of
approximately HK$808.5 million (31 December 2010: HK$1,084.8
million), property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$571.5 million (31 December 2010: HK$515.2 million) and land
use right of approximately HK$1,130.2 million (31 December
2010: HK$1,110.6 million), were pledged to secure general
banking facilities.

NUMBERS AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had approximately 1,800 (31
December 2010: 1,564) employees, with about 1,750 in the
Mainland China, 50 in Hong Kong and 2 in Macau. All employees
are remunerated based on industry practice and in accordance
with prevailing labor law. In Hong Kong, apart from basic salary,
staff benefits including medical insurance, performance related
bonus, and mandatory provident fund would be provided by the
Group.

There has been no change to the terms of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on September 2002. No new
share options were granted during the current year. No share
option was exercised during the year and the outstanding share
options granted to the directors and employees as at 31
December 2011 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Details of the capital commitment and contingent liabilities are set
out in note 42 and 45 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG Pui Keung — Director, aged 43, is the Chairman of the
board of directors, responsible for business development and
project investment, and is also the head of the urban rebuilding
development research center. Mr. Ng obtained his bachelor
degree in international relations from Meiji Caikuin University,
Japan. Mr. Ng is a member of commissary of the people’s political
consultative conference of Liwan District, Guangzhou City. He has
over 15 years of experience in the property development industry.
He was the general manager of business development
department in Talent Holdings Limited and was responsible for
finalising the cooperation with the manager of the Hotel. He was
also involved in the negotiation leading to the cooperation and
financing of the Linhe Rebuilding project. Prior to that, he worked
for Asset Managers (Asia) Co., Ltd. (Japan) focusing on property
investment for approximately 10 years. He joined the Group in
December 2010.

Mr. YOU Xiaofei — Director, aged 48, is the vice president of
the Group, responsible for the financial, treasury and tax
management of PRC property development projects. Mr. You
obtained his bachelor degree in accounting from Jinan University.
He is a qualified accountant in the PRC and has over 25 years of
experience in finance and management. He was a director,
deputy general manager and chief financial officer of Heilongjiang
Tianlun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd, a listed company in
the PRC engaging in property development, investment and
mining, from 11 November 2006 to 1 September 2010. Prior to
that, he worked in various companies in Hong Kong and the PRC
engaging in property development, manufacturing and tourism.
He joined the Group in December 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. CHEUNG Chung Leung, Richard — Director, aged 58, has
35 years of experience as an architect and real estate investment
adviser. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
degrees of Bachelor of Arts (Architectural Studies) and Bachelor
of Architecture. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Architects and a Registered Architect pursuant to the Architects
Registration Ordinance. He joined the Group in March 2000.

Mr. LO Wai Hung — Director, age 52, obtained a bachelor
degree in Commerce from James Cook University of North
Queensland, Australia. Mr. Lo is an associate member of Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia and a fellow member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo is an
independent non-executive director of Shandong Weigao Group
Medical Polymer Company Limited (Stock Code: 1066) and Ngai
Lik Industrial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 332), both companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and an
independent director of China Merchant Property Development
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Co. Ltd. (Shenzhen Stock Code: 24), a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo joined the Group in February
2011.

Ms. PANG Yuen Shan Christina — Director, aged 38,
graduated from City University of Hong Kong in 1995 and
obtained a Bachelor of Law with Honors (LL.B.), she also obtained
a Master of Laws in International & Commercial Laws (LL.M) from
City University of Sheffield, UK in 1996, a Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws (PCLL) from City University of Hong Kong in 1997 and is
qualified as a practicing solicitors since September, 1999 and has
been in private practice during the period from 1999 to 2000 and
from 2007 to date. Ms. Pang was an in-house legal counsel with
the Young Champion Group between April 2000 and September
2002. Ms. Pang is currently acting as the inhouse legal counsel of
Waldorf Group since September, 2006. She is now also a
consultant lawyer of Tso Au Yim Yeung, a solicitors firm in Hong
Kong. Ms. Pang is an independent non-executive director of Dejin
Resources Group Company Limited (stock code 1163) since May
2011. Ms. Pang was an independent non-executive director and
an executive director of New Smart Energy Group Limited (stock
code: 91) during the period from August 2009 to September 2009
and during the period from September 2009 to June 2011,
respectively. Ms. Pang joined the Group in January 2012.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YU Xiaoyong, aged 38, is the vice president of the Group,
responsible for project investments of the Group. He obtained his
bachelor degree in applied-geophysics exploration from
Changchun University of Geology and a master degree in
business and administration from Sun Yat-Sen University. He is
responsible for the acquisition and development of all existing
properties projects of the Group. Prior to that, he worked in a
property development company and was responsible for project
technology management and cost control for about seven years.
He joined the Group in December 2010.

Mr. ZHANG Yongtong, aged 42, is the vice president of the
Group, responsible for the project development and
administration management of the Group. Mr. Zhang pursued
advance studies at the School of Continuing Education of Beijing
Normal University and Asian Remote College of Education. He is
a member of Guangdong Real Estate Association and the deputy
chairman of Zhongshan Real Estate Guild. He has over 16 years
of managerial experience in large-scale real estate enterprises.
Prior to joining our Group, he had worked as project development
leader in large-scale real estate enterprises including Agile Group,
Mayland Group and Lai King Group. He has successfully managed
projects such as the Mainland Lake International Community in
Guangzhou and the commercial and residential community of
Majestic Garden in Zhongshan. He joined the Group in April 2011.
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Mr. YAU Tak Wah, Paul, aged 56, is the founder of the
electronic division of the Group and is primarily responsible for
strategic planning of the division. He holds a bachelor of science
degree in mechanical engineering and has more than 25 years’
experience in the electronics industry.

Ms. LOUIE Mei Po, aged 44, is responsible for business
investment and development of the electronic, investment and
loan financing businesses of the Group. Ms. Louie holds a
master’s degree in Business Administration and a bachelor’s
degree in Social Science from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. She has over 15 years’ experience in business investment
and development. She joined the Group in February 2000.

Ms. LIU Yee Nee, aged 46, is responsible for finance of the
electronic, investment and loan financing businesses of the
Group. Ms. Liu holds a master degree of Business Administration
from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology and is a
member of The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants,
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries & Administrators and The Hong Kong
Institute of Company Secretaries and has over 22 years
experience in the field of accounting and management. She joined
the Group in August 2007.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEE Wai Kuen, aged 38, is the Company Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is responsible for the
supervision of financial reporting, internal control, corporate
governance affairs of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor
degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lee had worked in an international firm of certified public
accountants and had held company secretary and senior financial
positions in various companies listed in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lee joined our Group in May 2011.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed
to ensuring high standards of corporate governance in the
interests of shareholders and devotes effort to identifying and
formalising best practices. The Company has applied the
principles and the code provisions as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

THE BOARD

To protect and enhance shareholder value, the Board acts with
integrity and due care for the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders. The Board is collectively responsible for
leadership and for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. Leading the Group in a
responsible and effective manner, the Board adopts formal terms
of reference which detail its functions and responsibilities,
including, but not limited to, ensuring competent management,
approving objectives, strategies and business plans and
monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs.
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The attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the HE-Z——F+_-_A=1+—HItPHFE &
Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2011, RIEERAAF@HEZ HEXRNT :
was as follows:

Number of attendance*/meetings held in 2011

HERE R-B——FRT2E3

Annual
Audit General
The Board Committee Meeting

B8 BEREEE RRAFAE

Executive Director H11TE= %

Mr. Ng Pui Keung (Chairman of the Board) 10/10 N/A 11

IRk (EFSF/E) NE A

Mr. You Xiaofei 10/10 N/A 11

TEREE NiE M

Mr. Yau Tak Wah, Paul (resigned on 9 September 2011) 9/10 N/A 11

EFELEE (R _E——FNANAET) E A

Ms. Louie Mei Po (resigned on 28 September 2011) 10/10 N/A i7al

BEBENMAI(RZZE——FNLAZ=F+/\BEIT) T3 A

Ms. Liu Yee Nee (resigned on 28 September 2011) 10/10 N/A 11

BERNE(WB_E——FNA =+ N\BFIT) iE A

Independent non-executive Director
JHHITES

Mr. Cheung Chung Leung, Richard 2/10 2/2 1/1

R R LA

Mr. Lo Wai Hung (appointed on 1 February 2011) 2/10 2/2 11

ERIELAE(RZE——F-A—HEZME)

Mr. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 31 January 2012) TiE A TEA T EA
MLzt (R —_E——F—A=+—HEZT)

Mr. Ng Wai Hung (resigned on 31 January 2012) 2/10 2/2 1/1

BEBEAEV-_ZT——F—-A=+—HEIT)

Mr. Wu Wang Li 0/10 0/2 N/A
(resigned on 31 January 2011) ANiE A

RohBEE
(R=ZE——F—A=+—H#&M1)

* The Directors can attend meetings in person, by phone or through other  * EEURSLFE  IRBEAR B ZEBERABLER

means of electronic communication in accordance with the Company’s HEF@aArA2NEE -

Articles of Association.

Currently, the Company does not appoint chief executive officer.  ANARERFIMEFITIAER - ERAEE 2K
In view of the operation of the Group, the Board believes that the &M - EEEHEESERR BB B AELE
present structure of the Board will provide a strong leadership for B2 a8 2888 - DURRIELIRSR R HIFT B BUR
the Group to implement prompt decisions and to formulate B - ¥ REEAH] -

efficient strategies, which is for benefits of the Group.
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Moreover, the day-to-day operation of the Group’s businesses
are shared among those executive directors and the management
of the Company. Therefore, there should be a clear division of the
responsibilities at the board level to ensure a balance of power
and authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one
individual.

Together with a balanced of skill and experience for the business
of the Group, a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive director of the Board shall exercise
effective independent judgment. Currently, the Board comprises
of five directors, of which two are executive directors, namely Mr.
Ng Pui Keung (“Mr. Ng”) and Mr. You Xiaofei (“Mr. You”) and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chung
Leung, Richard (“Mr. Cheung”), Mr. Lo Wai Hung (“Mr. Lo”) and
Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina (“Ms. Pang”).

As at 31 December 2011, the Company has three independent
non-executive directors namely Mr. Ng Wai Hung, Mr. Cheung
and Mr. Lo. Mr. Ng Wai Hung and Mr. Cheung are not appointed
for any specific fixed term and Mr. Lo was appointed for the term
of two years commencing from 1 February 2011. On 31 January
2012, Mr. Ng Wai Hung resigned and Ms. Pang was appointed
as an independent non-executive director for a term of two years
commencing on that date and subject to retirement and re-
election in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company. In
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting of the Company one third of the directors shall
retire from office by rotation. The Board considers that sufficient
measures will be taken to ensure the corporate governance
practices of the Company are not less exacting than those in the
Code A4.1 and 4.2.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

The management is obliged to supply the Board with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the members to make
informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities. Each director has separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to acquire more
information and to make further enquiries if necessary.
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In order to comply with the forthcoming amendments to the Code
which will be effective on 1 April 2012, a nomination committee of
the Company has also been established by the Board with written
terms of reference with effect from 31 January 2012. The
nomination committee comprises two executive directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The nomination
committee is chaired by Mr. Ng. The major duties of nomination
committee are to give advice to the Board on the appointment/re-
appointment of Directors, and to review the structure, number of
members and composition of the Board and to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

In order to comply with the forthcoming amendments to the Code
which will be effective on 1 April 2012, a remuneration committee
of the Company has been established by the Board with written
terms of reference with effect from 31 January 2012. The
remuneration committee comprises two executive directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee is chaired by Ms. Pang. The remuneration committee
is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its objective of
attracting and retaining Directors and senior management of the
highest caliber and experience needed to develop the Group’s
business successfully. The remuneration committee is also
responsible for the development of a fair and transparent
procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for
recommendation to their remuneration packages.

Before the establishment of the remuneration committee, there
was no remuneration committee in the Board. The Board
conducted an informal assessment of the individual director’s
contribution so that no director decides his or her own
remuneration and their remuneration has been relatively stable in
the past years.

All employees are remunerated based on industry practice and in
accordance with the prevailing labour law. In Hong Kong, apart
from basic salary, staff benefits include medical insurance,
performance related bonus and mandatory provident fund would
be provided by the Group.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In preparing the
financial statements, the Board has adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants that are relevant to its operations.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors (the “Audit Committee”) and reports to the board of
directors. The Audit Committee meets the external auditors at
least once a year to discuss any areas of concerns during the
audits without the presence of the management. The Audit
Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control systems and focuses not only on the impact of the
changes in accounting policies and practices but also on the
compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the
legal requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and
annual reports.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the fees paid/payable to
the auditor of the Company in respect of the audit services and
non audit services in 2011 were amounted to approximately
HK$1.3 million and HK$0.36 million respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, risk management functions and adequacy of training,
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of accounting and
financial reporting functions. Areas for improvement have been
identified and appropriate measures taken so as to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy and
corporate development and ensuring the business operations are
properly monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters of the Group and material transactions. The Board
delegates the day-to-day operations to general managers and
department heads who are responsible for different aspects of the
operations of the Group.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDER

The Company believes in regular and timely communication with
shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders understand
its business better and the way the Company operates. To
promote effective communication with the public at large, the
Company maintains a website (http://www.760hk.com) on which
comprehensive information about the Company’s major
businesses, financial information and announcements, annual and
interim reports and shareholders circulars are being made
available.

All shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear
business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual general
meeting. According to the Listing Rules, the Board will conduct
voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting by vote.

By-law 58 of the company’s bye-laws provides that any
shareholder holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of
the company can deposit a requisition to the principal place of
business of the company in Hong Kong with the attention to the
board or the company secretary of the company to require a
special general meeting to be called by the board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The Board is endeavour to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. The chairman of the Board, chairman of the Audit
Committee, chairman of the remuneration committee and
chairman of the nomination committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees and the auditor of the
Company, are available to answer any queries that shareholders
may have in the annual general meeting.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries of all directors of the
Company, they have confirmed that they complied with required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the accounting
period covered by the annual report.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the (i) property development and
investment in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”); (i) the hotel
operation; (iii) the design, development, manufacture and sale of
electronic products; (iv) the trading of listed equity investments
and commodities; and (v) the provision of loan financing.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales of the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 30.7% (2010: 52.8%) of the total sales
for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 12.6% (2010: 22.1%) of the total sales. Purchases
of the Group’s five largest suppliers and contractors accounted
for 51.7% (2010: 33.9%) of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier and contractor included
therein amounted to 44.8% (2010: 10.7%) of the total purchases.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”)) nor those shareholders (which, to the knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 35 to 36.

DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 43 to 44 and note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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SUBSTANTIAL INVESTMENT AND ACQUISITION
Other than the addition of property, plant and equipment, there
was no substantial investment and acquisition during the year. On
10 December 2010, the Group has completed the acquisition of
Talent Central Limited and its subsidiaries. Details of the
acquisition had been set out in the circular to the shareholders
dated 29 October 2010.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements during the year in the share capital and
share options of the Company are set out in note 39 and 36 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In 2010, convertible notes of principal amount of HK$3,100 million
were issued as part of the consideration for the acquisition of
Talent Central Limited and its subsidiaries (details of which were
set out in the circular to shareholders dated 29 October 2010).

BORROWINGS
Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2011
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Consolidated Results

MBRE

mEXE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-R=+—HLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—B——F —T-TF —TTNF —TT/N\F —TTLHF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$PO000  HK$000
FET FA&T FHET FHET FH&T
Revenue WS 696,385 409,402 294,199 366,266 374,072
(Loss)/profit before BRETISBIAT (B518),
income tax gl (1,358,373) 529,790 (7,998) (169,892) 6,470
Income tax credit (expenses) FrE iK% (k) 193,424 398 (388) (10,181) (32,408)
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(F518) /M F (1,164,949) 530,188 (8,386) (180,073) (25,938
Attributable to: THI AT
Owners of the Company ARG HEA A (987,081) 531,067 (8,386) (167,748)  (15,230)
Non-controlling interests PR R (177,868) (879 — (12,325) (10,708)
(1,164,949) 530,188 (8,386) (180,073) (25,938
Consolidated Assets, Equity and Liabilities FREE - RaEkE&E
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E-—F 2§ ZTTNF ZTTN\F ZTITLHF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$O000  HK$'000
FHExT FHET FHET FHET FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEREEE 3,328,158 3,396,285 73,500 69,885 303,125
Current assets mENEE 4,854,136 5,462,937 724,053 794,720 825,204
8,182,294 8,859,222 797,553 864,605 1,128,329
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities mEAaE 2,656,800 1,806,942 55,5692 113,182 156,224
Non-current liabilities ERHAERE 3,881,266 4,583,775 2,199 3,063 702
6,538,066 6,390,717 57,791 116,245 156,926
EQUITY e
Attributable to THIATFES
the Company’s owners VIN/NEIE ¥=N 1,177,019 1,877,291 739,762 739,461 962,504
Non-controlling interests e 467,209 591,214 - 8,899 8,899
Total Equity o g k] 1,644,228 2,468,505 739,762 748,360 971,408
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and upto the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. NG Pui Keung (Chairman)

Mr. YOU Xiaofei

Mr. YAU Tak Wah, Paul (resigned on 9 September 2011)
Ms. LOUIE Mei Po (resigned on 28 September 2011)
Ms. LIU Yee Nee (resigned on 28 September 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEUNG Chung Leung, Richard

Mr. LO Wai Hung (appointed on 1 February 2011)

Ms. PANG Yuen Shan, Christina (appointed on 31 January 2012)
Mr. Wu Wang Li (resigned on 1 February 2011)

Mr. NG Wai Hung (resigned on 31 January 2012)

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all of the directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election. Accordingly,
Mr. Ng Pui Keung, Mr. Cheung Chung Leung, Richard and Ms.
Pang Yuen Shan, Christina will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 20
of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Lo Wai Hung and Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina,
independent non-executive directors, had entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years and each of
these contracts is subject to termination by either party giving not
less than 1 month’s written notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EEERESE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors nor the chief
executive of the Company had registered any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the
“SFO”)) which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO), or which were
required to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2011, the interests or short
positions of substantial shareholders (other than Directors or the
chief executives of the Company) in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
SFO or were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

EERATEARR A2 B SR8 BE
Eé&ﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%%%i%é&
BR

RZFB——F+-_A=+—H ARREERIT
BAAEE B R A A A Rl s B AR E (12
ErMHEEMN (T EBAEERD D) EXVEEZ
W) 2 BRI Bt - ARBERR D SEREE 2k
MR (BRREFREES KPR KRG AR GXHE
BRGERAZERNER)  MEREBRES R
HEGRPIEXVEET7 X8 HEBAMA LN F REZ
BT AR RIRIERE 7 K BB 1RG5 352 165
EARRFEZECMEHEIREFEET BN
EN/NSIPSE RN i

FERRRAQFRD RABRRKR G 25
mRER

BARREEHITRARMAN R-F——%F
TZA=+t—H TERR(RRAEFHITH
BEBRIN) AR BRI SR B A 1) B B IR 1B
H REEGBIEXVELE 2 237D BEXERAR
AR FR SRR E 5 M I B 15 1 58 336 R IR E A
RAFEZECMRE  EERERMT

Percentage of

Number of Number of the company’s

ordinary underlying issued

Name Note shares held shares interest share capital

HARARBDRT

=L B EE BFEERRYE MHEROEZRHE RABDL

Winspark Venture Limited 1 829,509,340 — 29.59%

Talent Trend Holdings Limited 2 — 7,621,5615,152 271.84%

Top Rich Limited 3 — 1,151,515,151 41.07%
Notes: HizE

1) The entire issued share capital of Winspark Venture Limited is directly, 1) Winspark Venture Limited 2 #8 2 21T IR AR R IR B 55 &

beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Chan Yuen Ming.

) The entire issued share capital of Talent Trend Holdings Limited is directly,
beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Gao Bin.

Q) The entire issued share capital of Top Rich Limited is held by Top One

Limited, which is directly, beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Choi Chiu Fai,
Stanley.
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Report of the Directors
EEERESE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected and related party transactions are set out
in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set out on
pages 21 to 26 of the annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive directors are independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There is no continuing connected transaction.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Company’s directors.

AUDITORS

The Company’s former auditors Grant Thornton resigned as the
auditors of the Company with effect from 6 December 2010 and
Messrs. Cheng & Cheng Limited was appointed as the auditors of
the Company on 10 December 2010 to fill in the casual vacancy
in the office of the auditors. There has been no other changes in
auditors of the Company in any of the three preceding years other
than mentioned above. A resolution will be tabled in the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Cheng
& Cheng Limited as auditors of the Company.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B ZEERES

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
BMEHEERAERAT

To the members of Talent Property Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Talent
Property Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to
176, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2011, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B ZEERES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgments, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Cheng & Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Hong Kong, 30 March 2012

Cheng Hong Cheung
Practising Certificate number P0O1802
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e REWARK

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
P& FET FHET
Revenue Uy &5 6 696,385 409,402
Cost of sales S EE R AN (617,739) (346,803)
Gross profit ESA! 78,646 62,599
Other revenue and net income Hob Uz RIRAFEE 7 51,350 12,194
Gain on bargain purchase of subsidiaries WHEMEB AR zZB WG 41 - 556,615
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHNEeHERE
financial assets ZWE = 4,333
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYERE 11,239 —
Fair value changes on investment properties & &M% AT (EEF) (59,666) —
Fair value changes on revaluation of building Z{LEF AT EEH) (206,792) —
Impairment loss of property, plant YE - BE MR
and equipment DERI=N R (62,968) -
Impairment loss of completed properties BIEHEZEE/K
held for sale and properties under VIR ERPYE
development DERI=N R (599,681) -
Fair value changes on derivative financial PHESRMTARNFEES
instruments (26,573) -
Distribution costs o EEACAN (33,835) (6,752)
Administrative and other operating expenses 1T & Efth & & 5% (272,833) (84,629
Share of loss of an associate DMEEE N R (3,110) -
Finance costs BB A 8 (234,150) (14,570)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRATEHAT (B8) %R 9 (1,358,373) 529,790
Income tax credit FTiSHiig e 12 193,424 398
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(FR),EF (1,164,949) 530,188
Other comprehensive income Hitb2mEUWBA
Share of exchange difference of an associate 7 {hH < A & X Z %8 26,494 —
Fair value changes on revaluation of EEMEEFRIS
factory buildings and workshop N EEE 7,546 6,432
(Deficit)/surplus on available-for-sale A ECREE
financial assets (B4t) /Bty (1,066) 1,678
Realisation of change in fair value of BHAHHESHEE Y
available-for-sale financial assets NFEES = (4,358)
Deferred tax charged to revaluation reserve 5+ A E (4 F#E 2 EIEF 1B (4,732) —
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of BEGINETS 2 IS RER
financial statements of foreign operations BRI (EE) 162,816 (88)
Other comprehensive income FEHMZEBA
for the year 191,058 3,564
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEZEBARR

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (B#E —E——4#+ - A =+—HIFE)

2011 2010
—E——fF —E=-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P& FET FHET
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FE2EGSE) WA
for the year g (973,891) 533,752
(Loss)/profit attributable to: THALES(EE)
A
Owners of the Company KARER A 13 (987,081) 531,067
Non-controlling interests FEPR AR RS (177,868) 879
(1,164,949) 530,188
Total comprehensive (loss)/income THATELEEZE
attributable to: (B1E]) R #E :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE F=DN (825,306) 534,650
Non-controlling interests FEIRRRAE RS (148,585) (898)
(973,891) 533,752
Basic (loss)/earnings per share for MADNREEAELEE
(loss)/profit attributable to the owners  (J&18), J#%F 2 5K

of the Company during the year

HEAE(EHE) B 14 (38.83 cents#1ll)

23.63 cents &Il

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for

(loss)/profit attributable to the owners
of the Company during the year

RARBERARGEFE
(B1]), BRI z8R
8 (58 2F 14 N/ATER

4.64 cents &1
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBUIRR R

(As at 31 December 2011) (R—ZFE——4#¢+—-F=+—H)

2011 2010
—B——F —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties BEWME 15 927,516 1,146,409
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 16 696,372 587,317
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE £ 3 N A 30 {5 A A 17 1,138,761 1,119,384
Interests in an associate R—REE & AR 2 FE S 19 562,772 539,388
Deferred product development costs IRIEE B AR AR 20 616 751
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESREE 21 2,121 3,036
3,328,158 3,396,285
Current assets REBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights FAE 4 % i {5 R 17 252 252
Financial assets at fair value through profit BAFELEEARY
or loss CREE 22 5,577 7,172
Properties under development HREAYE 23 3,225,400 3,017,941
Completed properties held for sale FIEHE 2 2Rk 24 482,931 902,593
Inventories FE 25 36,229 48,000
Trade receivables FEWBR 3k 26 61,989 104,093
Prepayments, deposits and other JEREE RS REM
receivables U R IE 27 712,909 589,221
Tax recoverable AR [ B 1H 3,357 14
Restricted cash SRR HIIRE 28 5,153 16,273
Cash and cash equivalents RERIRESEEY 29 320,339 777,378
4,854,136 5,462,937
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables FERTBRFR 30 (86,303) (58,721)
Accruals and other payables FEETE A N EoAth e R IE 31 (1,270,979) (1,420,025)
Provision for tax TIE R (251,375) (298,578)
Borrowings =N 32 (1,048,088) (29,577)
Obligations under finance lease B SR 33 (55) (41)
(2,656,800)  (1,806,942)
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,197,336 3,655,995
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARS 5,525,494 7,052,280
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBUIRR R

(As at 31 December 2011) (R—ZFE——4#¢+—-F=+—H)

2011 2010
—ZT——F —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ihg=s FET T
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Provision for long service payment REBBRTS © B 34 (2,160) (2,160)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIESE 35 (956,593) (1,139,046)
Borrowings B 32 (744,208) (1,325,658)
Obligations under finance lease AT BRI 33 (218) -
Convertible notes BE e 37 (2,025,995) (1,981,639)
Promissory notes A EE 38 (152,092) (135,272)
(3,881,266) (4,583,775)
Net assets EERE 1,644,228 2,468,505
Equity P
Share capital [N 39 11,215 8,991
Reserves E] 40 1,165,804 1,868,300
Equity attributable to the Company’s owners A A &1#E A A FE(LHEZS 1,177,019 1,877,291
Non-controlling interests FEERR R 467,209 591,214
Total equity DA 1,644,228 2,468,505
Ng Pui Keung You Xiaofei
{h5h 58 RER
Director Director
£ EE
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Statement of Financial Position

B BGIR AR

(As at 31 December 2011) (R—ZFE——4#¢+—-F=+—H)

2011 2010
—ZT——F —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ihg=s FET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE &R E 16 3 -
Interests in subsidiaries RHB AR Z#EE 18 - —
3 —
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUTBT B A B3R IE 18 3,322,527 3,328,228
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTRIE ~ 1R® R EHA
receivables E Y FRIE 27 479 874
Tax recoverable AR eI A 14 14
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRESEEY 29 3,692 540,599
3,326,712 3,869,715
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables fEEtREREMREFIE 31 (1,933) (541,329
Net current assets REEEFE 3,324,779 3,328,386
Total assets less current liabilities WEERRBER 3,324,782 3,328,386
Non-current liability FnBAE
Provision for long service payment RHRGE S EE 34 (230) (230)
Convertible notes Al AR R 37 (2,025,995) (1,981,639)
(2,026,225) (1,981,869
Net assets EEFHE 1,298,557 1,346,517
EQUITY =
Share capital A% A 39 11,215 8,991
Reserves HE 40 1,287,342 1,337,526
Total equity SR 1,298,557 1,346,517
Ng Pui Keung You Xiaofei
{0558 RER
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MEREMER

w3

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (&

4= —=

Tt = =+ —HILEE)

2011 2010
—E-—F —FFF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FERT FET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRFTSBLAT (E18), &5 T (1,358,373) 529,790
Adjustments for: FEE
Interest income on financial assets carried R AR AR 2 £/
at amortised costs BEMBMA 7 (2,837) (3,778)
Dividend income from listed investments ETREREZBEBMA 7 (10) -
Gain on bargain purchase of subsidiaries WEE B AR 2 iR (B
W25 41 — (5656,615)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHRNESCHEE
financial assets Yz = (4,333)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BB REME
equipment Wz 7 = 82)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREMERE (11,239) —
Deficit on revaluation of building BHETEA 206,792 -
Fair value changes on investment properties & & ¥ % A F(EEH) 59,666 —
Fair value changes on derivative financial TESRMIARNTFESE
instrument 26,573 —
Impairment loss of property, plant and Yz - BB MR
equipment BRI 62,968 —
Impairment loss of completed properties BIEHE 225K
held for sale and properties under YIERBERPYE
development BEEE 599,681 -
Share of loss of an associate RN EEE 3,110 -
Unrealised loss on financial assets at fair BATELERARZ
value through profit or loss CREEARBEEE 9 1,595 3,276
Finance costs BARSRCAR 8 234,150 14,570
Depreciation on property, plant and Y - BE MR EITE
equipment
— Owned assets — BEEE 9 34,774 9,407
— Leased assets —HEEE 9 50 55
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEDE  BEMEE
equipment 2 518 9 539 —
Loss on written off of property, plant and MY - WE KRB
equipment d 5% 9 267 2
Amortisation of leasehold land and land EiHAE LR i
use rights EzEE 9 35,631 2,115
Amortisation of capitalised deferred B E MR E SR
product development costs I 720 957
Provision for slow moving inventories T ERE 9 2,588 -
Reversal of allowance on inventories FERERD 9 - (1,249)
Provision for impairment of B RERERERERURE
trade receivables recognised s 9 84 —
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-.r\/\‘ILErﬁlﬂbi’%%

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

2011 2010
—E——F —E-%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FERT FET
Operating cash flow before working capital LEESEHER ZKE
changes Bere (103,271) (5,885)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories GFERL, (M) 9,183 (7,822)
(Increase)/decrease in properties BERPMELRBIELE
under development and 2 EEK I
completed properties held for sale (g, w (387,478) 33,578
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables GV EE
(&) 42,020 (6,470)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TEfTFRIE ~ e R EAM
other receivables JE W R TE 1 AN (436,196) (67,349)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FEfTBESRIZ (Rl 27,582 (82,799)
Increase in accruals and other payables Bzt & A &E@J}iﬁ
RIBIEAN 948,728 97,829
Cash generated from/(used in) WEEEEES, (FTH)
operations ZEE 100,568 (28,918)
Land appreciation tax paid B LB EF (27,619) -
Income tax (paid)/refunded (B, REIFTE (73,102) 261
Net cash used in operating activities REEBAAZRASEE (153) (28,657)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MEREMER

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

2011 2010
—E——F —E-%F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5E FERT FET
Cash flows from investing activities REEBRZEHERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEME  WELEE (250,355) (6,030)
Purchase of investment properties g st/ ES (13,865) -
Additions to deferred product development TNIE I E SR FA B AR A
costs (585) (7771)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash and U BE BB~ 7] (F0BR AR
cash equivalents acquired ReRESEED) 41 = 143,047
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE  BENMERE
and equipment FT{S 308 400 111
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEKREMEMSHE
properties 241,113 —
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale  HEREHESREE
financial assets FT{S 38 = 4,333
Decrease in financial assets at fair BATFEKLER AR
value through profit or loss SREERD = 709
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries EFWHEMME AR 2R
in previous year (540,000) -
Interest received B UFE 2,837 3,724
Dividend received B S 10 —
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (R, iz
investing activities HEEE (560,445) 145,123
Cash flows from financing activities MEXBCESRE
Proceeds from bank loans IRITERFSHIA 921,749 35,130
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (502,039) (2,469)
Repayment of other unsecured loan B R A AR IR E R (358,939) -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash SIRHIR R () 11,120 (4,693)
Finance costs BT AR (74,513) (3,361)
Capital contribution from non-controlling oy /N e 5
interests of a subsidiary EmHE 24,580 —
Proceeds from finance lease mEMREERIE 278 —
Repayment of obligations under finance lease %% gt &7 & &1 (46) (46)
Net cash generated from RMEEKRBZ
financing activities HEFE 22,190 24,565
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash Re kRS EEY
equivalents CRD),/$ % (538,408) 141,031
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BZHR2 KBRS
ZEY 777,378 636,435
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MEREE) s 2 81,369 (88)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December W+ _—A=+—HB2#%
RIRESEEY 320,339 777,378
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents ReERBFeEBYIN
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 320,339 777,378
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

™ AL HE S£ 4=
n\/\|:l1: ﬁ"nﬂ

2Bk

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (&

=~ —
4= —=

T+ A=+ —AIUEE)

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADAREARLRR
Fair value
reserve for
available- Share- Retained
Currency Capital  Property  for-sale based Convertible profitt/ Non-
Share Share  translation Capital Contributed redemption revaluation  financial ~compensation notes (Accumulated controlling
captal  premium*  reserve*  reseve*  surplus*  reserve*  reserve* assets* reseve*  reservet loss) Total interests Total equity
Al HR#
FL3h BAEE  YER 4EEE %ff TR REEA/ FEk
R RiEE B EARE AAEm i B LTERE  HeRR ZEERE (ZMER) At BE  EREE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS$000 HKS000  HKS$000 HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS$000
TR Thn T ThR Tin TR TR Tin T ThR Tin TR Thn TR
At 1 January 2011 W-F--§--A 8,991 365,359 (1,556) 801 283,208 m 18,071 3 16,966 602,879 562,460 1,877,291 501,214 2,468,505
Loss for the year 3517 | = = = = = = - - - - (987,081) (987,081 (177,868 (1,164,949)
Other comprehensive income EREHRERA:
forthe year:
Surplus on revauation of buldings~~ Ef T R4 - - - - - - 7,546 - - - - 1546 = 7,546
Defered tax changed fo B G ELHE
revaluation reserve - - - - - - 4,732) - - - - (4732) - (4732)
Defict on avalable-or-sae TS RAREL
financil assets - - - - - - - (1,066) = = = (1,066) = (1,066)
Share of exchang diference AEBELAELER
of an associate - - 264% - - - - - - - - 26,494 - 264%
Exchange gain on ranslation RERNZBNRER
of finencial statement Eftha
of foreign operation - - 133,533 - - - - - - - - 133,533 20283 162816
Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - 160027 - - - 2814 (1,066) - - (987,081)  (825,306)  (148,585)  (973,891)
Capital contributon from non-controling B A7 3Rt &
inferests of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 24,580 24,580
Conversion of convertible notes SRTEREE 2204 158493 - - - - - - - (35,683) - 150 - 1504
Asat 31 December 2011 R-g--fF
+ZB=t-A 11216 523852 158471 801 283,208 m 20,885 (1,031) 16,066 567,19 (d04621) 1,177,019 467209 1,644,228
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately ~— * ZERBEHOEGAVERMRRARFEEREEBD
HK$1,165,804,000 (2010: approximately HK$1,868,300,000) in the — T — T F : 491,868,300,000/8

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= A\ P L 454
RETEREEIR
(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (B#E —E——4#+ - A =+—HIFE)

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATEE ARG ER
Fair value
reserve for
avalable- Share-
Currency Capital ~ Property  for-sale based  Convertible Non-
Share Share ~ franslation Capltal Contributed redemption ~ revaluation ~ financial ~ compensation notes  Retained controling
captel  premum*  resenve’  reserve’  supls  reserve’  resenve’  assefs’ reserve’ reserve’ profitt ~ Total interests Total equity
e WA
iR EREE  MEEH  SHEE M Wk
A RIAEE i ATEE 202R LN G ATERE  MeBR REEER REEN o FORER  EnEE
HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$O000 HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tén TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEn Tér TEr  TEr TEr TEr  TEn
At 1 January 2010 RZE-%5-5-A 8991 365359 (1,487) 801 283208 m 11,639 2815 16,966 - 51,303 739,762 - 739762
Proft for the year EET - - - - - - - - - - 531067 531,067 879 530,188
Other comprehensive income EREMRENA
for the year:
Surplus on revluation of buiding ~~ EftEF R - - - - - - 6432 - - - - 64 - 6432
Surplus on avalable-for-sale THHELHEERY
financial assets - - - - - - - 1,678 - - - 1,578 - 1,678
Realisation of change in farvalue Wt HESBEEY
of avallable-for-sale financiel ATEEHER
assets - - - - - - - (4,358) - - - 439 - (4358)
Bxchange loss on transiation BERISBEBRR
of finencil statements ZEXER
of foreign operations - - (69) - - - - - - - - 69) (19 89
Total comprehensive income ER2ENAEE
forthe year - - 69 - - - B4R 27 - — 831067 534,650 (898 533782
Acquisiion of subsidiaries (note 41)  WEEMBAA (M5 41) - - - - - - - - - - - - A2 59112
Issug of convertble notes EITRREE - - - - - - - - - 602879 - 602879 - 602879
Asat 31 December 2010 RZE-5%
+-A=1+-A 8991 365359 (1,55) 801 283208 m 18,071 3 16966 602879 5682460 1,877,291 591214 2468505
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately — * ZERBHELEOEREMBRRERGEREEN

HK$1,165,804,000 (2010: approximately HK$1,868,300,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position. T e

a4

1,165,804,0007 7T ( — & — Z 4 : #91,868,300,000 7%

Talent Property Group Limited ¥k ZE &£ B AR A &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Talent Property Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda and domiciled in
Hong Kong. The addresses of its registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section to the annual report. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as
the “Group” hereafter.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2012.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to
176 have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed in
note 3.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

2.

46

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

21

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
buildings and financial instruments classified as
available-for-sale or at fair value through profit or loss
which are stated as fair value. Inventory in respect of
precious metal is stated at fair value less cost to sell.
The measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities,
at the end of reporting period. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see note 2.3 below) made up to 31
December.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are excluded
from consolidation from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised
losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries
have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests represents the portion of the
profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary
attributable to equity interests that are not owned by
the Group and are not the Group’s financial liabilities.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income
within a subsidiary is attributed to the non-controlling
interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognizes (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (jii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the
power to control the financial and operating policies
SO as to obtain benefits from their activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity.

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition of
subsidiaries (other than those under common control)
is accounted for by applying the acquisition method.
This involves the estimation of fair value of all
identifiable assets and liabilities, including contingent
liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date,
regardless of whether or not they were recorded in the
financial statements of the subsidiary prior to
acquisition. On initial recognition, the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their fair
values, which are also used as the bases for
subsequent measurement in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policies.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable at the reporting
date. All dividends whether received out of the
investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are
recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEZBE#E (%)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Associates (Continued) 2.4 HEENTE ()

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the class of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil
and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

For investments in associates recognised using the
equity method, the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount of the investment
as a whole with its carrying amount and recognised in
profit or loss. A reversal of impairment losses is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Annual Report 2011 £3R

FAREEDEHERE R RREER
ZE RS MEMRERERGE
EHRARKEBDPRER  MA%
B D5 BB 2 R 2 WEB IR R TRIZ EY
Hip2mE W AR B AELRES ZEEA
BERPEMEEBRAD BHER

B hHE R Bz BRBHE
B N Rz sy - AEB 2
DRET - BT BREREE - ERAK
S B AYEEE S E B ERARBIR
BRABNHANER - st s - A
KBRS RRBEEDEAFREE
FIEE FHEARASBRN % & A BT
FFRE e REEE 2 REE -

SN
%

&
4%

Br % B

BARZBREREAMEENEELR
BN - AR S B B HL B R Rl AT
RHMmELZ REREEL T 4 -
AR EBRWIRE XA RE S
IR

SRAR AR 2B E A RIREM
5 AEREBRZTERBREZ
Egn ol SR EEREEFLE
WHNBE TR - BERE B
FE LA AN B 1 A R MR RUE S 18
PrEEE 2 BEREE AR - BE 2R
ERENERELD 2 FE A B -

49



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

2.

50

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Business combination

The acquisition of businesses in accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of fair values, at the date
of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred. The acquire’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business combinations”
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in the profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong Dollars (HK$’'000),
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the reporting date,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the reporting date retranslation of monetary
assets and liabilities are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined and are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into Hong
Kong Dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong Dollars at the closing rates
at the reporting date. Income and expenses have
been converted into the Hong Kong Dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the currency translation
reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods
and the use by others of the Group’s assets yielding
interest and dividends, net of rebates and discounts.
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
customer. This is usually taken as the time when the
goods are delivered and the customer has accepted
the goods.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when
the risks and rewards of properties are transferred to
the purchasers, which is when the construction of
relevant properties has been completed and the
properties are ready for delivery to the purchasers
pursuant to the sale agreement and collectability of
related receivables is reasonably assured. To the
extent that the Group has to perform further work on
the properties already delivered to the purchasers, the
relevant expenses shall be recognised simultaneously.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under
current liabilities as forward sales deposit and
instalments received.

Revenue from sales of listed investments are
recognised upon transfer of the ownership to others.
Trading fees and trading tariff on securities are
recognised on trade date basis.

Revenue from trading of precious metal is recognised,
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership; nor
effective control over the goods sold.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Rental income of property leasing under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Hotel revenue from room rentals, food and beverage
sales and other ancillary services is recognised when
the services are rendered.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
except for buildings situated on land held under
operating leases.

Buildings situated on land held under operating leases
are stated at revalued amounts, being fair value at the
date of revaluation less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any subsequent impairment losses.
Fair value is determined in appraisals by external
professional valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure
that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair value
at the reporting date. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the
asset.

Any surplus arising on revaluation of buildings is
recognised in other comprehensive income and is
accumulated in the property revaluation reserve in
equity, unless the carrying amount of that asset has
previously suffered a revaluation decrease or
impairment loss as described in note 2.9. To the
extent that any decrease has previously been
recognised in profit or loss, a revaluation increase is
credited to profit or loss with the remaining part of the
increase dealt with in other comprehensive income. A
decrease in net carrying amount of buildings arising
on revaluations is recognised in other comprehensive
income to the extent of the revaluation surplus in the
property revaluation reserve relating to the same asset
and the remaining decrease recognised in profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings held under leasing agreements are
depreciated over their expected useful lives or over
the term of lease, if shorter.

Depreciation on other assets, other than construction-
in-progress (“CIP”), is provided to write off the cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:
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Buildings BF 2-3.03%
Leasehold improvements HEEE 5-50%
Plant and machinery B K ies 10-20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipments R BRI NERE 10-33.33%
Motor vehicles AE 20%

The asset’s residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss. Any revaluation surplus
remaining in equity is transferred to retained earnings
on the disposal of buildings.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

CIP, which represents properties under construction,
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Cost comprises direct costs incurred during the
periods of construction and installation. No
depreciation is provided on CIP and CIP is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and
land use rights, deferred product development costs
and interests in associate and subsidiaries are subject
to impairment testing.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under the Group’s accounting policy, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease according to that policy. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

As assessment is made at the end of each reporting
periods as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment loss may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset. A reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group, is classified as investment property.
Property that is currently being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases. Land held under operating leases
are classified and accounted for as investment
property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met (see note 2.11).

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is measured at fair value. Where fair value of
investment property under construction is not reliably
measurable, the property is measured at cost until the
earlier of the date construction is completed or the
date at which fair value becomes reliably measurable.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. If these information
are not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets
or discounted cash flow projections.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Investment properties (Continued)
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210 REWE (&)

If an item of inventories becomes an investment
property because its use has been changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and

WRBEFERNEREMAR—IAR
B WIAR 2 REERENER
BERZAFERNEHZ ZRN AR

the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is Ao
recognised in profit or loss.
2.11 Leases 211 HE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the

Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as an
investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating
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lease, the fair value of which cannot be mMEAFEEFHEE
measured separately from the fair value of FrEE@ TRl & &£ W
a building situated thereon at the inception ZATFESRFEZ L

of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the
building is clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception
of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Leases (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Assets acquired under finance leases
Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments,
of such assets, are included in fixed assets and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance lease.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under
finance lease agreements corresponds to those
applied to comparable acquired assets. The
corresponding finance lease liability is reduced
by lease payments less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges as the lessee
Where the Group has the right to use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the time pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease charges as the lessor
Assets leased out under operating leases are
included in investment properties in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
Rental receivable under the operating leases are
credited to profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Deferred product development costs

Costs associated with research activities are
expensed in profit or loss as they occur. Costs that
are directly attributable to development activities are
recognised as intangible assets (deferred product
development costs) provided they meet the following
recognition requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(i) there is intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

(i)  the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible
asset is demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or sale;

(v)  sufficient technical, financial and other resources
are available for completion; and

(vi)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset can be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development activities along with an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads. The costs of
development of internally generated software,
products or knowhow that meet the above recognition
criteria are recognised as intangible assets. They are
subject to the same subsequent measurement
method as acquired intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

Deferred product development costs acquired
separately are recognised initially at cost. After initial
recognition, deferred product development costs with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for deferred product development costs
with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 2 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Inventories

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less
applicable variable selling expenses and
anticipated cost to completion.

Cost comprises both the prepaid lease
payments for the land and development cost of
the property. Development cost of properties
comprises construction costs, capitalised
borrowing costs and other direct development
cost according to the Group’s accounting policy
and directly attributable cost incurred during the
development period. On completion, the
properties under development are transferred to
completed properties held for sale. Properties
under development are classified as current
assets unless those will not be realised in one
normal operating cycle.

Completed properties held for sale
Completed properties remaining unsold at the
end of each reporting period are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable
to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference
to the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable estimated
selling expenses to make the sale.

Trading goods

(@)  Electronic items are carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average
basis, and in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and
applicable selling expenses.

2,

FTESTHHEME @)

213 78

(i)

(i)

(iii)

BREFYF
ERPYETIER AL AT ER
FEME T ZBIEETIR - 7]
IR EF ARKIAT AT EI
ZER BERZEFBIEER
X RIEFHERK AT

RABRE L2 N HE IR
EMEZBERRA - M2 %
Eﬁﬁ“%ﬁ AEBEEIK

RZBERK - BRLEEK
AR Jo Bty B B B R BN B 1R B
REINEL 2 B BTN -
RIEKE  BRTPVMEBESE
FHHEZEERYE - BR
THEIBRRBDEE  FRIF
TEREFKEBHAERR
LR -

HEHEZ EEKYE
REREHEERDAERZE
BRI E TR AR S ] B IR F
BEmEPZBEETIR -

A BT
PR o

EMEZEAER

Zﬁﬁ’%f‘iﬁzﬂfa%ﬁﬁwﬁZﬁﬁ
HERXETE -

XZHm

A TFIEE T AR AR K A]
SRFEME T HRE
HEREE  RERSD
HBEKEMES  BEE
EHK - BEST RE
BHO 2 BERA - A
BHRE A D LR T
2 ibE S ER A
R BB SR -

Talent Property Group Limited 7 X1t E £ EBR A F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (&

BB HwRNET

EoF——

FH-A=+—ALEE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Inventories (Continued)

(iii) Trading goods (Continued)

(b)  Precious metals are measured at fair value
less cost to sell, any unrealised gain/loss
arising from changes of fair value are
recognised as in profit or loss.

(0 Food and beverage and other
consumables of hotel are carried at the
lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined using the first in first
out basis.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.15 Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than interests in subsidiaries and associate are
set out below. Financial assets are classified into the
following categories:

— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— loans and receivables
— available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is determined and recognised based on the
classification of the financial asset.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term, or it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a
recent pattern of short-term profit making.
Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract
may be designated as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
if the following criteria are met:

—  the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
assets or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; or

—  the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and information
about the group of financial assets is
provided internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

— the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Fair value is determined by
reference to active market transactions or using
a valuation technique where no active market
exists. Fair value gain or loss does not include
any dividend or interest earned on these
financial assets. Dividend and interest income is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies in note 2.7 to these
consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Non-derivative financial assets that do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories
of financial assets are classified as available-for-
sale financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gain or
loss arising from a change in the fair value
excluding any dividend and interest income is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the fair value reserve
for available-of-sale financial assets in equity,
except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets,
until the financial asset is derecognised, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary
assets denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the reporting date.
The change in fair value attributable to
translation differences that result from a change
in amortised cost of the asset is recognised in
profit or loss, and other changes are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

(Continued)

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that
are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each reporting date subsequent to
initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than at
fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measureable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the group
and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

M

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which
the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding
what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in profit and loss as
impairment loss. That amount is measured as
the difference between the asset’s acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are
not recognised in profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income. Impairment losses in
respect of debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of
impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Financial assets other than financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and trade
receivables that are stated at amortised cost,
impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly. Where the
recovery of trade receivables is considered
doubtful but not remote, the impairment losses
for doubtful receivables are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery of trade receivables is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account in
respect of that receivable are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses in respect of unquoted equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates. All changes to current
tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component
of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences, will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable
nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each end of the reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilized. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
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date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive

income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(@  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@ the entity has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted from share premium (net of any
related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

2.18 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries. Contributions are
recognised as an expense as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. Contributions are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as employees render services during
the year. The Group’s obligations under the plans is
limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable.
Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has
no further obligation for the payment of retirement and
other post retirement benefits of its employees. The
assets of these plans are held separately from those
of the Group in independently administrated funds
managed by the PRC government.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

2.19 Share-based employee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted after
7 November 2002 and had not vested on 1 January
2005 are recognised in the financial statements. The
Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees, directors and other eligible participants.

All services received in exchange for the grant of any
share-based compensation are measured at their fair
values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the equity instruments awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).
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2.

72

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Share-based employee compensation

(Continued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if
vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the equity instruments
granted vest immediately unless the compensation
qualifies for recognition as asset, with a corresponding
increase in the share options reserve in equity. If
vesting conditions apply, the expense is recognised
over the vesting period, based on the best available
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of equity instruments
that are expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number of
equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. After vesting
date, when the vested share options are later forfeited
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

2.20 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
accruals and other payables, obligations under finance
lease, borrowings, convertible notes and promissory
notes.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing cost (see note 2.26).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESHBEHBE®@)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Financial liabilities (Continued) 2.20 TRIBE(E)
Borrowings EE

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial value
less the capital element of lease repayments (see note
2.11).

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued on conversion
and the value of the consideration that would be
received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a
liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability components of the
convertible notes is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have a
conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the note is converted or redeemed.
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2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Financial liabilities (Continued)

2.21

Convertible notes (Continued)

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together
with the carrying amount of the liability component at
the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the note is redeemed, the capital reserve is
released directly to retained profits.

Promissory notes

Promissory notes are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method.

Other financial liabilities

Trade payables and accruals and other payables are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of
the allocation of purchase price to the assets and
liabilities acquired in a business combination. They are
initially measured at fair value at the date of acquisition
and subsequently measured at the higher of the
amount that would be recognised in a comparable
provision as described above and the amount initially
recognised less any accumulated amortisation, if
appropriate.

2.22 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within accruals and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised if and when it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee and the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

U)

(i)

(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

76

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEZBE#E (%)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Segment reporting 2.24 HERE

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive
directors for their decisions about resources allocation
to the Group’s business components and for their
review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major products and
service lines.

The executive directors have identified the Group’s six
products and service lines as operating segments as
follows:

(@  Electronic products consists of the manufacturing
and sales of electronic products;

(b)  Equity and commodity investments consists of
investments in equity securities and precious
metals;

(c) Provision of loan finance consists of loan
financing services;

(d)  Properties development consists of the sales of
properties which were completed;

(e)  Properties investment consists of the leasing of
properties;

® Hotel operation consists of the operating the
hotel.

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried
out at arms length prices.
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2.

78

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.24 Segment reporting (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that operating lease
charges, gain on bargain purchases of subsidiaries,
gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets,
fair value changes on derivative financial instruments,
share of loss of an associate, finance costs and
corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not included in arriving at the operating
results of the operating segment.

Segment assets are all operating assets that are
employed by a segment in its operating activities and
that either directly attributable to the segment or can
be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. In
addition, corporate assets which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which
primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities are all operating liabilities that are
employed by a segment in its operating activities and
that either directly attributable to the segment or can
be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. In
addition, corporate liabilities which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which
primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

2.25 Leasehold land and land use rights

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The determination if an arrangement is or contains a
lease and the lease is an operating lease is detailed in
note 2.11. Amortisation is calculated on a straight line
basis over the term of the lease/right of use except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the time pattern of benefits to be derived by the Group
from use of the land.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHHEHE®)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.26 Borrowing costs 2.26 fFEERA

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are
expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

2.27 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an associate
or a jointly controlled entity over the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to cash-generating units or
groups of cash generating units, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment. In respect of
associates or jointly controlled entities, the carrying
amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount
of the interest in the associate or jointly controlled
entity and the investment as a whole is tested for
impairment whenever there is objective evidence of
impairment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.27 Goodwill (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a
jointly controlled entity is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, an associate or
a jointly controlled entity during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included
in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(i

80

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendment  Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for
First-time Adopters

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 Amendment  Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation
— Classification of Rights Issues

HK(FRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement
HK(FRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in May 2010

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010
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e RS ERAR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

(i

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(Continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of HKAS 24 (Revised), and amendments to
HKFRS 3, HKAS 1 and HKAS 27 included in
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010, the adoption of the
new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and
revised HKFRSs are as follows:

@)

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the
definitions of related parties. The new definitions
emphasise a symmetrical view of related party
relationships and clarify the circumstances in
which persons and key management personnel
affect related party relationships of an entity. The
revised standard also introduces an exemption
from the general related party disclosure
requirements for transactions with a government
and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the same
government as the reporting entity. The
accounting policy for related parties has been
revised to reflect the changes in the definitions
of related parties under the revised standard.
The adoption of the revised standard did not
have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group. Details of the related
party transactions, including the related
comparative information, are included in note 46
to the consolidated financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

() New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

(Continued)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May
2010 sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs. There are separate transitional
provisions for each standard. While the adoption
of some of the amendments may result in
changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments has had a significant financial
impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group. Details of the key amendments
most applicable to the Group are as follows:

(b)

82

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: The
amendment clarifies that the amendments
to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that
eliminate the exemption for contingent
consideration do not apply to contingent
consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates
precede the application of HKFRS 3 (as
revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendment limits the
scope of measurement choices for non-
controlling interests. Only the components
of non-controlling interests that are
present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value
or at the present ownership instruments’
proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis
is required by another HKFRS.

The amendment also added explicit
guidance to clarify the accounting
treatment for non-replaced and voluntarily
replaced share-based payment awards.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

() New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

(Continued)

(b)  (Continued)
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HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies that
an analysis of each component of other
comprehensive income can be presented
either in the statement of changes in
equity or in the notes to the financial
statements. The Group elects to present
the analysis of each component of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements: The amendment
clarifies that the consequential
amendments from HKAS 27 (as revised in
2008) made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and
HKAS 31 shall be applied prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009 or earlier if HKAS 27 is applied
earlier.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(ii)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not
yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time

3. BRAFFIRNEER 2B RMBRE

2B ()
(i) CEMEERERIET LS
BB BRELER

AEBEZEUNBEREATPAEEAT
I B AR E M AR R HTRT AR IERT
BRUHMEER -

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

Adoption of Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards — Severe

Hyperinflation and Removal of

Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters’
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial

Instruments: Disclosures

— Transfers of Financial Assets'
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial

Instruments: Disclosures

— Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities*
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements*
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements*
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities*
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement*

HKAS 1 Amendments

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income®

HKAS 12 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets?

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits*

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements*

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures*

HKAS 32 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial

HK(FRIC)-Int 20

Instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
8 E?f;gtive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
5 Ef'f:egtive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
6 ng%gtive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(ii)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Further information about those changes that are
expected to significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Instead of classifying financial assets into four
categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or
fair value, on the basis of both the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets. This aims to improve and simplify the
approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of
HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the
“Additions”) and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current
derecognition principles of financial instruments of
HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried forward
unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made
to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value
option (“FVO”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder of the
change in fair value is presented in profit or loss,
unless presentation of the fair value change in respect
of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO
are scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2015.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

86

(ii)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition of
control which is used to determine which entities are
consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS 10
require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS
27 and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements that addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements. It also includes the
issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosures requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities that are previously included in
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also introduces
a number of new disclosure requirements for these
entities.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27
and HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10
and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
10 and HKFRS 12, and the consequential
amendments to HKAS 27 and HKAS 28 from 1
January 2013.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(ii)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The
standard does not change the circumstances in which
the Group is required to use fair value, but provides
guidance on how fair value should be applied where
its use is already required or permitted under other
HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13
prospectively from 1 January 2013.

Amendments to HKAS 1 change the grouping of
items presented in OCI. Items that could be
reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a future
point in time (for example, upon derecognition or
settlement) would be presented separately from items
which will never be reclassified. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.

HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of
deferred tax for investment property measured at fair
value. The amendments introduce a rebuttable
presumption that deferred tax on investment property
measured at fair value should be determined on the
basis that its carrying amount will be recovered
through sale. Furthermore, the amendments
incorporate the requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int
21 Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-
Depreciable Assets that deferred tax on non-
depreciable assets, measured using the revaluation
model in HKAS 16, should always be measured on a
sale basis. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 12
Amendments from 1 January 2012.
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3.

88

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

(i) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments
that range from fundamental changes to simple
clarifications and re-wording. The revised standard
introduces significant changes in the accounting for
defined benefit pension plans including removing the
choice to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and
losses. Other changes include modifications to the
timing of recognition for termination benefits, the
classification of short-term employee benefits and
disclosures of defined benefit plans. The Group
expects to adopt HKAS 19 (2011) from 1 January
2013.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experiences and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

(@) Critical accounting estimates and

assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4,

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Income taxes and deferred taxation
Some subsidiaries of the Group operate in the
PRC and are subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

PRC land appreciation taxes

Some subsidiaries of the Group are subject to
land appreciation taxes in the PRC. However,
the implementation and settlement of these
taxes varies among various tax jurisdictions in
cities of the PRC, and those subsidiaries have
not finalised all of their land appreciation taxes
calculation and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount
of the land appreciation taxes. The Group
recognised these land appreciation taxes based
on management’s best estimates according to
the interpretation of the tax rules. The final tax
outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences
will impact the income tax expense and tax
provisions in the periods in which such taxes
have been finalised with local tax authorities.
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4,

90

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

()

(iii)

(iv)

Depreciation, useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment
The Group’s management exercises its
judgement in estimating the useful lives and
residual values of the depreciable property, plant
and equipment other than CIP. The estimated
useful lives and residual values reflect the
management’s estimate of the periods the
Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets.

The Group depreciates its property, plant and
equipment other than CIP in accordance with
the accounting policies stated in note 2.8. The
carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is disclosed in note 16.

Net realisable value of inventories
related to electronic products

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the
historical experiences of selling products of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. The Group’s
management will reassess the estimations at the
reporting date.

4.

RS aT k5 &l ()

(a

RS RERR (4)

(iii)

(iv)

Y BERREIITE
o] R R R E 1
AEBEEEBRAGTETEZ
ME - BEERB(ERTRE
BRON) Z AT 2 AR A B R R (B
BERAFLHIE - AEHAER
FHERHBEERRYEANERE
Bt i1 x5 8 E A EEUR
A BN g 2 fhEt o

BRI 2 R
BESH M - R AR (T
RIRBRIN ZHESE
% BRRRE 2 EEERK
E16HE -

BHEFERFEZTEH
FE
FREZAZHFEANAEE
BBREPIER 2 fhst EER
SRR ER S o WEMHE
THRIBIRITIOR K S & R E
2 BERRAEREEL - I
AEBFHFERERKRZITE
BEIMER A Z 17 ) 1 & B
2o BEESNERERRER
AHE BB

Talent Property Group Limited 7 X1t E £ EBR A F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BEETHEFTRAE @)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(@) Critical accounting estimates and (@) BAREFHEFTRMAER ()
assumptions (Continued)

(v) Estimates for net realisable value of (v) BREPYPFREETHFEL
properties under development and EY) 0 a2 FE 2 45
completed properties held for sale
As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amounts RZE——F+=_RA=+—
of properties under development and completed B ZERTFDERDERTIFE
properties held for sale are approximately LEWMEZERAESINA
HK$3,225,400,000 (2010: approximately 3,225,400,0008 T(ZE—F
HK$3,017,941,000) and approximately % 493,017,941,000% 7T) M 4
HK$482,931,000 (2010: approximately 482,931,000 t( ==& — =
HK$902,593,000), respectively. The Group 1 49902,593,000/8 7T ) ° A
assesses the carrying amounts of properties EEBEEEFYERSED
under development and properties held for sale EWE A BIRIERIZH A&
according to their net realisable value based on FREMNGEREE - ERF
the realisability of these properties. Net realisable MENRAIERFEN2EER
value for properties under development is BEZI MR E BN
determined by reference to management’s o RERR R EHER T R
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing TERTER A AN (B3 T A)
market conditions, less applicable variable METE - HIEHEMHE A&
selling expenses and the anticipated costs to REEDNSEEEEREER
completion (including land costs). Net realisable MRREAR A FIEERE
value for properties held for sale is determined E ©

by reference to management’s estimates of the
selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

(vi) Estimated impairment on receivables (i) FEUERF R E 5 E
The Group’s management assesses the REEEEE T EYGRIEZ
collectability of receivables. This estimate is AW EIRRE - BT IRRR
based on the past collection, credit history and FWFHIBER EERBEEAE
ageing analysis of the Group’s receivables, as E EUCGRIERE ST - ARER
well as the current economy and market BB R iR mEE o K
condition. Impairment on receivables is made BREREEEE Z(EEFR
based on the estimation of the future cash flow IR & M A R R EBRF &5
expected to arise and the original effective EREMEL - AEEEEE
interest rate in order to calculate the present TE B TF PR MR IE 2R E N 1
value. The Group’s management determines s B B E R AT A B YRR IER
impairment of its receivables on a regular basis (ER

and reassesses the impairment of receivables at
the reporting date.
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92

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(@) Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(vii) Impairment of interests in subsidiaries

The Group’s management follows the guidance
of HKAS 36 Impairment of assets, in
determining whether interests in subsidiaries are
impaired requires the assumption made
regarding the financial health of near-term
business outlook for the investment, including
factors such as industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

Based on the Group’s assessment there is no
requirement to provide for any allowance for
impairment in value of interests in subsidiaries.
The Company’s carrying amount of interests in
subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 was HK$16
(2010: HK$16).

(viii) Impairment of interests in associate

The Group’s management follows the guidance
of HKAS 36 Impairment of assets, in
determining whether interests in associate are
impaired requires the assumption made
regarding the financial health of near-term
business outlook for the investment, including
factors such as industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

Based on the Group’s assessment there is no
requirement to provide for any allowance for
impairment in value of interests in associate. The
Group’s carrying amount of interests in
associate at 31 December 2011 was
approximately HK$562,772,000 (2010:
approximately HK$539,388,000).

4.

RS aT k5 &l ()

(a

RS RERR (4)

(vii) R A Al A

AEBEEEEREBGE
AIF 36 MEERMERIES - &
BEERMBARZERE TR
B TERAMRKREREE
HRBH S 2B REEEE
HEER ERERETERDH
KRB MREZEUAREERY
BREREFHE -

RIE AN B 51 - BABRRHT
J& 1~ Al fEa VE AT AR E B
R ——F+=ZA
=+—8  ARERHERQR
Bz EEEAI6EBTL(ZE
—ZF 167T) °

(viii) REEE L a2 #mRE

AEEEREEEREEGHE
A 36 EERMEMIES - &
ERBERRIZBER TRE
o AR AR ERR R
EBA R M BRREREED
B&  EPBHBITERD R
B MR EE AR ENRTTE
RenEFERE -

BIEAEE TS - BARNE
ENR) S ERE R AR
He R ZZT——F+= A
=+—8 XRFREERT
2 HETZEEEDN A
562,772,000 t( =& — &
£F 1 #9539,388,00087T) °
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(ix) Estimation of fair value of investment

()

)

properties and buildings

Investment properties and buildings are revalued
at the end of each reporting period based on
the appraised market value provided by
independent professional qualified valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In
making the estimation, information from current
prices in an active market for similar properties
is considered and assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period are used.

Recognition and allocation of
construction cost on properties under
development

Development costs of properties are recorded
as properties under development during the
construction stage and will be transferred to
completed properties held for sale upon
completion. Apportionment of these costs will
be recognised in the income statement upon
the recognition of the sale of the properties.
Before the final settlement of the development
costs and other costs relating to the sale of
properties, these costs are accrued by the
Group based on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may
divide the development projects into phases.
Specific costs directly related to the
development of a phase are recorded as the
cost of such phase. Costs that are common to
phases are allocated to individual phases based
on the estimated saleable area of the entire
project.

When the final settlement of costs and the
related cost allocation is different from the initial
estimates, any increase or decrease in the
development costs and other costs would affect
the profit or loss in future years.
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4.

RS aT k5 &l ()

(a

RS RERR (4)

(ix)

)

REWEREF 2 2 FEMG
at
REMELEBFREEREH
RRFEFLEXRE BB AER
Rt EFEMEER - AR
[MEDREE TREAE A
MRREXTHRERRTE
ArEERERTFEEAE
R o PMEHMAR R EE AU
MEZRRMGZREER
WA A ERRIER B SH
Rz IR B

ER R DB RIER YR 22
E I

MEZFRBERAREZERAT
BARERPWE  LHREK
BEBERHFHEECERY
¥ o RERAZ D BB NHER
HEMERNBRRER - R
B BERIR — B B A e 3
EVRME/ 2 EMARAAT > A
SERBERE 2 &ZEMEE
A -

BRMER  AEEHER
HB DT  ERBEERERX
—HZRAREBZEERAE
BRI A - ZEER
HIHE KA RIEEERE
Z AEH A S E m AR ) BC T 18 Bl
TR -

516 — DR B2 AR R ARREAR
AP RES VTR -
BR A B R A 2 R A
TR 2 183 -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

(b)

(i)

Deferred product development costs
Careful judgement by the Group’s management
is applied when deciding whether the
recognition requirements for deferred product
development costs have been met. This is
necessary as the economic success of any
product development is uncertain and may be
subject to future technical problems at the time
of recognition. Judgements are based on the
best information available at each reporting
date. In addition, all internal activities related to
the research and development of new software,
products or know how are continuously
monitored by the Group’s management.

4.

RS aT k5 &l ()

(b)

FERAREBE R 2 EEH i

(i)

AL 2 m P 32 AN
AEEEEERREREE M
PR ARE N A HERRER
AfFHEIEHE - AR REE
TE AE ] A P 3% 2 SEBRCR
BRTBER BN R B 2 R
MERE - A BHOEER Y
o HE VAR BE WA B HIA
BZREERMEL - 1N B
Mt Emusitz
PIBENREDHESAREE
BEMEEL -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
The Group is organised into six (2010: six) business units,
based on which information is prepared and reported to the
Group’s chief decision makers, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of performance.

7 EER
AEEMRBIAB(CE—FEF  NE) EH
B B AENERD BRI RAME
¥BEMRRAMENRMAEEEER
AR -

Information of the Group’s operating and reportable AEE 2 EERAIRED B 2ERS RN
segments are shown as follows: T

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE-ZE——F+ZHA=+—-HLFE

Equityand  Provision
Electronic  commodity ofloan  Properties  Properties Hotel
products  investments finance development investment  operation Total
FER Rt
ETER BhkE EXRE NERR nERE BT ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET TER TR TET TR TR TER
Revenue from external customer ~ RESNREF2UiE
Reportable segment revenue BECHEL 318,903 5,709 - 297,256 27,195 46,722 696,385
Reportable segment profit/(loss) ~ THES LR/ (BiE) 4,216 (1,496) 1) (626,240) (25,616) (374,299)  (1,023,456)
— Products development income: - ERFERA 1,558 - - - - - 1,558
— Compensation from vendors -En7HE 121 - - - - - 121
— Exchange gains — Y 279 = = - - - 279
— Bad debt recovery - SRle - - - 22,079 - - 2,079
— Written off of long outstanding - HERERES
payable FEft R - - - 1,680 - - 1,680
— Depreciation on property, plant - 0% BEREE
and equipment e (5,561) - - - - (18,657) (24,218)
— Amortisation of leasehold land - BETHRTH
and land use rights FRERH (62) - - - - (35,379) (35,441)
— Busingss tax and other levies - BERREMEE - - - (3,126) (4,640) (2,617) (10,383)
— Distribution costs - HERE (7,160) - - (26,675) - - (33,835)
— Unrealised loss on financial assets ~ — A TEEBHEAE
at fair value through proft and LEREEIR
loss SRR - (1,595) - - - - (1,595)
— Loss on written off of property, - WEnE BER
plant and equipment REER (16) - - - - - (16)
— Amortisation of deferred - BEERFRNE
product development costs B (720) - - - - - (720)
— Pre-opening expenses - AR - - - - - (25,158) (25,158)
— Provision for slow moving inventories  — B 5% & (2,588) - - - - - (2,588)
— Impairment losses of completed - BEREZERM
properties held for sale and NEREERNZ
properties under development HEER - - - (599,681) - - (599,681)
— Fair vale changes on investment - REWELTEED
properties - - - - (59,666) - (59,666)
— Gain on disposal of investment - HERENENG
properties - - - - 11,239 - 11,239
— Impairment losses of property, - W% BERRE
plant and equipment HEEE - - - - - (62,968) (62,968)
— Deficit on revaluation of buiding - EffRFE4 - - - - - (206,792 (206,792)
— Finance costs - BARK - - - - - (22,036) (22,036)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oIEREE
As at 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+=-H=+—H

Equity and Provision

Electronic  commodity ofloan  Properties  Properties Hotel
products  investments finance development investment  operation Total
51 i
E7ER Bk e NEYR ESE BEERE a%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR Fhén TR TR TR TiEn

Reportable segment assets TREINNEE
— Property, plant and equipment - 0% BERRE 42,005 - - - - 571,485 613,490
— Properties under development - KR = = - 3225400 - - 3,225,400
— Completed properties held for sale — #{EHEZRRT
VIS - - - 482,931 - - 482,931
— Investment properties - RENE - - - - 927,516 - 927,516
— Leageholdland and land use rights ~ — BEH# R+
ERE 1,982 - - - - 1,130,215 1,132,197
— Deferred product development costs  — EREDERRA 616 - - - - - 616
— Financial assets at fair valus through ~ — AT EEIEX NS
proft or loss LEBEE - 5,511 - - - - 5,577
— Inventories -FE 32,976 - - - - 3,253 36,229
— Trade receivables - BYER 30,097 - - 25,670 2,461 3,821 61,989
— Prepayments, deposits and - BRFE  &ER
other receivables EhrbEE 3,161 - - 19,410 452 1,697 24,720
— Cash and cash equivalents -RERELEED 32,736 240 5 - - 7912 40,893
— Restricted cash - RS - - - 2,540 - - 2,540
— Tax recoverable - THERE 641 - - 2,657 - - 3,208
Additions to non-current segment ENTFEZERD
assets during the year NHEE 7,317 - - - 13,865 318,547 339,729
Reportable segment liabilities THEIHEE
— Trade payables - ENERR (34,424) - - (48,211) - (3,668) (86,303)
— Accruals and other payables - EHERRAMENR
oV (25,560) (80) (0) (43957  (166878) (148287 (684780
— Obligations under finance lease - BEMEAE (279) - - - - - (219)
— Borrowings - &5 = = - (245,800) - (716,868) (962,668)
— Provision for taxation - FBkE - - - (133,782) (30,725) - (164,507)
— Provision for long senvice payment  — REREMRARE (1,383) - - - - - (1,383)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEERE
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZZT— $+:H =T—HIEFE
Equity and Provision
Electronic ~ commoaty of loan Properties Properties Hotel
products  investments finance  development  investment operation Total

E5R i
5TER EmRE ERaE NELR VES T BEER hE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL T TEL TEL TR TEL

Revenue from external customer % BEAREEZWE

Reportable segment revenue TREH Bl 345,398 - - 61,944 2,060 - 409,402
Reportable segment profit/(loss) ~ THES LR/ (BiE) 10,241 162 (20 115 1,855 (15863 10,490
— Products development income - ERFERA 1877 - - - - - 1877
— Compensation from vendors -En7HE 89 - - - - - 89
— Bxchange gains - il 40 1,565 - - - - 1,605
— Unrealised gain on inventory - RATENG 2 RS

at fair value LAERNE - 1,267 - - - - 1267
— Realised gain on financial assets &t — RATAGEZNE

fair value through profit and loss JRBBEVE

dillea) - 234 - - - - 234

— Gain on disposal of property, plant - HEWZ - BER

and equipment BUPAc & - - - - - 8
— Depreciation on property, plant - 0% BERXE

and equipment & (6,185) - - - - - (6,185)
— Amortisation of leasehold land -fAELHRL

andland use rights b 5= (62) - - - - (1,863) (1,925)
— Business tax and other levies - RERRENAE - - - (17) (205) - (222)
— Distribution costs — PHKA 6,579 - - (11) - - 6,584)
— Unrealised loss on financiel assets ~ — RATFESES\E

at fair value through proft CEBEEIA

andloss 3] - (3,276) - - - - (3276)
— Loss on written off of property, - #inE  BER

plant and equipment REVER 2 - - - - - ]
— Amortisation of deferred - EEERRENA

product development costs 3= (%7) - - - - - (957)
— Income tax - fi5H (956) - - - - - (956)
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5.

98

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oHFER @
As at 31 December 2010 RZE—TF+ZA=+—H
Equity and Provision
Electronic ~ commodity of loan Properties Properties Hotel
products  investments finance  development  investment operation Total
FHR it
5TER Bnia EYRE NELR VELE BEEE @g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn ThL ThEn Thn ThL Tin Thn
Reportable segment assets TREINNEE
— Property, plant and equipment - 0% BERRE 38,742 - - - - 515,240 553,982
— Properties under development - GE - - - 301794 - - 301794
— Completed properties held for sale — #{EHEZRRT
VIS - - - 902,593 - - 902,593
— Investment properties - RENE - - - - 1146409 - 1146409
— Leageholdland and land use rights ~ — BEH# R+
ERE 2,044 - - - - 1,110,587 1,112,631
— Deferred product development costs  — EREDERRA 751 - - - - - 751
— Financial assets at fair valus through ~ — AT EEIEX NS
proft or loss LEBEE - 7172 - - - - 7172
— Inventories -G 42456 5,544 - - - - 48,000
— Trade receivables - BYER 41,364 - - 50,878 2,8% - 104,093
— Prepayments, deposits and - BRFE  &ER
other receivables At ElE 2,39 - - - - - 2,39
— Cash and cash equivalents - BERBLEEN 39,556 229 - - - - 39,785
Additions to non-current segment EMFE Y
assets during the year HHEE 8,801 - - - - - 8,801
Reportable segment liabilities TRENHEE
— Trade payables - ERER (43,870) - - (14,851) - - (58,721)
— Accruals and other payables - [EHBR RAER
v (26.220) (40 (1) (186,300 (5,699 - (18289
— Provision for tax - HERE (1882) - - (174,382) - - (176,264)
— Obligations under finance lease - PEREAE (#) - - - - - #)
— Provision for long senvice payment  — REIRBATEE (1,383) - - - - - (1,383)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.
The total presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented

in the financial statements as follows:

2EER ()

REBZEED 2 B

BT R P

EIAREEZ TEMBHRF 2 HRAOT

2011 2010
—E——F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Reportable segment revenue and AIRE D Pk s R B s
Group revenue 696,385 409,402
Reportable segment (loss)/profit AIERE DB (B518), % T (1,023,456) 10,490
Operating lease charges LERES (16,612) (7,281)
Gain on bargain purchase of W BT B8 A B2 R B e
subsidiaries - 556,615
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale  HERHHE S FERE 7 s
financial assets - 4,333
Fair value changes on derivate TR T AR EES
financial instruments (26,573) —
Share of loss of an associate FEE— R & QR B8 (3,110) -
Finance costs B R A (212,114) (14,570)
Unallocated expenses KOEAX (101,385) (26,014)
Unallocated income FoEUA 24,877 6,217
(Loss)/profit before income tax TSR AT (E918) i 7 (1,358,373) 529,790
Income tax credit FRiSTiE 2 193,424 398
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(ER),&H (1,164,949) 530,188
Reportable segment assets AmEDHEE 6,557,396 6,935,752
Corporate assets NEIEE 1,624,898 1,923,470
Group assets SEEE 8,182,294 8,859,222
Reportable segment liabilities AmESEAE (1,899,916) (454,678)
Corporate liabilities NEAE (4,638,150) (5,936,039)
Group liabilities EEEE (6,538,066) (6,390,717)
99
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100

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, approximately
HK$158,126,000 or 23% (2010: approximately
HK$167,286,000 or 41%) of the Group’s revenues
depended on two customers (2010: two customers) in the
trading of electronic products segment.

At the reporting date, 32% (2010: 27%) of the Group’s
trade receivables was due from the above customers.

The Group’s revenues from external customers and its non-
current assets (other than financial instruments and interests
in associate) are divided into the following geographical
areas:

PEHER (E)
HE-Z——F+-A=1t—HItFER
7R & E = H A 49158,126,0007% T 3k
23% (Z LT —Z4F : 4167,286,000 /% 7T 3k
M%) TIKBRETEREIDBZMER
F(ZZE—ZTF - MBEF,) -

R|ER > AEBEWERRZ32% (—F—
TE:21%) KBRLEER ©

AEBERBIAETPZREREFERBE
E(TERERTARNBERR 2#EH)
D RA T [

Revenue from external customers: REMNARFE 2 W
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong (domicile) (note (a)) B (EBHE) (M (a) 26,168 38,938
North America (note (b)) EZEN (K (b)) 61,143 58,453
Europe (note (c)) BN (HE (c) 22,948 30,477
Japan HZ 199,278 201,631
Mainland China AR B (A 374,060 66,318
Others (note (d)) E b (B 7% () 12,788 13,585
Total @t 696,385 409,402
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (B#E —E——4#+ - A =+—HIFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. o¥ER B
Non-current assets: EMBNEE -
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Hong Kong (domicile) (note (a)) B8 (EBPrE) (15t (a) 57,552 36,586
Mainland China A [ (9 4 2,705,713 2,817,275
Total et 2,763,265 2,853,861
Notes: BiaE -
(a) The place of domicile is determined based on the location of central (@ EBEH IR IE R R EIR B R FTEET -
management.
(0) Principally included the United States of America (“the USA”) and () TEREXMNRERE ([EE]) RNEX -
Canada.
(© Principally included the United Kingdom, France, Germany and the (© FERFEE - EE - BE RN AR o
Mainland Europe.
(d) Principally included Taiwan, Korea and elsewhere in Asia. (d) TEeEAE  BERIMEMILE -
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102

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the assets.

REVENUE 6.

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to
these financial statements. Turnover of the Group is the
revenue from these activities. Revenue from the Group’s

2EER ()

BEEMEMIBLE HARERB R NE
M2 RERE - IFRBEETAE IR

ETVNEBEZERNUEREE -

iy 2

AEEZ T BXBARNXEMBRERM T
1o REBRER 2 Wa TR A K B &
B FAERZAKEREEIBZEH 2K

principal activities recognised during the year is as follows: ey N
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Sales of electronic products HEEFEmM 318,903 345,398
Trading of precious metal BEBEETE 5,709 —
Sales of properties HEYE 296,804 61,944
Gross rental income from investment X&YW A EE
properties 27,795 2,060
Gross rental income from car parking B 7 F 4 W A 4258
spaces 452 —
Hotel operation income SR EBUA 46,722 —
Total “st 696,385 409,402
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (&

Tt = =+ —HILEE)

4= —=

7.

OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 7. HMKERWAFERE
2011 2010
—E2——F —ET-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other revenue H s
Interest income on financial assets R AR AR S REEZ
carried at amortised costs FE WA 2,837 3,778
Dividend income from listed EHREEE ZREMA
investments 10 —
Products development income EmEBEA 1,558 1,877
Bad debt recovery AR UL [E 22,079 —
Compensation from vendors Bh2wE 127 89
Written off of long outstanding payable 4 & B R & &1 FE {308 10,977 —
Gross rental income from plant and BB MRSz e WA LR
equipment = 57
Rental income from sub-letting of SEHEEEZHSWA
leased assets 554 —
Others Hith 666 276
38,808 6,077
Other net income Hitt W A F58
Exchange gain, net FENURES  F58 12,542 4,634
Realised gain on financial assets at BAFESERARZSREE
fair value through profit or loss 2 B#BU A = 234
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE  MENEZEZWE
and equipment = 82
Unrealised gain on inventory at fair BAFEARZEE
value RIS = 1,267
12,542 6,117
51,350 12,194
103
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Fr=A=+—AILFE)

8.

104

FINANCE COSTS 8. WEMA
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank loan borrowing, gross $R{TEE >~ 784858 74,375 1,583
Less: amount capitalized to B BRNEAERTYER
properties under development BIEYI% 2 &
and the hotel property 32,530 —
Interest on bank loan borrowing, net  $R1T{EE > F 8 %58 41,845 1,583
Interest on other loans wholly ARAFRNTBHEEZ EMER
repayable within five years ZHE 32,668 1,778
Interest on convertible notes TR EE 2 T &8 142,817 10,290
Interest on promissory notes AHRBEZFE 16,820 919
234,150 14,570
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRETEHIAT (E5E), HEF
2011 2010
—E2——F —ET-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
(Loss)/profit before income tax is PSR AT (E518), %
arrived at after charging/(crediting): B (GEA) ¢
Cost of inventories sold BEFERAK 217,124 220,541
Cost of properties sold B EWERAK 296,747 61,800
Cost of hotel operation SETE & ERAR 41,180 -
Business tax and other levies (note (b)) %85 M E At & (A1t (b)) 10,383 216
Depreciation on property, plant and WME - BENMRETE (Mt @)
equipment (note (a))
— Owned assets —BBEEE 34,774 9,407
— Leased assets —HEEE 50 55
Amortisation of leasehold land and FEE £ b N £ b A 8
land use rights 35,631 2,115
Research and development costs R ER (8EENMUELE SR
(including amortisation charge on FEER A Z B HEA)
capitalised deferred product
development costs) 997 1,292
Operating lease charges in respect of iy MEF 7 &EHE T H
land and buildings 16,612 7,278
Operating lease charges in respect of  BijE &R 2 KL BES H
plant and equipment - 3
Unrealised loss on financial assets BEATECEBEAREZEMEE
at fair value through profit or loss ZAREIREIR 1,595 3,276
Auditors’ remuneration ZE BN & 1,300 1,244
Provision for slow moving inventories 444717 &5 # & 2,588 —
Provision for impairment of trade EHERESRERFTORERE
receivables recognised 84 —
Reversal of allowance on inventories — 7F&#E# [0 - (1,249)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BENERE W
and equipment = (82)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - WE&&E2EE
plant and equipment 539 —
Loss on written off of property, WY - BE MR E 2 BB
plant and equipment 267 2
Pre-opening expenses FERER 25,158 —
105
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e RS ERAR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (B#E —E——4#+ - A =+—HIFE)

10.

106

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

(Continued)
Notes:

(a) Depreciation expenses
Depreciation expenses of approximately HK$3,444,000,
HK$2,397,000 and HK$28,983,000 (2010: approximately
HK$3,787,000, Nil and HK$5,675,000) have been included in cost of
sales, distribution costs and administrative expenses respectively.

(b) Business tax and other levies
The Group with business operation in the PRC is subject to business

9. KRRATEHA (BE) B5R @

(a) EEX
i1 E B & 493,444,000 7T + 2,397,000 70 &
28,983,000 7t (= F — T 4 : 48,787,000/
JC - T ITT 5,675,000 L) BN Rl ABEE
KA DERARITHER -

(b) EEBREMEE
AR SR B o B A R R B R IR A TR

taxes on their revenue at the following rates: CAE S
Category Rate
=3l BE
Sales of properties HEME 5%
Rental income from investment properties and BEWMERENZ2BERAR
car park units and hotel operation income T JE B A 5%
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 10. EEEFMB X (BEEEFMH)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2011 2010
S i
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Wages and salaries TERF® 111,048 71,712
Pension costs — defined contribution RRAKA — FEBEFETE
plans 5,916 3,004
116,964 74,716
Less: Amount included in pre-opening i : B3 AT E R 812 708
expenses (11,605) —
105,359 74,716
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e RS ERAR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (B#E —E——4#+ - A =+—HIFE)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 11. EEMEa R ESREEAS LM
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
11.1 Directors’ emoluments 111 ESE
Executive directors and independent non-executive WITEERBUIFNTES
directors:
2011 —B——F
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined
Directors’ benefits Discretionary contribution
fees in kind bonus plan Total
i 1 EEMN
EZHe REWAE BisRA HE 5 EHY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEn Tax TaT TEx TEn
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Yau Tak Wah, Paul (Note 1) B EES A (1) - 1,294 - 62 1,356
Ms. Louie Mei Po (Note 2) EXENEAE2) - 1,340 - 67 1,407
Ms. Liu Yee Nee (Note 2) BE/MARE2) - 741 - 37 778
Mr. Ng Pui Keung N - 1,600 - 12 1,612
Mr. You Xiaofei LERLE - 954 - 56 1,010
Independent non-executive BIEHT
directors Bz
Mr. Cheung Chung Leung, Richard  3kff R 564 150 - - - 150
Mr. Ng Wai Hung RE®EE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Wu Wang Li (Note 3) RALBEAE (M S) 10 = = = 10
Mr. Lo Wai Hung (Note 4) ERERE (W) 198 = - - 198
538 5,929 - 234 6,701
Note 1: Mr. Yau Tak Wah, Paul, resigned as an executive director Kia1: HEELtsen_—_S——ENABNBE
on 9 September 2011. FE#HITES -
Note 2: Ms. Louie Mei Po and Ms. Liu Yee Nee were resigned as Wiz EETBNERESRNMEAN-ZT——
executive directors on 28 September 2011, FRAZ+N\HEHTEHRITES -
Note 3: Mr. Wu Wang Li resigned as an independent non-executive Hiit3: RLAEBEER-_T——F—R=+—
director on 31 January 2011. ABEBIERITEE -
Note 4: Mr. Lo Wai Hung appointed as an independent non- Kitedta: EEHEEEVR-_Z——F_A—0%

executive director on 1 February 2011.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (&

2-F——

FH-A=+—ALEE)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 11. EEXEMEe R aREEAEE M &)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
11.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 1.1 ESF@<S (8
Executive directors and independent non-executive WITEERBUIFNTES
directors:
2010 —E
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary  contribution
fees in kind bonus plan Total
e 28 ERMBT
Eske REMF& WA TRl EoH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TAR TEL
Executive directors YTEE
Mr. Yau Tak Wah, Paul BEELE — 1,850 75 90 2,015
Ms. Louie Mei Po EXENE — 1,800 150 98 2,048
Ms. Liu Yee Nee BE /M — 996 83 54 1,133
Ms. Wong Shin Ling, Irene (Note 1)~ T &R/NA (2t 1) 113 - - - 113
Mr. Ng Pui Keung (Note 2) WL s (fi22) - 133 - - 133
Mr. You Xiaofei (Note 2) LEREE(WE2) - 105 - - 105
Independent non-executive BUFYTES
directors
Mr. Cheung Chung Leung, Richard ~ 3Rk{# R 54 150 - - - 150
Mr. Ng Wai Hung REHEE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Wu Wang Li Rl EEA 120 — - — 120
563 4,884 308 242 5,997
Note 1: Ms. Wong Shin Ling, Irene resigned as an executive director Hizt1: EBRPMER-_ZT-—ZF+=-AT+H
on 10 December 2010. BHEHITESE -
Note 2: Mr. Ng Pui Keung and Mr. You Xiaofei were appointed as Histz : BB AEERLEREER-_ZT—F

108

executive directors on 10 December 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year (2010: Nil).

FH-A+BEEZERNITES -

RBE-F—F+t-A=t+-BR

— &
— =

TE+-A=+—ALER

N ARESENEENEANRNE
TERIMARE BN AR 2 B
RER 2 18 -

BEEENFAREFELHEXRER
ZEAMEZZH(ZFT—FF:

) o
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (B#E —E——4#+ - A =+—HIFE)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 11. EEXEMEe R aREEAEE M &)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
11.2 Five highest paid individuals 1.2 AEESHALT
The five individuals whose emoluments were the REBFARAAERTATEE=S
highest in the Group for the year included three (2010: (Z2—Z2F:=ZR)EE FEZM
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in SERKE11.1 2R ORI -
the analysis presented in note 11.1. The emoluments RSB TRR(ZE—ZF : lG) A
payable to the remaining two (2010: two) individuals TEFEAZHMESHT
during the year are as follows:
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits e ZMREMAR
in kind 3,006 2,267
Retirement scheme contributions RIKSFTH B 238 69
3,244 2,336
The emoluments fell within the following bands: ZEM BN TR :
Number of individuals
EEA"
2011 2010
—ZE——F —E-TF
Emolument bands B 48 51
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T % 2,000,000
P& 1 -
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T % 1,500,000
7SI 1 2
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F_EF——

Fr=A=+—AILFE)

12.

110

INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FiBHIER
2011 2010
—2——fF —_E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Current tax BPEA T I8
Hong Kong B
— Tax for the year — REFERIA 421 1,536
— Qver provision in respect of — L FERERE
prior years (10) (975)
411 561
The PRC — Corporate Income Tax P — EMSH
— Tax for the year — AFEERA 33,486 880
— Over provision in respect of — LI FERERE
prior years (1,466) (1,839)
32,020 (959)
The PRC — Land appreciation tax R — g ER
— Current year — REE 17,744 _
Deferred tax ELEBLIR
— Current year — KEE (243,599) —
Total income tax credit FEBERRAE (193,424) (398)
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting (loss)/
profit at applicable tax rates:

FR8BER (5)
BIEE R EIRE AT R E et (BR), &
2 $18 -

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBx FH&T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREL AT (E518), = A (1,358,373) 529,790
Income tax at Hong Kong profits tax 12 &SR % 16.5% &l >
rate of 16.5% Frig®t (224,131) 87,415
Tax effect of different taxation rates H R R A ERTRRE 2
in other tax jurisdictions s (96,813) 383
Over provision in prior years AR SRR ER RS (1,476) (2,814)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BEHBU S 2 B (3,919) (95,000
Tax effect of non-deductible TR S 2 B
expenses 69,561 6,162
Tax effect of temporary differences ABEERER R
not provided 361 3
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised & R{F A LAE FE AR MERTIE
tax losses utilised this year EiEZBEYE (22) (156)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERRFERARIBEE ZBE
recognised ze 43,975 3,622
PRC land appreciation tax AR+ b IR (B B 17,744 —
Effect of PRC land appreciation tax rh B+ IR(E A 2 (4,436) -
Others Hit 5,732 (13)
Income tax credit FiiSFiii e (193,424) (398)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at the
applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits for
the year, based on the existing legislation, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rate
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges of land use rights and
all properties development expenditures.

Annual Report 2011 £

ERFERDIBRIBAFE 2 BT BRB S
FIZ16.5% (ZZFE—ZF : 16.5%) 2T &
BE o BINER 2 RFRIBARFEFE 2 E5T
ERBUEF  RAEEEEMERR 2R
TIBRE -

AEE B P EARBEBIEL ZMSHEE
TRBEAFE A ERTOEH - £RAX
- RRLEMER MERANEAE -

AR+ B E R AR IR T EE 28 & (B3
EMEAMSRENRANRAS (BiELiH
FRARBANRMBMERERIL))RE
TR 30% &= 60% HUK ©
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

12.

13.

112

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The National People’s Congress of the PRC approved the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “New Tax Law”)
on 16 March 2007. With effective from 1 January 2008, the
tax rate applicable to the enterprises established in the PRC
will be unified at 25% with certain preferential provisions.
Except for one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Gaojin
Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd is entitled to preferential tax
treatments granted by the relevant tax authorities in the
PRC and is subject to a lower income tax rate of 20%, until
the unified tax rate of 25% gradually transitioned in 2012.

Furthermore, in accordance with the Detailed
Implementation Regulations for implementation of the new
Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6 December 2007, a
10% withholding tax shall be levied on the dividends
remitted by the companies established in the PRC to their
foreign investors starting from 1 January 2008. Dividends
coming from the profits generated by the PRC companies
after 1 January 2008 shall be subject to this withholding tax.
As at 31 December 2011, the Group has not accrued any
withholding income tax for the earnings of its PRC
subsidiaries (2010: nil), because the Group does not have a
plan to distribute earnings from its PRC subsidiaries
generated in the period from 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2011 in the foreseeable future.

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$987,081,000 (2010: profit
of approximately HK$531,067,000), a loss of approximately
HK$172,994,000 (2010: a profit of approximately
HK$31,317,000) has been dealt with in financial statements
of the Company.

12.

13.

FR8BER (5)
RZZZLF=A+ARH HE2EAR
RERGH AT PERBEBE( B
AN BZEZENF-A—BE BEAR
FERBERL 2 ¥ ZHERLG—R25%
WAL TEREGSR  EAEEESR—K
MBARSDHEFORIDBRLAAZEHR
BHEER RS THNARE AT REUEM
BRRE20%MAH  BEER-_FT——_F&F
TBEER—HE25% BIE

AN RER —FTLF+ - AKRNBRM
ZHTEMRBREBRGD  B_FFN
F-A—RE  BPEKIZZARREIN
BIREHE LR B ABMKI0% BN © 2k
BRPEARR-_ZEZNF-A—R &M
Fos A 2 S BRI THTR N c R=F
——H+-A=1t—B AEETEHRHE
TEMBAR BN RN EHIERE
(ZZ2—ZF: &) AAEELEFIRN
ARRSRDIKETHEMBARE -F
ZENF-A-BE-_Z——F+=H
=t+—REPRREZ &F -

EAREEAELMS (BB, EF

EARABEBEABLEEEBBRY
987,081,000/ T(—ZE—ZF : H ML
531,067,000/ 7T) # - E5HE4) 172,994,000
BIL(ZE—ZF 5 F%31,317,0008 L)
BERAA R B H Rk R BR -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the (loss)/profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$(987,081,000) (2010:
approximately HK$531,067,000) and on the weighted
average of approximately 2,541,901,188 (2010:
approximately 2,247,682,010) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the profit and (loss) attributable to ordinary equity holder of
the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to the effect of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. The Company’s dilutive potential ordinary
shares consist of share options and convertible notes. For
the share options, a calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual market share price
of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of
the subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share options. For the
convertible notes, it is assumed to have been converted into
ordinary shares, and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate
the interest expenses.

14.

SR (58 &R
BREXR(EE),BF
BRERN(EE), BRI DRERABHES
AFEML (E518) /3% )4 (987,081,000) 7% 7T
(ZZ—Z4 : 49531,067,000587C) R FEA
B#TE®EBZMEFYHY
2,541,901,188( = T — T F: &
2,247 682,010 %) 51 & -

BR#E (B1R)BR

T (ER) BN DHREABARQF
ZEBEEERSE ARERN R (EBE) L
KRR BT E AR BB ER
TZEBETEBRRNETFHHE - AR
Bl BEHEE R BEBRE R TR
RIR o B TR IR (5 R 1T (68 B8 O PP
TRERECEBEENE  UEEAERA
FEBERARRERND ZBF RN TEE
BB IRMEE - % Bl T A ERE
ZBEHERERBRAERITEMRT 2R
BIEHLE® - ATRRRRARRCOEL &
AEBA AL A& 582 LA 8 ) 55
% o

2011 2010
—E——F —B-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Loss)/earnings (E58]) &F
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of basic AR &) A AFEL
(loss)/earning per share ((loss)/profit TREIRER(EE) BT
for the year attributable to owners sz (E8), &F
of the Company) (987,081) 531,067
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEHETBER I FE
shares:
Add: Imputed finance costs on I AR AR 2 R E R E R A
convertible notes 10,290
Earnings for the purpose of diluted REREERR S 2 &F
earning per share 541,357
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (&

Tt = =+ —HILEE)

4= —=

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 14. SR (EE) BF (&)
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (Continued) BR#E (5B B (@)
2011 2010
—E2——F —T-FTF
’000 000
T F iz
Number of shares: BREEE :
Weighted average number of shares  ghEAXEAR (1), EF|
for the purpose of basic & 2 B 5 2
(loss)/earnings per share 2,541,901 2,247,682
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEHEEERZTE
shares:
— Share options — BERRE 29,298
— Convertible notes — RBREE 9,393,940
Weighted average number of HEREE (518) &
ordinary share for the purpose of mE 2 & B9
diluted (loss)/earnings per share 11,670,920

114

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2011 has not been presented, as the outstanding share
options and convertible notes had an anti-dilutive effect.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2010 is HK$4.64 cents per share, based on the profit and
the denominators detailed above for diluted earnings per

share.

BE_ZT——Ft+-_A=+—RHLFEZ
BREEBRYELY] - IR ERTT
2 R M AR R IR A REEEER -

RE-T-—TE+-AST—ALFEZ
GRS R ATIRA64BI - TR B
R L S RIS RFIFA S B3t

s
B o
Eas
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP 15. RENE — FEH

2011 2010

—E2——F —ET-FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

At 1 January R—H—H 1,146,409 —

Exchange realignment P W % 56,782 —
Additions from the acquisition BR Y B T B8 2 B i 45 0

of subsidiaries - 1,146,409

Additions NE 13,865 —

Disposals HE (229,874) —

Loss from fair value adjustment NEEFAEEIE (59,666) —

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 927,516 1,146,409

The fair values of the investment properties of the Group as
at 31 December 2011 were assessed by B.l. Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified valuer. Valuations were
based on direct comparison approach assuming sale of
each of these properties in its existing state with the benefit
of vacant possession by making reference to comparable
sales transactions as available in the relevant market.

Certain of the Group’s investment properties are leased to
third parties under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 43.

As at 31 December 2011, investment properties of
approximately HK$808,550,000 (2010: approximately value
HK$1,084,756,000) were pledged to banks to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group and
third parties to the extent of HK$255,603,000
(2010: HK$318,450,000) and HK$12,290,000 (2010:
HK$69,089,000) respectively.
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AEEZEREMER-_FT——F1+=-A
=T -RZAFELBILAERMGERMR
MERFEERABME - AENEEL
BOERERE  YBRZZEVESHIAER
RAEEXERETALE  Y2ERETS
N AT BSHER L -

AEEETRAMEDREEERE LA
TE=T - ARREZE - SRBARNM
43

R—ZZE—-——F+-_A=+—H" %
808,550,000 L (=T —ZF : BEHNA
1,084,756,000/& 7T) 2 R B W EE R T
HRIT LB AEERZEZFE=HERZ
— #& IR 17 B & 5 Al & 255,603,000/% 7T
(= & — =T % : 318,450,000 7T ) &
12,290,000/ 7T (ZZF —Z 4 : 69,089,000
BIT) e
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EoF——

FHZA=1+—HILFE)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

116

16. Y% - BERRE

Group AEE
Funiture,
fixture Hotel
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor ~ Construction- operating
Buildings  improvements machinery  equipments vehicles  in-progress equipment Total
HENE BE  Aho%E BE
£ £ kK& REAERR hE kIR EERE &5t
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
TR Thn TR Thn TR Thn Tin Thn
Cost or valuation RAZfE
At1 January 2010 W-F-F5-A-H 40,500 2,19 78433 2,911 2,186 - - 171228
Acquistion of subsidleries WEHELT - 3,182 - 862 4366 515,240 - 523,649
Adattions AE - T4 6,501 544 1,945 - - 9,737
Disposals hE - - (562 (304 (Y] - - (1,708)
Writen off i - (599) - (2.469) - - - (3,067)
Surplus on revaluation BB 3600 - - - - - - 3,600
At 31 December 2010 RE-RET2A=1-A 44,100 31529 8372 2544 7654 515240 - 703439
Exchange redignment LR - 206 - 51 2 25,520 - 26,009
Addftions HE - 42251 45994 76,986 12617 167,608 4593 31,379
Disposals e - - - - (1,199 - - (1,199
Witen off i - - (2,869) (721) (2.501) - - (6,087)
Transfer a 651,460 - 2 17783 - (698,368) 6,354 -
Surplus on revaluation EftBE 4100 - - - - - - 4100
Deficton revaluation L (213372) - - - - - - (13372)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—%+ZA=1-H 486,268 73,986 150272 114,643 16,804 - 52217 894,270
Deduct: accumulated i EHTEREERR
depreciation and impairment
loss
At1 January 2010 W-F-25-A-R - 25,536 67987 2,172 541 - - 114236
Depreciation Vit 2832 1357 3787 814 672 - - 9,462
Eiminated on disposals WHERES - - (534) (303 (622 - - (1679
Eliminated on writien off Mﬁliﬁ BEE - (598) - (2.467) - - - (3,089)
Fiminated on revaluation NERRER (283 - - - - - - 283
At 31 December 2010 RZE-F5+-f=1-H - 26,29 71240 18216 3N - - 116,122
Exchange realignment Ei@% - ) - 8 kY - - 8
Depreciation Vit 10026 5,152 5,654 4,804 3389 - 5,809 34804
Impaiment loss recogrised RERRTL
nprofitand loss HEER - - 19619 2448 - - 14901 62,968
Eliminated on disposals RHERBTSH - - - - (259 - - (259)
Eliminated on writen off REREH - - (2,869 (706) (2,051) - - (5.820)
Eliminatec! on revaluation REMEEH (10026) - - - - - - (10026)
At 31 December 2011 R-E2-—E+-F=t+-H - 31,489 93,550 50,860 1,289 - 20,710 197,898
Net book amount BEFE
At 31 December 2011 RZZ-—5+ZA=1-H 486,268 4497 56,722 63,783 15,515 - 31,567 696,372
At 31 December 2010 W-F-F5+-f=1-H 44100 5234 13132 2328 7,283 515,240 - 587,817
At1 January 2010 #-F-25-A-A 40,500 2,662 10446 1,739 1645 - - 56,992
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(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.
(Continued)
The analysis of cost or valuation at 31 December 2011 of
the above assets was as follows:

Furniture,

fixture

Leasehold Plant and and office

Buildings  improvements machinery  equipments

ELUES BE G- %B
52 1] REE  RBAZRE
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000

T TR T TR

M BERRE@®

EEER—F——F+-_A=1+—RHZ
RASAEED AT -

Hotel

Motor  Construction- operating
vehicles in-progress equipment Total

BE
RE REIE EERG )
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000

TR TR Thxn TR

At cost B = 73,986 150,272 114,643 16,804 = 52,277 407,982
At valuation ZibE 486,268 - - - - - = 486,288
486,288 73,086 150,272 114,643 16,804 = 52,217 894,270

The analysis of cost or valuation at 31 December 2010 of
the above assets was as follows:

LRAER-F-FF+-A=+—AZ
RARHESTWT -

Furniture,
fixture
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor ~ Construction-
Buildings  improvements machinery  equipments vehicles  in-progress Total
BENE BE G- %E
¥ % R#E  RBELER AE fERIfk &t

HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
TR TR TR

HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
TR TR TAT TR

At cost BKAR - 31,629 84,372 20,544 7,654 515,240 659,339
At valuation &iEE 44,100 - - - - - 44,100
44100 31,529 84,372 20,544 7,654 515,240 703,439

At 31 December 2011, certain office equipments of the
Group with a total net book amount of HK$273,000 (2010:
HK$41,000) are held under finance leases (note 33).

As at 31 December 2011, property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$571,485,000 were pledged to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group to the
extent of HK$716,868,000.

As at 31 December 2010, construction-in-progress of
approximately HK$515,240,000 were pledged to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group to the
extent of HK$444,980,000.
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WR-ZT——F+-A=+—H %4
571,485,000 8 T2 W% - B MEEDE
BPRIT UGS AREEER —RIRITH
&4 $£716,868,000/8 T °
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16.

118

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group’s buildings were last revalued on 31 December
2011. Valuations were made on the basis of open market
value by B.I. Appraisals Limited, who have among their staff
fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, engaged by
the Group. Open market value was estimated based on
recent market transactions, which were then adjusted for
specific conditions relating to the buildings. The revaluation
surplus net of applicable deferred income taxes, if any, was
credited to property revaluation reserve in other
comprehensive income.

The Group assessed the recoverable amount of its fixed
assets at the end of the reporting period in accordance with
the accounting policy as disclosed in note 2.9. Based on
this assessment, the Directors considered that deficit on
revaluation and impairment provision were required in
respect of the building and certain equipment related to the
hotel as at 31 December 2011, due to the keen competition
environment and the current condition of the property
market. On this basis, the carrying amounts were written
down by HK$206,792,000 and HK$62,968,000 respectively
to their respective recoverable amounts, HK$571,485,000
being their fair values less cost to sell as determined by on
independent professional valuer. The carrying amount of the
building and certain equipments would have been
HK$644,880,000 and HK$196,364,000 respectively had
they been stated at cost less aggregate depreciation.

The Group’s buildings were situated in Hong Kong and PRC
and are held on leases of over 50 years and between 10 to
50 years respectively (note 17).

If the buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the
amounts would be as follows:

16.

M BERRE@®

FEBZEFREER-_ZE——F+ZA
=t RETHE - AERALTEEZEZ
FABERFEERARIRAMMEREE
7 HETIRBEBAEBMARLAEZEE -
RETEDRBEHT SRS mMEE > A
MEBTFERZEEMRAMARE - EHA
SR ERRERSEN(F)) Bt AR
EERAIRE TYRE[EHE -

REEDAREM T 2.9 H B 2 et BURET
HRMERREBEEEZAINEISEE -
RIEZATE - ERBURFRERMED
BrEN EERAEFRN 2T ——F
+ZA=+—AEBBAEZEFRETX
EIELEMEMRRERE - Bt BRE
B2 BIIHUR 206,792,000 7 7T & 62,968,000
BITEEE B 2 e £58571,485,000%
TR R ERE EEGEEMAETE 2
HERA) o WMAKARITEREZS - 18
FRETEREZREED 5 A644,880,000
77T % 196,364,000 7T ©

REEBZBFUREBRDE - HBIRE
BBEETERNTFTER+EZ2HERSE
GEINE

RESERARED R ZBF RN

2011 2010

—E——F —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

Cost AR 689,860 38,400
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (25,918) (18,256)
Net book amount BRmEFEE 663,942 20,144
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W¥ - MERRE®)
(Continued)
Company PN
Leasehold Furniture and
Improvement fixtures Total
HEMELEE ERRESE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHExT FET
Cost 5
At 1 January 2010 and RZE—ZEF—A—HK
31 December 2010 —ET-TF+A
=t+-A 13 144 157
Additions RNE — 4 4
At 31 December 2011 RZZT——%F
+-A=+—8 13 148 161
Deduct: accumulated W REHIE
depreciation
At 1 January 2010 and RZZE—ZETF—A—BK
31 December 2010 —ET-TF+=A
=+—A 13 144 157
Depreciation E - 1 1
At 31 December 2011 RZZT——%F
t-A=+-~8 13 145 =8
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2011 W—ZE—F+=A
=+—H - 3 3
At 31 December 2010 W_ZE—ZF+=A
=+—H = = —
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—FTF—H—H = = —
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17. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 17. #HELT# Rt hERHE — X&E
— GROUP
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights REERHEE T MR T ERE Eal
represent prepaid operating lease payments and the BENEEHERRRARTFEES
movements in their net carrying amounts are analysed as oo -
follows:
2011 2010
—E——fF —E=-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Opening net carrying amount HAWIBR M FE 1,119,636 9,301
Exchange realignment [E 5 F % 55,008 —
Acquisition of subsidiaries IR BT A &) — 1,112,450
Amortisation s (35,631) (2,115)
Closing net carrying amount EARBRE R E 1,139,013 1,119,636
Less: Current portion J8 - ENERER (252) (252)
Non-current portion JEENEAES 1,138,761 1,119,384
The analysis of the net carrying amount of leasehold land HELHERTHFERENT—A=1+—H
and land use rights according to lease periods as at 31 RHRA A 2 REFEI T T
December were as follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FET
In Hong Kong, held on: REBRFA
Leases of over 50 years HEBBATF 6,816 7,005
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBEINGE -
Leases of between 10 to 50 years HENF+ER+E 1,132,197 1,112,631
1,139,013 1,119,636

As at 31 December 2011, land use rights of approximately
value HK$1,130,215,000 (2010: approximately value
HK$1,110,587,000) were pledged to banks to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group to the extent
of HK$716,868,000 (2010: HK$444,980,000).
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R_ZE——F+-_fF=+—H BELHA
1,130,215,0008 L (ZE—ZF : (BEN
#$1,110,587,000 7 7T ) 2 & # {5 A # 2
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. RMiB A G 2#EHE — &AA T

2011 2010
—E——5 —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Investments at costs B ZIE
Unlisted shares (note () JE TR (K2t (@) = —
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (b)) FEWBE A &)z Z 8 (K15 (b)) 3,322,527 3,328,228
3,322,527 3,328,228

Notes: HiaE -

(a) Under the Group re-organisation, the Company disposed the interests (@ RIEEESEE  AREE_Z—ZFERAS R
in two directly owned subsidiaries to another directly owned BEMNBARLEMREEMB AR 2R -
subsidiary in 2010.

(o) The amounts due from subsidiaries are in the nature of current (b) FEUW B AR 2 RBEENHAE B HE - St AEEK
accounts and are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of i B8 HEEETERE -
repayment.

Movements in provision for impairment of amounts due from FEWMIBARIRIECREREREFAZE

subsidiaries during the year were as follows: ELUNNE

2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

At the beginning of the year REH — 187,751

Reversal of specific impairment losses [ & Bl FE & 18 = (4,091)

Uncollectible impaired debts written off #is4k kB~ B REEE - (183,660)

At the end of the year RER —
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. RMtEB AR ZE#=R — &RAF]

(Continued) (#&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 were R-_ZT—F+_A=+—8 " {IBAA
as follows: ZEHEWT
Issued and
Place/ fully paid
country of share/
incorporation/ paid-in Interest held by Principal activities and
Name registration capital Company Subsidiary places of operations
&/ BRR
R,/ BRER/ RERERLA
£8 Hx BEhER AR WEAR  FEEBREEBY
Account Centre Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100%  Provision of accountancy
B5 2B services to group
companies in Hong Kong
NSO EES NG
R ek
Art Ray Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS$ 1 - 100%  Inactive
BB 187 TEXK
Asset Bridge Development Hong Kong HKS$ 1 - 100%  Provision of loan financing in
Limited BE 1T Hong Kong
REBREETEE
Canton Million Investments British Virgin US$1 100% —  Investment holding in
Limited (i) Islands (‘BVI") e Hong Kong
REREAES REBREREER
((REETES])
Connion Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100%  Securities and commodity
EHERAT BB 2B investment in Hong Kong
REBREEFREMRE
Eastec Property Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Leasing of properties to
BE 100/87L group companies in
Hong Kong
REBMEERARMENE
Eastec Purchasing Limited (i) BVI US$1 - 100%  Trading of electronic
EERUES 1%L components and parts in
Hong Kong
Baf Rt
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. RMtEB AR ZE#=R — &RAF]

(Continued) (&)
Issued and
Place/ fully paid
country of share/
incorporation/ paid-in Interest held by Principal activities and
Name registration capital Company Subsidiary  places of operations
&/ EBTR
B,/ BRERA/ EEEHLA
£ BX BlEx FxRR KWEAR  FEEBREELY
Eastec Technology Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100%  Trading of electronic
SENMBERAA BE 28T components and parts in
Hong Kong
REBREEES T
Faf Rt
Electronics Tomorrow Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sales of
HEEFERAA B 500,000/ electronic products in
Hong Kong
REBUERER
HEETEM
Electronics Tomorrow Holdings BVI US$100 - 100%  Investment holding in
Corporation (i) EBEXHS HESH Hong Kong
REBREREEMR
Electronics Tomorrow International BVI US$600 - 100%  Investment holding in
Limited (i) EBETHS 600ETT Hong Kong
REBREREEMR
Electronics Tomorrow Property BVI US$100 - 100%  Investment holding in
Holdings Limited (i) ERRUES HUESH Hong Kong
REBREREER
ETL (Macao) Commercial Macau MOP500,000 - 100%  Trading of electronic
Offshore Limited (i) R 500,000 2797t components and parts in
Macau and Hong Kong
REFREENEEE
BRI R
Fortune Dynamic Group BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding in
Corporation (i ERRUES 1£7T Hong Kong
REBREERKRE

Annual Report 2011 £3§ 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. RMiEB AR ZE#= — &RAF]

(Continued) (&)
Issued and
Place/ fully paid
country of share/
incorporation/ paid-in Interest held by Principal activities and
Name registration capital Company Subsidiary  places of operations
&/ EBTR
BB,/ BREA/ BERERLA
£ BX BlEx ARE WEAR  IEEBREEHY
Fortune Overseas Investment Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100%  Inactive
Holdings Limited BB 2B 3
Gaojin Electronics (Shenzhen) The PRC US$5,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture of electronic
Company Limited (Gaojin’) () & (i) H 5,000,000 7T products in the PRC
29EF(RINERRRTES]) )X (i) RAEREEFERD
Guangzhou Fanzhan Trading Limited The PRC RMB2,158,425 - 100%  Inactive
(), (i) & v) H ARE 3
BEMNRESBRAR () (i) &) 2,158,4257C
Guangzhou Gaotian Investment The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Property development and
Limited (i), (i) & (iv) H AEE property investment in
EMEEREBRAR () (i) &y 20,000,0007C the PRC
REEREDELERR
NERE
Guangzhou Kinyang Real Estate The PRC RMB112,000,000 - 100%  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. (i), (i) & (i) F ARE property investment in
BNRBEERRARAR () - (i) Xy 112,000,007 the PRC
REERENEER
ROERE
Guangzhou Junyu Hotel The PRC RMB358,000,000 - 100%  Hotel operation and
Investment Limited (i), (i) & (v) # AEE management in the PRC
EMEBBEREBRRA () (i) X 368,000,0007C N i
Guangzhou Xianzhuang Properties The PRC RMB33,000,000 - 100%  Property development in
Development Limited (), (i) & (iv) # AEE the PRC
EMNERFHEREBRAG () (i) 2 () 33,000,000 KRB ENERRE
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. RMtEB AR ZE#= — &RAF]

(Continued) (#&)
Issued and
Place/ fully paid
country of share/
incorporation/ paid-in Interest held by Principal activities and
Name registration capital Company Subsidiary  places of operations
&/ EBTR
BRIt/ BERR/ BERERLA
£ ETER BEREX ARE  MWEAR  FEERREESH
Guangzhou Xinzhuo Properties The PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Inactive
Management Limited (i), (ii) & (iv) ol AR TMER
BNFENZERBRAR() - (i) & () 3,000,0007¢
Guangzhou Yongxiang The PRC RMB11,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding in
Investment Limited (i), (ii) & (i) ol ARE the PRC
EMAEREBRAT - (i) 2 (i) 11,000,000 NGRETEE 5 vl
Guangzhou Fengmao Real Estate The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding in
Development Limited (formerly knownas & ARE the PRC
Guangzhou Yusheng Real Estate 10,000,000 7 RRERERERR

Development Limited (i), (i) & (iv)

EMEXEHEREERAT
(REZBENEREHERZERAR)
()~ (i) % iy

Good Order International Inc. (i) BVI US$100 - 100%  Investment holding in
EERUES 1007 Hong Kong
REBREREEMR
Huangpu Caming Real Estate The PRC US$13,000,000 - 100%  Property development in
Development Limited (i), (i) & (iv) # 13,000,000 7T the PRC
EMEFeKEEREERRE () - (i) & v KB ENERRE
Haikou Yicheng Industries Limited (i, (i) & (iv) The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding in
BOSREZBRAF () (i) &) HE AR the PRC
10,000,000 R FREER
Hainan Kaiya Industries Limited (i, (ii) & (i)~ The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding in
BENTEEBRAR () (i) &) HE ARE the PRC
20,000,0007C R EREER
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18.

126

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. RMiB AT 2R — AT
(Continued) (#&)
Issued and
Place/ fully paid
country of share/
incorporation/ paid-in Interest held by Principal activities and
Name registration capital Company Subsidiary  places of operations
B/ EBTR
BRIt/ BERR/ BERERLA
£ ETER BEREX ARE  MWEAR  FEERREESH
Hainan Honglun Properties The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 63.2%  Property development in
Limited (), (iii) & (iv) ol AR the PRC
BEEREEBRAT () - (i) & () 30,000,0007C iNalEe vy
Hainan Swan Bay Properties Service The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 25%  Inactive
Limited (i), (i), (i) & (iv) ol ARE TRy
BERBENERBERDE () (i) - (i) & vy 2,000,000
Hainan White Horse Swan Bay The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 25%  Property development in
Garden Properties Limited (), (i), (i) & (iv) & ARE the PRC
BEBSRBZEEERAA ) (i) (i) Xy 100,000,0007C iNalEe= vy
Issegon Company Limited Hong Kong HK$300,000 - 100%  Investment holding in
&R 300,00087C Hong Kong
REBREREEMR
Master Base Limited i) BVI USS$1 100% —  Investment holding in
REEAES 1% Hong Kong
REARERERR
Maxson Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Provision of accountancy
BF 28T and management services

to group companies in

Hong Kong
REBAEERTF

Rt e RER RS
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. RMtEB AR ZE#=R — &RAF]

(Continued) (#&)
Issued and
Place/ fully paid
country of share/
incorporation/ paid-in Interest held by Principal activities and
Name registration capital Company Subsidiary  places of operations
&/ BRTR
RALMHE/ BERf/ BEERLA
£ Hx BlER AAR WEAR TEERRERBY
Merit Capital Limited (i) BVI US$1 - 100%  Capital financing to group
REEAES 1% companies in Hong Kong
BARERA L EERTA
Merit Style Development Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Inactive
Bh 18T LEXH
Probest Holdings Inc. (i) BVI US$1 — 100%  Investment holding in
RERAES S Hong Kong
REBREREER
Profit Venture Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding in
KERERRAF EE 10,0007 the PRC
R B SR AR
Sure Win Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding in
KBEEZBRAF BB 100387 the PRC
R BEREERE R
Talent Central Limited (i) BVI US$101 - 100%  Investment holding in
RBEXHS 10MET Hong Kong
REBREREER
Talent Property Limited (formerly known as Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive
Talent Landmark Limited) BE 10,0007 EmEn
MRERR LR (RERRRER
BRAR)
Talent Prosper Corporation BVI Uss$2 - 100%  Investment holding
RREEERAF EBRRUES PE Hong Kong
REBREREEMR
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18.

128

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

18. RMBLARzHEE — ALQH

(Continued) (#&)
Issued and
Place/ fully paid
country of share/
incorporation/ paid-in Interest held by Principal activities and
Name registration capital Company Subsidiary places of operations
&/ BRR
vk kg BERfS/ RERERLA
£8 Hx BlER KRR WEAR TEERREEBY
Team Force Corporation (ii) BVI US$100 - 100%  Investment holding in
RERTES (OES Hong Kong
REBREREER
Yunnan Xin Tian Culture Travel The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 60%  Inactive
Development Limited (j, (ii) & (iv) H AR® MR

ERHAREERERAF) - (i) X (V)

Notes:

()

(i

(i)

()

The above companies are registered as a wholly foreign owned
enterprises under the PRC law.

By an agreement signed on 24 September 2009 between all the
investors of Hainan Swan Bay, Hainan Kaiya, a company registered in
the PRC, was agreed to be the only managing party of Hainan Swan
Bay, and the other investors were just entitled to the profit and loss
generated from Hainan Swan Bay. Therefore the directors are of the
opinion that the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of Hainan White Horse Swan Bay Garden
Properties Limited, therefore, it is regarded as a subsidiary of the
Group.

Hainan Swan Bay Properties Service Limited is the wholly owned
subsidiary of Hainan White Horse Swan Bay Garden Properties
Limited. Therefore the directors are of the opinion that the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of Hainan
Swan Bay Properties Services Limited and it is regarded as a
subsidiary of the Group.

The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries are not
audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited.

The names of certain companies referred in these consolidated
financial statements represent management’s best effort in translation
of the Chinese names of these companies as no English names have
been registered or available.

50,000,000t

i) b RAERERBIARET A EBEDE -

(i) REEHASRBEEZ2BREE_ZTNFN
A tmAZT 2O - RPEEH A7
BRI EERBEKREREEABRIEE kg2
A TMEAMREEREFREEERAHRIEE
A REE - Fit - EERR AREHEE
MR BRIBEEXBRAF LU EEER
KA ZRARERAREEZHERF -

BERIBENERBERARAEFEASR
BXERRFZZEMNBAR - Bt - EFR
R AREEREIEESERBENERBERA
AZBREERE Mz ARRRAREEZ
M AT e

(i) ZEMBRRMETE M B IRA L I BB & 5HAD
EHMARAREZ

(v) MR EEM A2 R B - WERANE

BERARERETRARZERAERESNEZE
R XX B 2 B -
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19. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE — GROUP 19. R—EBEQT &R — £ 58H

2011 2010
—B-——fF —B-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 558,289 534,905
Gooduwill (note (a)) 8 (K5t (@) 4,483 4,483
562,772 539,388
Issued and Percentages of
fully paid attributable
Country of registered equity interest Principal activities and
Name registration capital Company Subsidiary  places of operations
BRTR BRI
#8 HMER BREAMER A2E  WELAR FERXBREEBH
Guangzhou Xintian Properties The PRC RMB300,000,000 - 30%  Property development in PRC
Development Limited () & (i) HE N RRERENEER
BNFREHERRARAF ()L 300,000,0007C
Notes: Wizt
0] The English name of above company referred in these consolidated 0] AR ES MR A Y B ETE  LEeAHE
financial statements represent management’s best effort in translation HEFIZMY AT s EXABATEBE S
of the Chinese names of this company as no English names have Y SN Y A TR EY B EE -
been registered or available.
(ii) The statutory financial statement of above associate is not audited by (i) BN R Y SR R B R R I JE R S B e A
Cheng & Cheng Limited. HRFER DA TEITER -
The following financial information, after making adjustments THBBEERDERARUNAAERTE
to conform to the Group’s significant accounting policies, SEHBE REAEEEGIELITHBHLSD
represents the Group’s aggregate share of assets, liabilities, FIVEE BE WEREEQE

revenue and results of the unlisted associated company, all
of which are unlisted:
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=

19.

130

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE — GROUP 19.

(Continued)

Summary of financial interests shared from an associate is

set out below:

R—MEBE AR S — A&

(&)

DE— AR B Z MR

2011 2010
—E——5F T -TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Total assets BEE 927,718 913,954
Total liabilities BwEfE (369,429) (379,049)
Net assets BEFE 558,289 534,905
The Group’s share of net assets REBSE—RHEE AR 2
of an associate BEFE 30% 30%
Loss for the year FANERE (10,367) (5,449)
The Group’s share of results REE S5 —HEE QA
of an associate for the year ZERNEE (3,110) (1,634)
Note (a) Wt (a)
2011 2010
—g—-% —2-T%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Cost and carrying value KA R BREE
At 1 January wn—HA—H 4,483 -
Additions from the acquisition of an associate AU BE — B2 A R n - 4,483
At 31 December W+-—A=+—8~ 4,483 4,483
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20. DEFERRED PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT 20. EXEEMBERE — XEE
COSTS — GROUP
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Net carrying amount at the FYREFE
beginning of the year 751 937
Additions INE 585 771
Amortisation charge g R (720) (957)
Net carrying amount at the end FREEEFE
of the year 616 751
2011 2010
—E——f —E-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 31 December w+=ZA=+—8H
Gross carrying amount REAE 32,856 32,271
Accumulated amortisation BT (32,240) (31,520)
Net carrying amount at 31 December A+ _—A=+—HZEE %4 616 751

21.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21. A[#{HiESREE — &XKE
— GROUP

2011 2010
—g——& —=-2
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Unlisted equity securities outside Hong MR &EB SASMb[@ 2 FF F TR A ZE A
Kong, at market value (note (a)) wE (Wit @) 2,121 3,036

Note: Hiat -

(a) Unlisted equity securities are stated at fair value. The fair value of the (@ FE LTI ARE FH LA AR - REBUIND
investment in unlisted equity securities outside Hong Kong have been &7 I EMIRAEBEFRE 2 AFEDZERRE
determined directly by reference to their quoted bid prices at the HEIfTRE ABEEEE -
reporting date.

The fair value of the Group’s investments in unlisted equity KEERBEATHILESMEE L

securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets has MRAFESLE 2 AT E TR T 47() BT

been measured as described in note 47(g). MAHEE -
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

23.

132

2. RAVFERER A ARZEHEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS — GROUP - x&EE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT

Listed equity securities held for trading #{EE & v FHRAZES

— in HK, at market value — REE - EmE 352 686
— in USA, at market value — REE - BTE 5,225 6,486
Total BT 5,577 7,172

Listed equity securities are stated at fair value. The fair value
of the investment in listed equity securities has been
determined directly by reference to their quoted bid prices
at the reporting date.

The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss has been measured as described in note 47(g).

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT —
GROUP

23.

EHBRAESFZAFEIER - EHRAE
HFREZAFEDIZERBE BHMRE
ANBERETE °

ARERBERRAFELESARZE
MEEZ LTRAZBHRBREZ XAFETR
WIEE47(Q) PRI ETE ©

BREDYWE — F5H

2011 2010
—EB——fF —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Properties under development include: BRI BHE :
— Construction costs and — BEAN
capitalised expenditures BB H 3,210,129 3,017,941
— Interest capitalised — BEREFE 15,271 —
3,225,400 3,017,941

All properties under development are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2011, the properties under development
of approximately HK$2,457,152,000 (2010: approximately
value HK$2,208,780,000) were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s bank borrowings granted to the Group to the
extent of HK$921,750,000 (2010: HK$878,250,000).

B ERTPYEIURFTE -

NR-_=Z2——F+_-_/=+—8"
#92,457,152,000 8 L (ZE—FF : EE
49 /42,208,780,000/8 7T ) Z B EFR M E -
EEBEALAEEERRBITREE
#0921,750,000% w( = T — T F:
878,250,000/8 7T ) < g ©
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24, COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 24. H{EHEZEERYE — XEE

25.

— GROUP
2011 2010
—=E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Completed properties held for sale, BIEHEZEER Y E
at cost — RN 482,931 902,593

The completed properties held for sale are located in the
PRC.

FEME 2B R EBUNTE -

INVENTORIES — GROUP 25, FE — XK H
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Electronic products BEFEM
Raw materials R R 31,683 33,120
Work in progress TR 13,181 18,721
Finished goods UK 5,865 5,781
50,729 57,622
Less: Allowance for inventories B TFERE (17,754) (15,166)
32,975 42,456
Precious metal, at fair value E¢E  BAFE — 5,544
Food and beverage and Bm B EEMAR
other supplies 3,254 —
36,229 48,000
Movement in allowance account for inventories during the FRAZEFEREBEREHHT
year are as follows:
2011 2010
—=E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At the beginning of the year REA 15,166 16,415
Provision for the year FEAE 2,588 —
Reversal of allowance on inventories  7Z&# &% [0 - (1,249)
At the end of the year RER 17,754 15,166
133
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP

134

26. BKIER — K%M

2011 2010

—g—-5  —z-2F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Trade receivables FEUL R FR 62,391 104,411
Less: Provision for impairment of B BREREIBRIR

trade receivables recognised DERIEREL (402) (318)

Trade receivables — net FEUERSR — FE 61,989 104,093

The directors considered that the fair value of trade BEERARRERZATEEEEREELT

receivables are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these amounts have short maturity
periods on their inspection.

The majority of the Group’s sales are on credit or
documents against payment. According to the credit rating
of different customers, the Group allows a range of credit
periods ranging from 30 days to 90 days (2010: 30 days to
90 days) to its trade customers.

Provision for impairment of trade receivables is recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that the recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly. Movement in the provision for impairment on trade
receivable is as follows:

BEAZR  JHRZEFENETER
RN R HAMEE -

REBMABOHEEUERAFRNARRE
FRET ARERTTRBEFZEET
BRHEEZEFPERENTI0REWAH(Z
T-TH 30HFEQRH)ZEEH-

FEM R R 2 BB A ARS8 -
HARBEERREZEFIRZEEEMN
RUERT - B (EE R T B 3% B R R
HhEH o MR RERBZ BT

2011 2010

—F——F —EFF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FERT FET

At the beginning of the year REH) 318 318
Provision for impairment EERERIRR 2

of trade receivables recognised B 84 —

At the end of the year JAE SN 402 318
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (Continued) 26. BUWERER — F&8 (@)

Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables is as follows:

FEUSRFRIRER R ZREEDITAT

2011 2010

—E——5F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FET

0 to 90 days 0&90H 56,652 41,109
91 to 180 days 912180 H 313 6,925
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 247 20,895
Over 365 days @365 H 4,777 35,164
61,989 104,093

At each reporting date, the Group reviews trade receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual and
collective basis. The impaired trade receivables were due
from customers that were in default of payments.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that
were past due as at the reporting date but not impaired,
based on due date is as follows:

ERERH  AEEREMNLEEBEE
0 & W R R A JE BURL (BB 78~ D RLE &

=
WER SR AR W RIER TP 2 508 »

AEBERHEAHEARERRREZE
WORFIZH A Z BREe D AT AT -

2011 2010

—2——-F —T-TE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Neither past due not impaired W BRI A 42,551 23,515
Past due but not impaired T ERME Y ARRUE 19,438 80578
61,989 104,093

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default of payments.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that had
a good track record of credit with the Group. Based on past
credit history, management believe that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
these balances are still considered to be recoverable.

Annual Report 2011 £

A 4360 9 o A 1 2 M B K BT R4
RIBFER ZEEF L EENERER
58 -

BB AR E 2 RURR R E X E T E
BHNEFPER REEPRAKEZBE
EELHERT - REBEEELE 1
BHRfE ARNEEERUBERESHHEZ
SERDERET KD - HBARZERE
ERETHRIR B -

135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (Continued) 26. BUWERER — F&8 (@)

The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of trade AN B AR R AR RIS B ARG o
receivables.
Majority of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated REBARH D EUEREFHUET - ETR
in HK$, US$ and RMB, no interest is charged on trade ANREEHE - 72§ E YR U EUR &, -
receivables.
There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade REE 7 IR Y R AETRERNES -
receivables as the Group has a large number of diversified WA ER 2 EERRE °
customers.
27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27. FENFIE - e R HEMEWFIE
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
AEEH AKAE
2011 2010 2011 2010
22— ZZTEFF =ZE——F5 =Z=-ITF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET
Deposits e 11,373 2,451 — —
Prepayments TERT B 7,035 941 479 477
Other receivables H At FE UL SRIA
(note (a)) (Hfex(a) 694,501 585,829 - 397
712,909 589,221 479 874
Note: Bifat
(@) As at 31 December 2011, the amount of other receivables (@ RZFB——F+ZA=1+—RH - HtEYEIER
included the amount of RMB380,000,000 which is equivalent to & Talent Trend Holdings Limited 1R 1% A B A~ £ @
HK$467,020,000 (2010: RMB380,000,000 which is equivalent to U B Talent Central Limited 2 B B 17 3% M /& #f (&
HK$444,980,000) which is indemnified by Talent Trend Holdings 2 & ® A R %380,000,0007t( fH & R
Limited according to the sales and purchase agreement for the 467,020,000 T)(Z T — T F: ARK
acquisition of Talent Central Limited by the Group. 380,000,000 7T (1% 7 444,980,000/ 7T) ) ©
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28. RESTRICTED CASH 28. ZRFBEE
Group Company
A%E AR
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g——& -2-TF -B-—-F -2 FF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FERT FHT
Guarantee deposit for BERIEE 2
construction of ERze
projects (note (a)) (H1:% (@) 5,153 16,273 - —

Note: Hiat -

(a) In accordance with relevant documents issued by the PRC local (@ RAE R B B A i ERE B AT H AR R X
State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau, certain property - REEETYERRACDESEEMEMS
development companies of the Group were required to place the FIEEREEM X 2 IERIZS - BUSHEH
proceeds received from pre-sales of properties as guarantee deposits BLMERERRBZIAER  ZERSETAE

for construction of properties. The deposits can only be used to pay X HHEREIEE
for construction fees and purchase of construction materials for the RERTET

ZREBRBERY - ARSI
THRIBENEEEFOERAEE

relevant projects when approvals are obtained from the PRC local (AR ERE) BIRR -

State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau. The restriction will be
released after the construction is completed or real estate ownership
certificate of the pre-sold properties is issued, whichever is earlier.

Restricted cash earns interest at floating daily bank deposit rates. ZRHIRSIZIRTE BIFETRFRHEIFL
29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20, HERBELEEY
Cash and cash equivalents include the following RekReSEYMBEATEKES
components:
Group Company
KEH AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—F 225 =2 ZZz-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET FERT FET
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 320,339 239,819 3,692 3,040
Short-term bank deposits HEIRITIER - 537,559 - 537,559

320,339 777,378

3,692 540,599

As at 31 December 2010, the short-term bank deposits RZZ—ZF+-_A=+—H BHRMT
earn interest at 0.26% to 1% per annum. They have a FRIZFENE026EZ1ERNAE - 2
maturity ranging from 7 days to 125 days and are eligible for HANT7E125ATSE  WAERETY
immediate cancellation without receiving any interest for the BB FFEAERT S Z 1R TRV -

last deposit period.
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29.

30.

138

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
The directors of the Company considered that the fair value
of the short-term bank deposits is not materially different
from its carrying amount because of the short maturity
period on its inception.

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group
approximately HK$276,497,000 (2010: approximately
HK$142,529,000) was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies
through banks that are authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES — GROUP

The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods
ranging from 30 to 60 days. Based on the invoice dates, the
ageing analysis of the trade payables were as follows:

29.

30.

RERBEEEYN (@)
MR BRI R B R B EA M
WADNRAEFRAERRIFRZATE
BEREAETBEAER -

REERITRRSEHBIETHRNRPERE
WIRITAARE(TARE D FEZRELY
276,497,000 L( = T — T F: 4
142,529,000 7T) - AR ATEEERK
?@zéﬁ% o AREH B HMNE E HIIER R INE
CHEMENERER - NEBES
£<<<HE£T TINEZER 2 RITHAR
ﬁ%mﬁﬁﬂl\% o

BAER — A%H
AEBEERERE TN TI0E0HZEE
Hi o BRBEFUREZR ZRESTNT ¢

2011 2010

—=E——F —E-%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

0 to 90 days 0Z90H 74,891 42,321
91 to 180 days 91 £E180H 286 1,541
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 1 —
Over 365 days BB 365 H 11,125 14,859
86,303 58,721

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of
trade payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

FrERIESBEHEE - Hit - BAERXR
ZEREERRARE N HESERS
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31. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. B ERKRHEMENSRKIE
Group Company
AEH eI
2011 2010 2011 2010
—8——% -T-TF -—B——& -T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAT FET FAET
Deposits received Blize 22,138 1,509 - —
Receipts in advance from RPN
customers 444,672 24,214 — —
Accruals FEztEH 107,638 277,003 1,933 1,141
Other payables (note (a)) Ho et 5k (5 () 696,531 1,117,299 - 540,188
1,270,979 1,420,025 1,933 541,329
Note: Bt
(@) The amount of other payables in 2010 included the amount of (@) RZZF—FF - HMENFIRRER Y Taent
HK$540,000,000 which is the cash payables to Talent Trend Holdings Central Limited & { F Talent Trend Holdings
Limited for the acquisition of Talent Central Limited and the Limited 2 35 £ 540,000,000 7% 7T JA K2 i 1+ — i B¢
approximate amount of HK$312,509,000 which is the amounts due AR Z FIEHI 312,509,000 7 7T ©

to an associate.

The PRC Land appreciation tax payable in 2010 amounted to RAFE  ZZ—ZF@ 2 174,381,000 7T
HK$174,381,000 were reclassified under the class of “provision for FELEERCET A [RERE] - W
tax” rather than presented under the class of “Other Payables in et FERT B A R EAth FE < k18 2 E At FE A /1B

Accruals and Other Payables” in this year. HERIZ5 -

32. BORROWINGS — GROUP 32. AR — &KEH
2011 2010
—g—-F —T-BF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Borrowings included in non-current SFAEREBBEZMENR
liabilities:

Bank borrowings — secured (Note (a)) RITER — BER (Wi () 1,218,270 798,560
Other borrowings — unsecured (Note (b)) E fh &5k — MIKIR (M5 (b)) 574,026 556,675

1,792,296 1,355,235

Less: current portion of long-term g - BERREERZENEE S
borrowings — secured (Note (a)) (H1:t (@) (474,062) (29,577)
current portion of other borrowings H b KR E TR 2 BN AR SRS
— unsecured (Note (b)) (K1t (b)) (574,026) —
(1,048,088) (29,577)
744,208 1,325,658
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32. BORROWINGS — GROUP (Continued)
The maturity of the borrowings included in non-current
liabilities is as follows:

32.

fER — KB (@)

AAAERBREZERZBBAERMAT

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Between 1 and 2 years —FERFHE 64,024 611,825
Between 2 and 5 years M F £ 7 FH 192,072 215,925
Over 5 years HBiEAF 488,112 497,908
744,208 1,325,658

Notes:

140

The Group has variable-rate bank borrowings which carry interest
ranged from the People’s Bank of China 3-15 year loan base rate.
Interest is repriced annually.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank loans are ranged from
5.88% to 7.63% (2010: 5.64%-6.24%) and secured by certain
investment properties, properties under development, land use rights
and property, plant and equipment.

The fair value of the Group’s current bank borrowings approximates
their carrying amounts at each of the reporting dates for the reason
that the impact of discounting is not significant or the bank
borrowings carry floating rate interests.

The fair values of the Group’s non-current bank borrowings
approximate their carrying amounts at each of the reporting dates as
all the non-current bank borrowings carry floating rate interests.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group’s bank loans were all
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s unsecured borrowings were
interest free except for the amounts of approximately
HK$376,290,000 was charged at 5% per annum.

The effective interest rates on Group’s other unsecured borrowings
are 6.56% for the year ended 31 December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the fair value of the Group’s current
unsecured borrowings approximates their carrying amounts at each
of the reporting dates for the reason that the impact of discounting is
not significant.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s unsecured borrowings were
charged at the People’s Bank of China 1-3 year loan base rate per
annum.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest
rates) on the Group’s other unsecured borrowings are 5.85% for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

As at 31 December 2010, the fair value of the Group’s current
unsecured borrowings approximates their carrying amounts at each
of the reporting dates for the reason that the impact of discounting is
not significant or the unsecured borrowings carry floating rate
interests.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group’s other borrowings
were all denominated in RMB.

REEZZRRITEFZFRARRIT=FE
THEEREARFEKRGTE - BFEHEL K-

AEBBETERZERFEN X (TBERITHORN
)N T588EET63E(ZFT—ZTF :564F
£6.24F)  WHETREYME BRTYE -
T AR R EE - R SRR A TR o

REREFHER  AEBRBRITERATE
HERAREERE  REAAMRYELTEAR
RITEFRIBFBF TR -

REREFSE - ARBFRBRITERLAT
EYREBEERE - REAFAERBRITE
REWTBFIEE -

REB——FR-T-TFF-_A=t—H &
LEMFRITETIAARKE -

R-ZE——F+-A=+—-—H BH
376,290,000 7 7T & F 12 5 [ YV 841 + A
B EERRERARE -

HEZZ——F+ZPA=+—HILFE FEE
Hb SRR E R BERMER6.56E

WoT——F+-A=+—8  FEEADEE
Wi A TELRLEEERE - REAKR
PEUTEA -

REZE-—ZTF+-A=+—H  FEEZEEKR
EREFRPEARRIT - FEZFERERF
RIGEFS

HE-_Z-ZF+-A=1+—HILFE  A&EH
Ht a2 B AR (TREERETHFE)
A5.85[E °

R-ZF-ZTF+-A=+—H FEERHDEKR
FER 2 A FEDEARRERS - RE/KR
FEWTEASBIEIRERIRTHF

RZT——FR=T—TF+A=+—AH &
EEEMETIUAAREE -

Talent Property Group Limited #i Xith Z &£ @GR A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE 33. MEHEERE — xX&EE
— GROUP
At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum lease RZE—F+_A=+—H " BERE
payments under finance leases and their present value, MOz AExEEERBEEREREN
were as follows: ™
Present value of
Minimum minimum lease
lease payments payments
EAREHRERE BRIEHERERE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B-—-f —T-THF B--F —T-TF
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FExT FHT FERT FET
Due within one year R—F N E 55 41 55 41
Due in the second to RE_ZFHFHNE
fifth years 218 — 218 —
273 41 273 41
Less: future finance charges J& - B M5 E A = —
Present value of finance MmEMEAERE
lease liabilities 273 41
Less: Portion due within Ji EFARBIEER
one year included —FRIHZ S
under current
liabilities (55) (41)
Portion due in the second st AFEREBIBER
to the fifth years F_EERF
included under E|Ef 2 35
non-current liabilities 218 —

The Group has entered into finance leases for certain office
equipments. The leases run for the period of five years and
do not have an option to review the lease terms. All leases

are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have
been entered into for any contingent rental provisions.
Under the terms of lease, the Group has the option to
purchase the lease assets at the price that is expected to
be sufficiently lower than the fair value of the leased asset at
the end of the lease.

Finance lease liabilities were effectively secured by the
underlying assets as the rights to the leased assets would
be reverted to the lessor in the event of default repayment
by the Group.

Annual Report 2011 £

AEBEDHETHAEREFTLAETEES -
WEBOREPEE - WA ERAEE RN -
PREHEOYRERBEEERY - BEREM
SAREEBEFELEMN LS - REBEBELOG
R AEEFENEOBERBERARER
RHEEBERAFEZERBEEREEE -

RMEHEABERNEBEEZFEERR R
ABMAEERBNMER HEEEY
BANBRELEA -

141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) ({2 —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFFE)

34.

35.

142

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENT 34. RHEIREE&E
Group Company
rEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F E=2-ZF ZE-—-—-F ZT-FTF
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FER FAT FERT FAET
At the beginning and REY R FLL
at the end of the year 2,160 2,160 230 230
The Group provides for the probable future long service RIEEBEBIGEN  AEBFTEEAKRKA]
payments expected to be made to employees under the fEmEEFEZRBRESIELREE - 2
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The provision is based BREDREEHERSAMILIMNAEE
on the best estimate of the probable future payments which R RIS AT RE B 2 R R RIS & 2 R AE
have been earned by the employees from their service to STREEETE -
the Group at the reporting date.
DEFERRED TAX — GROUP 35. EBEHIE — £~5EH

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the applicable
tax rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately 235,119,000 (2010: approximately
HK$143,357,000), subject to the agreement of Inland
Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses which arose in
subsidiaries with unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the temporary differences
associated with the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
have not been provided as the Group is in a position to
control the timing of reversal of these differences and it is
probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

BERBTDRIBEREERANEEEBLE
BRERERZNEAESERMTERRE -

REBEREEFTAZBEBEY
235,119,000/ 7L( = & — T F: 4
143,357,000 L) - B REE®R - 7
FREERIEEE BB AR Z RRERT
A o S8 8 FhE A B T EE TE AR 2R ) 2Rk
TR M AE EBEEREEREEE

I FE AT B A R R 0 K B A HE B S =5
ZIEREBRAEAEFELEE RN AE
B EER ROEHRZEE
BN R RRAT BT G M -
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35. DEFERRED TAX — GROUP (Continued) 35.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset

EEH IR — K68 (9
1 £ AT EOR AT RE M A5 B AR TR B A
BIIEa EEMEE  MELHIEY R
F—MEHeE WETEHSEHEERAR
AP AR - AREBIRERIAR B2 515

amounts of deferred tax liabilities of the Group is as follows: ST
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Deferred income tax liabilities to be RiBB12E R & &N
settled after more than 12 months FEIEFERAaE 956,593 1,139,046
The net movements on the deferred taxation are as follows: REFRIE 2 FEBAT
Fair value
adjustments
Accelerated arising from
tax Revaluation  acquisition of
depreciation  of properties  subsidiaries  Tax losses Total
E KB
DAMEER
MEHERE BfhE AVERE HEEE Eoh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAR TAT FAR TAT
As at 1 January 2010 R-Z-E%—-f—-H - - - - -
Additions from the acquisition of subsidiaries  F U It B A =L 10 (20,396) 475,657 695,512 (11,727) 1,139,046
As at 31 December 2010 RZ2-F5+-A=+-8 (20,396) 475,857 695,512 (11,727 1,138,046
As at 1 January 2011 WZE——F—-F—H (20,396) 475,657 695,512 (11,727 1,139,046
Exchange realignment B A (1,015) 23,560 34,450 (581) 56,414
Deferred tax charged to the other FAMBEMRZERAZ
comprehensive income during the year ERHE - 4,732 - - 4,732
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the FRIG/ GIA)RABRZ
income statement during the year ERBE 8,259 (102,069) (156,385) 6,596 (243,599)
As at 31 December 2011 RZE——%F+ZfA=1—H (13,152) 401,880 573,577 (5,712) 956,593
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36.

144

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
As at 31 December 2011 the Group maintained a share
option scheme for employee compensation.

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders, and
any non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 29 May
2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash. Share options
granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the company or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on
the price of the company’s shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

36.

fERRAETE
RZF——F+ZA=1+—H0 FAEERX
A B EIAREET -

ARRRAE —BERET 8 ([%eTE)) -
B R ERAARE KIEFEL
BERZABR2EE - ZFE 2R ERS
HERRBRARRER(BRBEUIFNTE
F) AEEEMER AREERIRSE
HER  AEEEP ARFABRRRAR
BB A BRI FIE AR » &t 8B =
EZ_FRAA-TAARER RIERTT
BEHER] » BRIRNZBRTFRBR -

RIBEZAT BB ATAl TR 2 MARITERR
BEE  NBEREETER 2158
BAR B PMEM K E S ETIRD Z10% -
PEE+ ZEABREA - RIEZTERT
BERERSEEZBRERT 7] TET
ZBEMEB RETFHEBARRBNERE
BIE BTG 2 1% o (E1al8 1 Ik IR EE 2 3
—SEREBRESARKRRAG EEUSK
SRHLHE -

RN AER 2 EERBB ARSI -
AEEBELENIETETANE SRR
ST TRERE  MAARES  TTHAH
FTERRABEEEMBEEALRLER
RIS FENAITE E B o o
RAEM+—EABEA IARFEER
R B IRTESHHEEETAHEAL
BB ALHE - niER AN A B PME (] B
MEEITRM01% A XEBERAR
AR RREHERAZERE) BE
5,000,000 0% * EELERBRASEE
BRER b o
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In assessing the theoretical aggregate value of the share
options granted and fully accepted during the year, the
Binomial option pricing model has been used. No share
option expense was recognised in current year (2010: Nil).

Annual Report 2011 £

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 36. BEERESTE (%)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within REBRHZEREATRNIEZE BB

21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a T+ -BRER ARAEREHRE A

nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An AEHIBTZEBARE - ZAEETE

option may be exercised under the Scheme at any time IR NI ER HE AR T BB AT

during a period not exceeding five years after the date when ZHRARERITE  BEEZHHEZ&KE—

the option is granted and expiring on the last date of such RERBLE ©

period.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by BAREZTHEERZESETE - ETAER()

the directors, but may not be less than the higher of () the AARBRORIEEREERES BEKZ

Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on FrzimfE : () RNRARRONBEERER

the date of the offer of the share options; (i) the average HERERPIAERSBERIFAZ T

Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for HEHE: kii)jEBERAE=-EF 285

the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the & o

offer; and (i) the nominal value of an ordinary share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to BRI T T B A ABBUR SR AR

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. RAELIREZEF -

The following table shows the movement of the Company’s TRENEBE_ZE——F+-_A=+—H

share options during the year ended 31 December 2011. IFFERRNBEREZ ZEIE R -

Date of Outstanding at Granted Lapsed Outstanding

share options the beginning during during at the end Subscription

granted of the year the year the year of the year price Exercise period

BIRES LA H FOMKITE FRRE FRRM  ERBKITE RBE TEH

21 May 2007 49,050,000 - — 49,050,000 HK$0.30 21 May 2007 to

“EEERA--A 030%T 20 May 2012

S

EA-1+-A
E-Z_F
RAZ+H

25 September 2007 52,350,000 - (22,470,000 29,880,000 HK$0.296 25 September 2007

“EEHFNAZTEHA 02967 to 24 September 2012

B

AA-TEA
2-5--F
AA=+MmA

FEST 5 4F PSR I RO R B M 2 B ARIE
iR EE - B RA AT E R
RAFEYBERBRENS (—T—F
EofE) o
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

146

Share options granted and fully accepted during year ended
31 December 2007:

Date of Grant:
Eqani=l i
Vesting Period:
FREAH
Exercise Period:
TR

Exercise Price:

TIfE(E

— ==

—ETt+FRAZT—BE=Z—

—E——FNAA=+TH

36. BRRESTE(®)

BE-TTtFI-A=+—HILFEE

P TR T B 1 B AR

21 May 2007 and 25 September 2007
—ETtFRA T BERZEEEFNAZTEHA
21 May 2007 and 25 September 2007
+tFRAZ+—BRERZZEZTELFNA=THA

21 May 2007 to 20 May 2012 and 25 September 2007 to 24 September 2012
“FRAZTRARZZESEFNAAZTHAE

HK$0.30 and HK$0.296 per share
Fi%0.3087T 5 0.296 BT

Number of

share options

Number of Share options BREHE

Date of share options value at HK$ 31 December

share options granted (note (b)) 2011

Grantee granted Pz BREBTEE —E——F

AFEA REBRERS BREHE (MFE (b)) +=ZA=+—H

Employees 21 May 2007 49,050,000 8,485,650 49,050,000
(=] —EE+FRA=-1+—H

Employees 25 September 2007 52,350,000 8,480,700 29,880,000
(=] —EEFNAZ+TRA

78,930,000

Number of

share options

Number of Share options BREHE

Date of share options value at HK$ 31 December

share options granted (note (b)) 2010

Grantee granted P BREBTEER —E-FF

3N RUBRERS BREE (Fff=E (b)) +=—A=+—H

Employees 21 May 2007 49,050,000 8,485,650 49,050,000
&8 —ETEFRAZ+—H

Directors 25 September 2007 44,940,000 7,280,280 44,940,000
% ZETEFNAZTEHA

Employees 25 September 2007 7,410,000 1,200,420 7,410,000
(=] —EELFRAZ+TAA

101,400,000
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 36. iERRAETHEI(#)

Notes: Kt -

(@) The closing prices of the ordinary shares of the Company immediately (@ REBRAER L B HIAT - AQREBERR 2T+
before the date on which the options were granted were HK$0.3 on FRAZT—BRZZZEFAA-THAZI
21 May 2007 and HK$0.275 on 25 September 2007. BRI A0.38T k02758 T °

(b) According to the Binomial model, the theoretical aggregate value of (b) B —EEEEEA R Tl e EmRER - E
the options was estimated at HK$8,485,650 and HK$8,480,700 as at BEAFEER —_EE+FERA-+-AR_F
21 May 2007 and 25 September 2007 respectively (when the options TSHFNA T+ REBZHEFERBED AR
were granted) with the following variables and assumptions: 8,485,650 /8 7T & 8,480,700 /& IT
Risk Free Rate: 4.164% and 4.102%, being the approximate yield of Exchange Fund Bills and Notes issued by

Hong Kong government for the time to maturity of the option as at the valuation date quoted by
Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

R A= 4.164% }:4.102% @ BIEE & MEE RBNGE B ARE BRI ETINER S RIE R EHR LR
FHA R 2 B -

Expected Volatility: 64.44% and 69.35%, being the average annualised standard deviations of the continuously
compounded rates of return on the share prices of two other comparable companies with
similar business operations

TEHR 18 64.44%1.69.35%  BNRNFEAE 2 MUK 2 b Al b A RIRE 2 I EIE A Bk E 2 THFEERERE -

Expected Life of the Options: 5 years from the date of granting

AR TRERE R B BB 5F

Expected Dividend Yield: Nil

TRER SR - E3

Options forfeited, if any, before the expiry of the options will be treated PAB B AT DR W 2 B8 B (10 ) AR 1B R BUB X

as lapsed options which will be added back to the number of ordinary HEE - RN E SEMMABEEREEE

shares available to be issued under the relevant share options TAFETZEBEREENR -

scheme.

37. CONVERTIBLE NOTES — GROUP AND 37. TEREE — AXEERAXAQT

COMPANY
On 10 December 2010, the Company issued convertible RZE—ZTF+_A+H XAQABBITAK
notes with a principal amount of HK$3,100 million as part of 4 %8 /4 3,100,000,000 78 70 2 A] HA IR 2= 4% -
the consideration to acquire Talent Central Limited. The £ /& U B Talent Central Limited 2 8 9 £
convertible notes were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, B o AT MR EBR B ITEE - HEEE -
unsecured, transferrable and interest-free. The convertible AEENEE A BRKREEE THIEAA
notes entitled the holders thereof to convert the convertible R AfRAhEIEREREE S —RF
notes, in whole or in part, into ordinary shares of the +-A+B(HmA ) (BB ) E[E
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.33 per share, at R LB EFRR0.33B ik
any time after the expiry of the put option to and including Eeals i@ AR AR 7 B - K
10 December 2015 (the “Maturity Date”). The Company has NEIEREZBERNTRREE TR
option to redeem the outstanding principal amount of the FHEF%  BERIRRE S 100% E =[]
convertible notes at any time after the third anniversary from WIRER 7 MARTTEASEE -

the date of the issue of the convertible notes at 100% of the
face amount thereof.
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37.

148

CONVERTIBLE NOTES — GROUP AND

COMPANY (Continued)

The principal amount of HK$1,090 million of the convertible
notes are pledged and will be released to Talent Trend
Holdings Limited (“Talent Trend”) which is the vendor of
Talent Central Limited according to the sale and purchase
agreement signed between Talent Trend and Canton Million
Investments Limited which is a directly owned subsidiary of
the Company for the acquisition of Talent Central Limited.

At the date of completion of the Acquisition, the fair value of
the convertible notes was HK$2,574,228,000 which
included the equity component of fair value
HK$602,879,000. The fair value of the liability component
was HK$1,971,349,000.

The embedded derivatives relating to the Company’s
redemption option which are not closely related to the host
contract shall be separately measured and included
together with the liabilities component as a financial liability.
The fair value of the derivative component is determined
based on the valuation performed by B.l. Appraisals Limited
(“BI”) using Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The fair
value of the liabilities component is determined based on
the valuation performed by Bl using discounted cash flow
method. The effective interest rate of the host contract is
determined to be 6.42%. The residual amount is assigned
as the equity component for the conversion option and was
included in the convertible notes equity reserve.

37.

THRBRREE — AKEREF QT @)

A #A % = 45 & £01,090,000,000 8 7T 2 AN &
FE THEM A G R HETalent Central
Limited 2 & 75 Talent Trend Holdings Limited
([Talent Trend]) AR ARG E A 2 &
/A &) Canton Million Investments Limited 5t
Uz B Talent Central Limited Fr25 3] B & 3
ZE T Talent Trend ©

RUETKEE  TRERZATES

25742280005%7‘5 BEAFEZ =T
73 602,879,000 7T - BEE D < AFER

751,971,349,0008 7T °

EAANRERE R ARITETASEE
EHNWEZYEE  EHOHATELLSR
BEZEAGFABEDS mil,\uli
ZAFE HIRBR\AEEFIEBERA
([RIABEBR DA THE 7% — &F T H}Wé
EEEXMETHEMETE : MABEHS
ZAFERBROEEUBREESRE
EFEITHEMEE - TANZERFE
EBERGA2E - FItrS IR ABRRREY
R - Wt ArT R ER SR o
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37. CONVERTIBLE NOTES — GROUP AND 37. TRREE — AEEREAQAT(E)
COMPANY (Continued)
The liability component is carried as a long term liability on BEB TIREENAEETERAEE -
the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or BEEEERNELN AL - TBRKRER 2T
redemption. The derivative component of the Convertible ATHEBOHBRRAFEE  HEHH
Notes is subsequently measured at fair value with changes REAEEBARKER - XL ZE
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive BETERETERFEENRIE -
income. The value of the equity component is not
remeasured in subsequent years.
2011 2010
—g——5 -T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Liability component aEHs 2,264,417 2,259,301
Derivative component PTET ALY (238,422) (277,662)
2,025,995 1,981,639
Liability component =K ibay
At beginning of the year TAEA]) 2,259,301 —
Fair value of convertible notes issued BEITAIRKRER 2 A TE = 2,249,011
Converted into Company’s shares E AR NERG (137,701) -
Imputed finance cost HE A KR 142,817 10,290
At end of the year RER 2,264,417 2,259,301
Derivative component TTEIAEZS
At beginning of the year RER (277,662) -
Fair value of convertible notes issued BEETABRRER A TE - (277,662)
Converted into Company’s shares LSy =YIN/NGT ] g 12,667 -
Fair value change NEEEF 26,573 -
At end of the year RER (238,422) (277,662)
Carrying amount RESH 2,025,995 1,981,639

At 31 December 2011, convertible notes with principal
amounts of HK$2,916,520,000 remained outstanding.
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38. PROMISSORY NOTES — GROUP 38. RHAERE — ~EH

150

On 10 December 2010, the Group issued promissory notes

with a principal amount of HK$160 million

part of the consideration to acquire Talent Central Limited.
The Notes were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars,

RIZBE-Z2F+-A+H AEEBITR

(the “Notes”) as % %8 /160,000,000 T 2 A H 2 ([ =

1) YE AU Talent Central Limited 2 &8
DRE - BERTIABITETE « B LA

unsecured and transferrable. The Notes carried interest at wEE o IR B 5% TR - AR EImF X
the rate of 5% per annum, payable at maturity and will fF o BRIFEDHFEMEIS - BRAIHEAM

mature on 10 June 2013 (the “Maturity Date”), unless

redeemed earlier in minimum amount of

whole multiple thereof without any penalty, fee or other

RINRIB 2 BT - ANEEIRATZ 500,000

HK$500,000 or B EELBENATEERED - TAI

SRR _T-—=FXATAUTHHRA D

additional payment. Him o
HK$'000
FET
Principal sum on date of issue REBETHEEZAS5 160,000
Fair value adjustment at RETHREZ AP EHAE
the issuance date (25,647)
At initial recognition T HER 134,353
Imputed finance cost HE AR 919
Non-current liability component at R-ZE—ZEF+_-_A=+—H2
31 December 2010 FERBEEE S 135,272
Imputed finance cost HERER AR 16,820
Non-current liability component at RZZE—F+_A=+—HZ
31 December 2011 SERBIBERS 152,092

The effective interest rate for the Notes is 12.12% per

annum.

RREZERNERFL12.12% -

Talent Property Group Limited #i Xith Z &£ @GR A 7
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39. SHARE CAPITAL 39. A
2011 2010
—E——F —T-%F
Number Number
of shares HK$’000 of shares  HK$’000
BRHEE TERT RHEE FHT
Authorised: iy
Ordinary shares of BREEC.04E T
HK$0.004 each LB
At 1 January and at R—A—BA&k
31 December +=-A=+—H 125,000,000,000 500,000 125,000,000,000 500,000
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Number Number
of shares HK$’000 of shares  HK$'000
BRHEE THERT RS E FHET
Issued and fully paid: BETRAE
Ordinary shares of SARE{E0.004 % T
HK$0.004 each ZEmR
At 1 January »—A—H 2,247,682,010 8,991 2,247,682,010 8,991

Issue upon conversion of

REB R IR AT

convertible note (Note) (M&) 556,000,000 2,224 — —
At 31 December Rt+ZR=+—H 2,803,682,010 11,215 2,247,682,010 8,991
Note: izt -

On 16 June 2011, a convertible note holder has exercised conversion right to
convert part of the principal amount into 120,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the exercise price of HK$0.33 per share.

On 20 June 2011, convertible note holders have exercised conversion right
to convert part of the principal amount into 310,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at the exercise price of HK$0.33 per share.

On 22 June 2011, a convertible note holder has exercised conversion right to
convert part of the principal amount into 100,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the exercise price of HK$0.33 per share.

On 19 July 2011, a convertible note holder has exercised conversion right to
convert part of the principal amount into 26,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the exercise price of HK$0.33 per share.

The details of the convertible notes which are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Mg ROTFEESROSBBETARBIAESE R
120,000,000 f A A @) & 3@AR ©

NZB——FRAZ+R TRRRBEFSEABRTES
B ROEESROBETAATSASER
310,000,000 B A A B & 3B AL

RZE——F X NAZ+=8  THRBEREZFEADTE
HimE . RITEESROBEBTLALLIASER
100,000,000 fx AR A &) & i@k o
RZZ——F+ATHE  TRRERFEACTRHE
B BOTFEESROSBBELLBRLL, A S A
26,000,000 g 22 &) AR o
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40. RESERVES
(@) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein during the year are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i)  Share premium and capital redemption
reserve
The application of share premium account is
governed by Section 40 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

(i) Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the surplus arising from the Group’s capital
reorganisation in respect of its capital reduction,
share subdivision and share consolidation in
2003.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, a
company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus; if:

— the company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

—  the realisable value of the company’s
assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium
accounts.

(iii) Capital reserve
Reserve are transferred from retained earnings
for compensation if loss and any accident
incurred in the future. The capital reserve arose
due to the acquisition of PRC subsidiaries in
previous year and re-organisation of Hong Kong
subsidiaries in previous years.
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40. #MB

(@ *&KE
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(iii)
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—NN—FREVEEERE
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REB 2 BABBRIE S RN =
TEFHIRASERA - i
AR KBty & B 2 A S B AX
REEMELZ B
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—BRARTITEHARRE IR
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40. RESERVES (Continued)
Group (Continued)

(@

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Currency translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.6.

Convertible notes reserve

On 10 December 2010, the Company issued
five years zero-coupon Hong Kong Dollar
convertible notes, due on 10 December 2015
for a principal amount of HK$3,100,000,000
which was part of the consideration for the
acquisition of Talent Central Limited. The
convertible notes are convertible, at the option
of noteholders into ordinary shares of HK$0.004
each of the Company at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.33 per share, at any time after the
expiry of the Put Option up to and including 10
December 2015.

The convertible notes contain two components,
liability and equity element. The liability
component is carried as a long term liability on
the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The equity element is
presented in equity as “Convertible notes
reserve”.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the end of each reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.15(jii).

Property revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for land and buildings.
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(a)

REEE (&)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

B BRE
I 34 ot 1 2 A R 90 7
B T A 2 P I
% o R VIR U5 T EE 2,65
G AR o

AR E iR
R_E—ZF+_A+H &
A7) 317784 %8 3,100,000,000
BAER -_E—HE+ A+
ARy AFHE BB
B E ¥ 1E B I B Taent
Central Limited Z DR (E - =
BIEE AR RRA R H A
HEEE_Z—RHF+-ATH
IEEAR - BERFIRIZLAEAR0.33
BILZ N E HIRERETIRBRE
ERAR AN R B REEC.004
BT T B o

AMBRRER B ERERME
oMK - BEE D RE K
REEI|SEREE BER
SR E R M TR L -
HEOMNER 255 [ AT
ES

NP EFE

A ERBRERRSBRAE
EHAFAHEESSF AT
BERFEEFE  WRENE
2.15(ii) FTE & ET R R o

WEERE
EfMRHEK - UREMR T
HRABTF RN S BRI -
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40. RESERVES (Continued)
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(b)

40. f#% (®)

Company (b) ZARAFE
Capital Share-based
Share redemption Contributed Convertible  compensation Accumulated
premium reserve surplus  notes reserve reserve losses Total
DRGAERZ
BRAEE REEEHE HARH TRREERE RRGEE RitEE it
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK'000 HK’000 HK’000
TR TER TER TER TER TER TER
At 1January 2010 RZZ-FF-A-H 365,359 m 368,125 - 16,966 (47,197) 703,330
Issue of convertible notes BTARRER - - - 602,879 - - 602,879
Proft for the year and total EFRENREALE
comprehensive income for the year WARE - - - - - 31,317 31,317
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-ZF+-A=t-R 365,359 m 368,125 602,879 16,966 (15,880) 1,337,626
At 31 December 2010 and RZZ-FF+-A=1+-H
1 January 2011 RZE-—-£-f-H 365,359 m 368,125 602,879 16,966 (15,880) 1,337,626
Issue of convertible notes BIMAREE 158,493 - - (35,683) - - 122,810
Loss for the year and total FRBERFNLEEELE
comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - (172,994) (172,994)
At 31 December 2011 R-E--%+-f=t-R 523,852 n 368,125 567,196 16,966 (188,874) 1,287,342

The contributed surplus of the Company represents (i)
the difference between the consolidated shareholders’
funds of subsidiaries when they were acquired by the
Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s
share capital issued for the acquisition and (i) the
capital reorganisation as disclosed in note 40(a)(ii).

At 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to owners of the
Company, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),was
approximately HK$179,251,000 (2010: approximately
HK$352,245,000). In addition, the Company’s
share premium account, in the amount of
approximately HK$523,852,000 (2010: approximately
HK$365,359,000) may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

KRR R ZBABRIE ()M B A R
ARIERE 2 RERRESEARNA]
FUE AT TR AT E 2 25 0 K (i)
B 3T 40(2)(i) P 58 2 iR A E 40 -

W-—ZB——F+-A=+—8 B
BRE-NAN—FRREKEIER])
E AARAARARBEEADIRZ
Y /179,251,000 BT (=
T — T #)352,245,000/8 7T ) °
BEAN - AN B R AR AT AR = 2R
2 B8 B Bk © §8 49 523,852,000 78
T(ZF—FF : #)365,359,000%8
JL) e
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41.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES — GROUP
On 6 July 2010, the Group entered into an agreement to
acquire 100% equity interest in Talent Central Limited at
consideration payable by cash, convertible notes and
promissory notes in aggregate face amount of
HK$3,800,000,000 in which its fair value is approximately
HK$3,248,581,000 after taking into account of fair value of
the convertible notes and the promissory notes (the
“Acquisition”). The new subsidiaries are principally engaged
in properties development, properties investment and hotel
operation in the PRC and the acquisition was completed on
10 December 2010.

The Board believes the Acquisition to diversify into
properties development, properties investment and hotel
operation in the PRC will enable the Group to broaden its
income source and provide the Group with opportunity to
capture the growth potential of the property sector in the
PRC. The Board also believes the investment properties and
the hotel held by those subsidiaries could generate stable
income for the Group and enhance its investment portfolio
and profitability in future. Given the operating environment
for the Group’s existing business remains challenging, the
Board is of the view that the Acquisition is expected to
improve the profitability and facilitate the sustainable
development of the Group in future.

Annual Report 2011 £
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41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES — GROUP 41. WEHWEB AR — XEEH(H)
(Continued)
The assets and liabilities of Talent Central Limited acquired P UCEE E T R R H B BT UL BB Talent
at the date of completion of the Acquisition are as follows: Central Limited 2 EEHBEWAT :
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK’000 HK$'000
FHER FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KE&E - 523,649
Land use rights T AR = 1,112,450
Investment properties & E - 1,146,409
Interests in an associate I Al/N T 3 — 539,388
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESmEE - 3,001
Properties under development BRPYE - 2,088,392
Completed properties held for sales EEEE 2B E - 965,720
Trade receivables FEURBR R - 66,617
Prepayment, deposits and TETFIE © e R E A EYGRIE
other receivables - 525,702
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY = 143,047
Restricted cash ZRHRS = 11,580
Trade payables FEATBR X = (109,759)
Accruals and other payables BT & A N H A RE A ZUE - (933,622)
Interest-bearing bank borrowing sTEIRITER - (765,895)
Other unsecured borrowing Hih s i E R - (556,675)
Provision for taxation TRIEBE - (123,654)
Deferred taxation IRIEF A = (1,139,046)
Non-controlling interests FEEAR — (592,112)
— 3,805,196
Gain on bargain purchases arising EUWEMEL 2B S
on acquisition - (556,615)
Total consideration BRE = 3,248,581
Satisfied by: RATHEREA
Other payable E MR RIE = 540,000
Fair value of convertible notes MR EER 2 A TE = 2,574,228
Fair value of unsecured promissory
notes BEMEALER 2 ATE - 134,353
— 3,248,581
Analysis of net inflow of cash and WEHBATMSREER
cash equivalents in respect REZEBEYWZRNFEIN
of acquisition of subsidiaries:
Cash and bank balances acquired FTULREIR & R ERIT 4682 - 143,047
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42, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. EREIE
Group AEE
2011 2010
—EB——fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FER FET
Capital commitments (contracted BARASE (BRTREREE) -
but not provided for):
Capital injection into a subsidiary m—fMEAREE 10,210 -
Construction of properties BRPYEREMSY
under development 624,935 247,961
635,145 247,961
Capital commitments (authorised BAREE (BRBERTN)
but not contracted for):
Construction of properties BRPMEEEMAS
under development 1,136,163 1,879,150
1,771,308 2,127,111

Company

The Company does not have any significant commitments

as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

ZNNS

43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 43. REHERE
Group REE
As Lessee 1EAEHEA

As at 31 December 2011, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating

of land and building are payable by the Group as follows:

leases in respect

KRB —FR-F—FF+-A=+—
A AARBURETEARR -

RZF——F+ZA=1t—0 A%ER
BTARECEHER T RETRM
REFEREFRAENT

2011 2010

—E——F —ET-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FET

Within one year N 18,637 3,778

In the second to fifth years F_RFERF 19,726 7176

Later than five years RF& 15,466 9,113
53,829 20,067
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43.

158

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

Group (Continued)

As Lessee (Continued)

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one year to nine
years (2010: one to fifteen years), with an option to renew
the lease and renegotiated the terms at the expiry date as
mutually agreed between the Group and respective
landlords. None of the leases include contingent rental.

As Lessor

At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum lease
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of land and building are receivable by the Group as follows:

. REHERE®

REE ()

TERAMA ()
AEEREBELELZHERAETYE - %F
HOEEEEREAR —FENF(ZF—
THE: —2+HF) PEERAKEES
FAXEXRIBE 2 Em A ERREHNEE
BRR - MMEEOBEHAEE -

ERHBEA
R-F——F+-_A=1+—R AKER
BRI EEER T RET R
BR&EEERBARELT

2011 2010
—Z2——F —ET-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Within one year —FR 2,422 19,757
In the second to fifth years FE_EFRF 5,362 58,869
Later than five years FaRGEEEY 2,452 44,027
10,236 122,653

Company ¥iNUNE]
The Company does not have any significant operating lease RZE——FR =T —ZTF+ZA=+—

commitments as lessee and lessor as at 31 December 2011
and 2010.

SREIVIN/N T(f’EFﬁd‘H/\&Hﬂ‘E/\)I?ﬁ%E
AIEREEEEALE -
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44, BANKING FACILITIES 44. SRITRE

Group

The banking facilities including bank loans, overdraft, trust
receipt and letter of credit are secured by the Group’s
investment properties, property, plant and equipment, land
use rights and properties under development with the
approximate value of HK$4,937,612,000 (2010:
HK$4,680,761,000) and corporate guarantee from third
party. The total banking facilities amounted to
HK$1,894,221,000 (2010: HK$1,641,680,000) of which
HK$1,218,270,000 (2010: HK$798,560,000) were utilised
at the end of the reporting period.

There are no banking facilities granted to subsidiaries which
are secured by the corporate guarantee of the Company as
at 31 December 2011.

The banking facilities including import loan, overdrafts and
trust receipt granted to subsidiaries are secured by the
corporate guarantee of the Company. The total banking
facilities amounted to HK$24,000,000 of which none were
utilised at 31 December 2010.

Company
The Company does not have any banking facilities granted
and utilised as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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RERMK  HUAEEREDME - ¥ -
BE Rt L ARERERPYES
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4,680,761,000/8 ) U R E=FIRMHEZ A
AIEREER - RFEHHELEER - R
A %8 51,894,221,0008 T(—E—F
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)Eﬁ °

RZB——F+ZA=+—RH #HEXT
MEBARZRITRE VAR RE 2 ARE
TRIEHEAR o

BRYHMBRAABIZHETHERFEOER
FEXRAETWIE - TIARRQ R 2 A RER
BRI - RZZE—ZFTFF+=-_A=+—8"
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45. PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT

160

45. EEEARIRERE

LIABILITIES
Group RE
2011 2010
—g—-5 -—T-TH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FET
Guarantee given in respect of AT & ERIRITRE R
banking facilities for: ZHER
— Third parties (note (a)) FE=F (K@) 12,290 151,059
— Mortgage facilities for certain — ZISE EEHOMEELER
purchasers of the Group’s ZIEBRE (M b))
property units (hote (b)) 8,787 20,024
21,077 171,083
Notes: Bt
(@) The Group’s investment properties with fair value of HK$29,789,000 (@) AEBMRFEA29,789,000 L (=T —FF :
(2010: HK$240,465,000) was pledged to banks to secure general 240,465,000/ 70) 2 R E W E DK T IRTT
banking facilities granted to third parties to the extent of ERE=FER —MRIRTTHE 12,290,000 7T
HK$12,290,000 (2010: HK$69,089,000). (ZZ—Z4% : 69,089,000 8 70) Z i dn ©
Besides the above investment properties, the Group had not provided RZZ——F+ZA=+—RH  BRLElREWE
corporate guarantees to secure general banking facilities granted to Oh - REBEWEBLE =7 R —RI[1TRLE
third parties as at 31 December 2011. And the Group had provided RBEDRAER - MAZZT—ZF+_A=1+—
corporate guarantees to secure general bank facilities granted to third B ARERE=FAERZ —RRITREERM
parties to the extent of HK$81,970,000 as at 31 December 2010. A AR 81,970,000 87T ©
Under the guarantees, the Group would be liable to pay the bank if RIBEGBER - RIT— B R BT EFIE -
the bank is unable to recover the amount granted. REBAEAERREL -
At the reporting date, no provision for the Group’s obligation under RMEBE  AREERAMBEHIELIRED
the guarantee contract has been made as the directors consider that ERZ ATREM K - B A EERERELD
it is not probable that the amount granted will be in default. 2 BAEGHREME -
(o) It represented the guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted (b) LS BIERE FTRITMAEE LD WEERKH

by certain banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by these purchasers,
the Group is responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with accrued interest and penalty owed by the defaulted
purchasers to the banks and the Group is entitled to take over the
legal title and possession of the related properties. Of the amounts as
at 31 December 2011 of HK$8,787,000 (2010: HK$20,024,000), was
to be discharged upon earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate which are generally be available within three
months after the purchasers take possession of the relevant
properties; and (ii) the satisfaction of mortgaged loan by the
purchasers of properties.

The Directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties can cover the repayment of
the outstanding mortgage principals together with the accrued
interest and penalty and therefore no provision has been made in
these financial statements for the guarantees.

RIBERZIZBEE MIRM 2 1R o RIBERE
O MZFER S HRBRERHIRER - A%

BEAEGEMBITERENERMRRITZIRIBA
SEREERF S REN - MAEEAHIRIGE S
MEZEEXEERFERE RZZ—F+=A
=+ — H 8787000 T( =% — % F:
20,024,000 7T ) 2 ZIB T 518 2 05 AR BR
(VEEFEMEMGEE  —MRAERIEHEBY
ECHERE=HEAN: RMEERERIR
BER -

EEIR MERERER  AHEVEZAIER
FERABAEERRZBASERE B R
BRI - OB SR RN B R EH
B -
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45.

46.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT 45. EEERARIAEE @)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
Company PN/
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Guarantee given in respect of AT EFFERRITRLE
banking faciltties for: RIEZER
— Subsidiaries — B AR - 24,000
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the directors do not NZZE——FR_FE—ZTF+=-_A=1+—

consider it is probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantees since there is no
utilisation for the facility granted to its subsidiaries.

Under the guarantees, the Company would be liable to pay
the bank if the bank is unable to recover the amount
granted.

At the reporting date, no provision for the Company’s
obligation under the guarantee contract has been made as
the directors consider that it is not probable that the amount
granted will be in default.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following significant transactions with related parties:

(@) Compensation of key management
personnel:
The directors are of the opinion that the key
management personnel were the executive and non-
executive director of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are set out in note 11.1.
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46.

47.

162

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Balance with related party:

46. BEALRS (&)

(b) EEEALZEER:

2011 2010
—E——F —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Balances due from/(to) U () BEA L 2 5%
a related party
— included in prepayments, — FFAFENFIE - ek
deposits and other receivables/ HEWEIa Bt ER R
accruals and other payables E b e I8
Associate: BAE N T -
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN REHERRARAF
Development Limited 52,236 (812,509)

Balances due from/to a related party are unsecured,
interest-free and settled according to the contract
terms.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and
in its investment activities. The financial risks include market
risk (including currency risk, interest risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group does not have written risk management policies
and guidelines. Generally, the Group employs a conservative
strategy regarding its risk management. Financial risk
management is coordinated at the Group’s headquarters, in
close co-operation with the board of directors periodically.
The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets. Long term
financial investments are managed to generate lasting
returns with acceptable risk levels. As the Group’s exposure
to market risk (including currency risk, interest risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk are kept at a minimum
level, the Group has not used any derivative or other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed are discussed below.

47.

FEUL ST RRIE A 2 AR R AR
R B RAREENIETRE -

MHEREREER D FEE

AEBEARERABEERRERHTE
RAzeMTRAAZHBRR BEARE
EmSER(BEEEER - FXEREE
fERRER) FERRERBDESRR

AEEYESENEAREERENIES -
—RME  AEERERREERART
RS - I EREIR T EEARNEE A
W WEHHREEEETAF BBMK
RBREEBRETNREAEEEHES
HeHERE  EMBMARZHTBETS
RBRRERE - EARIEBRKEIR &
BERBUBRENEEIFALR - ARA
SEfERZzTEER(BREERR
XEEEMERRR) EREARIRE
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

As at the reporting date, the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments mainly consisted of available-for-sale
financial assets, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and bill receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade
payables, accruals and other payables, obligations under
finance lease, amounts due from subsidiaries, interest-
bearing borrowing, promissory notes and convertible notes.

(@) Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the Group’s and
the Company’s statements of financial position relate
to the following categories of financial assets and

financial liabilities:

47. BIREREER AFETE @)

RBEAH AEERARAFRZERTA
IZERAHEESREE RATEE
BREARZEREE IRGIAS A
EBREEEY  BUREFRNERREE 2
& REMEWFIA - BAERR - EBHEA
REMBNFIEA - BABRERE - BUKH
BRABFIE  FHEER  AARERATHR

@ =T=RMEEKSEZER
AEBRARRRMBARNBRESZ
FHEANTSREENERBEE
B :

Group Company
KEE RAT]
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-TF —T——F —ZT-TF
Financial assets HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000
ERMEE FET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE
assets 2,121 3,036 — —
Financial assets at fair value BATELER
through profit or loss ARz &REE 5,577 7,172 = —
7,698 10,208 - —
Loans and receivables SR L EKTRIE
— Trade receivables — FEURBR X 61,989 104,093 - —
— Amounts due from — BRI BT
subsidiaries 18 - — 3,322,527 3,328,228
— Deposits and other — ke MHARER
receivables (note 27) IE (ffiro7) 705,874 588,280 - 397
— Restricted cash — ZREIRE 5,153 16,273 - —
— Cash and cash equivalents — IH& &IE&®
£BY 320,339 777,378 3,692 540,599
1,093,355 1,486,024 3,326,219 3,869,224
1,101,058 1,496,232 3,326,219 3,869,224
163
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

()

(b)

164

Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

47. BIREREER AFETE @)

(a)

TREEREGEZER (@)

Group Company
rEE ARAFE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—§——F -T-%F —¥-——F -T-FF
Financial liabilities HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
SREE T FAT T FH&T
Financial liabilities measured BT E
at amortised cost ZeRBE
— Trade payables — FEfIBRZX (86,303) (58,721) - —
— Accruals and other — BT ERREM
payables (note 31) FERT A
(K1aE31) (1,270,979) (1,420,025) (1,933) (541,329)
— Obligations under — REEMLFNE
finance lease (273) 41) - —
— Borrowings — &% (1,792,296) (1,355,235) — —
— Promissory notes — R A EE (152,092) (135,272) — —
— Convertible notes — AR EE (2,025,995) (1,981,639) (2,025,995) (1,981,639)
(5,327,938) (4,950,933) (2,027,928) (2,522,968)
Foreign currency risk (b) MEERR

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign currency.

The Group is operated in Hong Kong and the PRC
with most of the transactions settled in HK$, RMB
and United States Dollars (“US$"). As HK$ is pegged
to US$, the directors do not expect any significant
exposure to foreign currency risk in this respect. As at
the reporting date, foreign currencies were translated
into HK$ at the closing rate.

Deposits invested into various bank deposits are
mainly denominated in HK$, US$ and RMB. Foreign
currencies were translated into HKS$ at the closing rate
as at the reporting date. As at 31 December 2011,
cash and bank balances mainly included
HK$22,222,000, US$3,461,000 (approximately
HK$26,764,000) and RMB224,978,000
(approximately HK$276,497,000). Any foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations in connection with
its foreign currency denominated bank deposits may
have a financial impact to the Group.

E¥RERESRTIA Y N FEIKRK
ReneEglEEXEHMEB 2R

iy
2

o

AEBERERDELEER - KEP
DRGUBT ARBEET(XE
TR - ARNBTTEE TN - &
ETRHB AU AR EEAIMNER
B o RIS AH] - SNE IR =
BRERET -

FEHRRASRITZFEREEBET - =
TTRARBEGHE - SMNEIRREB A2
WhERBE AT R_T——F
+ZA=1+—H8 R RIRITEHE
T B $£22,222,0007%8 7T 3,461,000
=7t (#926,764,0008 7T) & AR
224,978,0007T (#7276,497,00078 7T ) °
A IASNE HERITIE R E 2 B
O B 19 1] B ¥ AN SR B K B 7S
42 5
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The borrowings are all denominated in RMB. Foreign
currency was translated into HK$ at the closing rate
as at the reporting date. As at 31 December 2011, the
borrowings were RMB1,458,337,000 (approximately
HK$1,792,296,000). Any foreign currency exchange
rate fluctuations in connection with its foreign currency
denominated borrowings may have a financial impact
to the Group.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2011, if HK$ had strengthened by
10% against RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss for the year and accumulated
loss would have been approximately HK$151,580,000
lower respectively (2010: post-tax profit for the year
and retained profit would have been approximately
HK$121,271,000 higher respectively), as a result of
net foreign exchange gain on translation of RMB
denominated cash and bank balances and
borrowings.

Conversely, if HK$ had weakened by 10% against
RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-tax
loss for the year and accumulated loss would have
been approximately HK$151,580,000 higher
respectively (2010: post-tax profit for the year and
retained profit would have been approximately
HK$121,271,000 lower respectively), as a result of net
foreign exchange losses on translation of RMB
denominated cash and bank balances and
borrowings.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c)

166

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting
credit to customers in the ordinary course of its
operations.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, restricted cash and cash and
cash equivalent included in the face of the
consolidated statement of financial position represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets.

For the sale of trading goods, the Group generally has
established long-term and stable relationships with its
customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. The Group allows a range of credit
periods from 30 days to 90 days to its trade
customers.

For the sale of properties, the Group has policies in
place to ensure that sales are made to purchasers
with an appropriate financial strength and appropriate
percentage of down payments. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivables to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a large number of counterparties and customers.
During the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2010,
the Group had not provided impairment of trade
receivables.

The Group maintains its cash and cash equivalents
with reputable banks in Hong Kong and the PRC,
therefore the directors consider that the credit risk for
such is minimal.

The credit and investment policies to manage foreign
currency risk have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from interest
bearing bank deposits, bank borrowings, unsecured
loan and promissory notes. Bank deposits, bank
borrowings and unsecured loan issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk
and fair value interest rate risk.

The Group has interest-bearing assets and liabilities in
relation to cash at bank and borrowings. Details of
which are disclosed in note 29 and 32. The Group’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The
Group has not used any financial instrument to hedge
potential fluctuations in interest rates. The exposure to
interest rates for the Group’s cash at banks and bank
loans is considered minimal.

At 31 December 2011, if interest rates had been 100
basis points higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss and accumulated loss would
have been approximately HK$6,412,000 higher/lower
respectively, as a result of increase/decrease in net
interest expenses (including interest expenses net of
interest income) on borrowings and bank deposit at
variables rates.

At 31 December 2010, if interest rates had been 100
basis points higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit and retained profit would
have been approximately HK$3,304,000 lower/higher
respectively, as a result of increase/decrease in net
interest expense (including interest expenses net of
interest income) on borrowings and bank deposit at
variable rates.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

168

(e)

Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair values
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other
than changes in interest rates and foreign exchange
rates).

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to change in market prices of
listed and unlisted equity in respect of its investments
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date. For sensitivity analysis purpose, the
sensitivity rate is 30% in the current year as a result of
the volatile financial market.

In respect of the investments in unlisted equity
classified as available-for-sale financial assets, if equity
prices had been 30% higher/lower, the impact on
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2011 would increase/decrease by
HK$636,000 respectively (2010: HK$911,000). This is
mainly due to the change in fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets.

In respect of the investments in listed equity classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, if
equity prices had been 30% higher/lower, post-tax
loss and the accumulated loss for the year ended 31
December 2011 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$1,673,000 respectively (2010:
approximately HK$2,152,000).

The policies to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(f)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial assets. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade payables,
accruals and other payables, obligations under finance
lease, borrowings, promissory notes and convertible
notes, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines
of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring the cash
inflows and outflows due in day to day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands,
on a day to day and week to week basis, as well as
on the basis of a rolling 30 day projection. Long term
liquidity needs for a 180-day and 365-day lookout
period are identified monthly.

The Group’s liquidity is mainly dependent upon the
cash received from its customers of trading goods
and property held for sale, and funds financing for
property under construction. The directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to
meet in full its financial obligations as and when they
fall due in the foreseeable future.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to be effective in
managing liquidity risks.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

170

(f)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

47. BIREREER AFETE @)

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows

H RBETERE
TERFAIAREBRARBITESR
BERERE B2 RGAOME - it
TERANARMBRASRENALE
RADBI AR BER TN FHRA &R

and the earliest date the Group and the Company can HEAm{EDL ¢
be required to pay:
Group KEH
As at 31 December 2011
R=B--F+=A=+-H
Total Within Between Between
contractual one year oneyear  two years
Carrying undiscounted oron and two andfive  More than
amount  cash flow demand years years five years
GEEN 3] -£R -z REE
BEE RENELE AEEX MEH LEH BRLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER Thn AR TEn TEn
Trade payables e 86,303 86,303 (86,303) - - -
Accruals and other payables A ERREwERZE 1270979  1,210979  (1,270,979) - - =
Obligations under finance lease ~ BLAT EE 273 273 (55) (55) (163) -
Borrowings (principal amount 5N 1,792,296 2,169,381 (1,137,539) (110,005) (306,195) (615,642)
plus interes) (FeEMHE)
Promissory notes (principal ERER 152,092 171,540 (8,000) (163,540) - -
amount plus interest) (R2EMAE)
Convertible notes HRRERE 2025995 2,916,520 - - (2,916,520) -
5327,938 6,614,996  (2,502,876) (273,600)  (3,222,878) (615,642)
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 47. BiKEKREER A FETE @)
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

() Liquidity risk (Continued) H RBESREK(E)
Group (Continued) KEE (%)

As at 31 December 2010
RZF-FFTZA=T-R

Total Within Between Between
contractual one year one year two years
Carrying  undiscounted oron and two and five More than
amount cash flow demand years years five years
AIRER 4R 7 AER

KEE HERELR FHEEKR MER ik BRLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TETL TR TR TR

Trade payables R 58,721 58,721 (58,721) - - -
Accruals and other T BAREMENE

payables 1420026 1420025  (1,420,025) - - -
Obligations under BERERE

finance lease 4 4 @) - - -
Borrowings (principal BR(ALEMRE)

amount plus interest) 1,365,235 1,736,793 (162,170) (704,563) (297,516) (582,544)
Promissory notes (principal ALEE(FEENFE)

amount plus interest) 135,272 179,540 (8,000) (8,000) (163,540) -
Convertible notes TRREE 1,981,639 3,100,000 - - (8,100,000) -

4950933 6495120 (1638957 (712563 (3561056  (582544)

Annual Report 2011 £3§ 171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS ERAR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2011) (B#E —E——4#+ - A =+—HIFE)

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 47. BiKEKREER A FETE @)
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

() Liquidity risk (Continued) H RBESREK(E)
Company P/ AT |
As at 31 December 2011
R-F--F+t-A=1-H
Total
contractual Within Between one Between two

Carrying undiscounted  one year or yearand  years and
amount  cashflow ondemand  twoyears  five years
ENRER —FR -£F MEE

REE BeRBLE FRER mEH TEMH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THR THR TR

Accruals and other payables B B R REMERZE 1,933 1,933 (1,933 - -
Convertible notes HRRER 2,025,995 2,916,520 - - (2,916,520
2,027,928 2,918,453 (1,933) - (2,916,520

As at 31 December 2010
RoT-FFt-A=t-8

Total
contractual Within -~ Betweenone  Between two
Carrying  undiscounted ~ one year or year and years and
amount cashfow  ondemand two years five years
ARRER —ER —%% MEE

BHE AEnELR HEBEL M ikl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR

Accruals and other payables BB REMREMNTUE 541,329 541,329 (541,329) - -
Convertible notes RRER 1,981,639 3,100,000 - - (3,100,000)

2,522,968 3,641,329 (641,329) — (3,100,000
The Group considers expected cash flows from AEEBRTERERREE & AR
financial assets in assessing and managing liquidity SEERASREEZTERES R
risk, in particular, its cash resources and other liquid 5 BRRESEREAERELR
assets that readily generate cash. The Group’s S VHMREBEE - KREFRERS
existing cash resources and other liquid assets BREEHEM RS EEANEREEERS
significantly exceed the cash outflow requirements. FEHESK o
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(9)

Fair value measurement recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
The Group adopted the amendments to HKFRS 7
Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
effective from 1 January 2009. These amendments
introduce a three-level hierarchy for fair value
measurement disclosures and additional disclosures
about the relative reliability of fair value measurements.

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of
these financial assets and liabilities. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

—  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived form prices); and

—  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measurement.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(g) Fair value measurement recognised in the (9)
consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value in the consolidated statement of financial
position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as

47. BIREREER AFETE @)

REGEMBMRRKRER 2 A FE

& ()

RERMBAREE A EFEZS
BEERBEDRATRFER

follows:
2011 — Group
—E——F - FKH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& FoR F=4K et
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale AEEEeREE
financial assets 2,121 — — 2,121
Listed securities designated BE AL AFE
at fair value through SN
profit or loss hESH 5,577 - - 5,577
7,698 — — 7,698
2010 — Group
—E-TF - K&
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R EM! EFE= @t
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHIT FHEIT FHET T
Assets &=
Available-for-sale AEHEeREE
financial assets 3,036 — — 3,036
Listed securities designated & AR A TE
at fair value through LIETARZ
profit or loss EHES 7,172 — — 7,172
10,208 — — 10,208

There have been no significant transfers between
levels 1 and 2 in the reporting period.
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47.

48.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(g) Fair value measurement recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

The methods and valuation techniques used for the
purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged
compared to the previous reporting periods.

The available-for-sale financial assets and listed equity
securities are denominated in HK$, US$ and RMB.
Fair values have been determined by reference to their
quoted bid prices at the reporting date and have been
translated using the spot foreign currency rates at the
end of the reporting period where appropriate.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing
goods and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group regards total equity attributable to the owners of
the Company presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of financial position as capital, for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31
December 2011 amounted to approximately
HK$1,177,019,000 (2010: approximately
HK$1,877,291,000), which the management considers as
optimal having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.
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49.

50.

176

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The directors consider Winspark Venture Limited, which is
incorporated in the BVI, to be the ultimate holding company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

After the end of reporting period and up to the date of this
report, Guangzhou Gaotian Investment Limited (“Gaotian”), an
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into sale
and purchase agreements with various buyers to dispose
Gaotian’s certain investment properties at consideration of
RMB341.6 million. The fair value of the disposed investment
properties as at 31 December 2011 were approximately
RMB368.9 million.
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